PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, October 20, 2016

Time: 8:00 a.m.

Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA

L Call to Order

II. Non-Public Session* (Allard)

Public Meeting Resumes — 9:00 a.m.

III. Vote of Confidentiality* (Bohenko)

IVv. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: September 15, 2016*
V. Public Comment

VL Old Business

VII.  Audit Committee Report* (Bohenko)
A. Approvals
1. Certified Financial Statements and Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal
Awards* (Loughlin)

VIII. Finance
A. Financial Reports
il Operating Result for Two Month Period Ending August 31, 2016*
2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to June 30, 2017*

IX. Leases
A. Reports
1. Pioneer Aviation LLC*
2. 100 International, LLC*

B. Approvals

il Allegiant Airlines, LLC — Lease Amendment No. 3* (Lamson)
2. Spyglass Development LL.C — Letter of Intent* (Torr)
3. RTG, Inc. — Hangar 227* (Allard)
4. Summit Land Development - 160 Corporate Drive Option * (Lamson)
5. Summit Land Development - 254 Corporate Drive Option* (Torr)
X. Signs
A. Reports

1. 73 Corporate Drive, LLC — 73 Corporate Drive*

XI. Contracts/Agreements
A. Reports*
1. Boyd Group International — Airline Data
2. Dave’s Septic Service, Inc.



XII.

XTI

XIV.

XV.

XVI

XVIL

XVIIIL.

XIX.

*%
*kk

+

3. Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc. — PSM Terminal HVAC (Emergency Delegation)

B. Approvals
1. Careno Construction Co. LLC — PSM Terminal Change Order* (Bohenko)
2. Seacoast Security — Fire Alarms* (Loughlin)

Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A. Reports
1. Golf Course Operations
2. Airport Operations
a) Skyhaven Airport
b) PSM
c) Noise Line Report*

B. Approvals
1. Bills for Legal Services* (Allard)

Port Committee Report* (Loughlin)
Division of Ports and Harbors
A. Reports

1. Port Advisory Council

B. Approvals
1. Appledore Marine Engineering, Inc. — Main Wharf Inspection* (Bohenko)

New Business
Upcoming Meetings
Finance Committee Nov. 14, 2016
Board of Directors Nov. 17, 2016
All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Directors’ Comments

Adjournment

Press Questions

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials



55 Inlarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH D3301

MOTION

Director Allard:

The ‘Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter
non-public session pursuant to:

1.

N

NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph 1l(d) for the purpose of discussing
the acquisition, sale or lease of property;

NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph li(b) for the purpose of discussing
the hiring of a public employee; and

NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph ll(e) for consideration or negotiation of
pending claims or litigation which has been threatened in writing or
filed against the body or agency or any subdivision thereof, or
against any member thereof because of his or her membership in
such body or agency, until the claim or litigation has been fully
adjudicated or otherwise settled.

Note: Roll call vote required

N:\RESOLVES\NonPublicLeasepersonnellitigation.docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE



Pease Development Authority

DRAFT 10-14-2016

Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
With Independent Auditor’s Report

—
PEASE

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

PORTSMOUTH M H



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Board of Directors
Financial Highlights
Independent Auditor’s Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fingﬁeial Condition
and Results of Operations ’
Audited Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Page(s)

3-4

5-14

15
16
17-18

19-35

36-37



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

George M. Bald, Chairman
Appointed by the New Hampshire State Governor and Executive Council

Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth and Town of Newington

Robert A. Allard, Treasurer
Appointed by the New Hampshire Speaker of the House

John P. Bohenko
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth

Margaret F. Lamson
Appointed.by the Town of Newington

Robert F. Preston
Appointed by the New Hampshire Senate President

Franklin G. Torr
Appointed by Strafford County Legislative Delegation

David R. Mullen
Executive Director and Secretary
Hired by the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

1|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (UNAUDITED)

($ in Thousands)

$ 7,926

$.15.039

2012
Consolidated Revenues
Tradeport $ 9,220
Ports and Harbors 2,848
Golf Course 1,926
Aviation 1,124
Total $.15.118
UNRESTRICTED CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
$5,000
$4,000
$3,000
$2,000
$1,000 %5 - .
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
OPERATING EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION)
$15,000
$12,000
$9,000
$6,000
$3,000

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

2012 2013 2014 2015

2016

2012 2013 2014 2015

2014 2015 2016

$ 7631 $ 7,826 $ 8,028
2,773 2,762 2,474
1,621 2,197 2,420

1,173 1,117 1,237

$13,198 $13.902 $14.159

Debt outstanding has been
significantly reduced reflecting
lower capital expenditure
requirements across all business
units:

June30 __ Amount_

2012 $ 3,359
2013 3,532
—_2014 4,307
2015 3,345
2016 465

Capital assets, primarily due to
third party grant funding and
renovations to the golf course
and harbor facilities, have
continued to increase during
the past several fiscal years:

June 30 Amount
2012 $ 140,678
2013 146,771
2014 - 153,811
2015 159,556
2016 161,023

Net cash provided by operating
activities has stabilized during the
past several fiscal years due to
lower allowances for doubtful
accounts:

M

2012 $ 5,035
2013 3,859
2014 40
2015 2,748
2016 4,221

2|Page



B BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pease Development Authority (PDA), a
component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of PDA as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net position and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bangor, ME o Paripnd, ME e Manchester, N | o Charlesion, Wy
WWWLDETYUUnn.com:



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management’s Discussion and Analysis on
pages 5 to 14 and the required supplementary information on pages 36 to 37 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financlal statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements. The
financial highlights section is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. The financial highlights section has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Prior Period Adjustments

As described in Note 21, the financial statements of PDA as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 have
been restated to expense amounts previously recorded to construction in progress for which
management determined that there was no ongoing useful life. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
REPORTDATE on our consideration of PDA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PDA’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORTDATE

4|{Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

This report identifies the Pease Development Authority’s ("PDA”) financial position and describes
PDA’s financial activities over the past three fiscal years. This section of PDA’s annual financial report
is known as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
("MD&A") and presents our discussion and analysis of PDA’s consolidated financial performance
during the fiscal yéars ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

The MD&A is an analysis of the financial condition and operating results of PDA and is intended to
introduce the basic financial statements and notes to those statements. The MD&A must be presented
in every financial report that includes basic financial statements prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. It is intended to provide an
objective and easily readable analysis of PDA’s financial activities based on currently known facts,
decisions, or conditions. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with PDA’s financial statements
and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: a) Management’s discussion and analysis; b) the basic
audited financial statements which include notes explaining some of the information In the financial
statements and provide detailed data; and c) required supplementary information.

PDA is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The component unit financial
statements offer short and Jong-term financial information about the activities and operations of PDA.
These statements are presented in a manner similar to a private business.

The statements of net position show the financial position of PDA at the end of each fiscal year and
includes all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The
total net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Over time, an increase in net position is one indicator of an
institution’s financial heaith.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position reports total operating revenues,
operating expenses, nonoperating income (expense), contributed capital and the change in net
position for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The statements of cash flows summarize transactions involving cash and cash equivalents during
each fiscal year. The statements provide an additional tool to assess the financial health of the
institution and its ability to generate future cash flows to meet its obligations.

Prior Period Adjustment
The financial statements have been restated to expense amounts previously recorded to construction

in progress for which management determined that there was no ongoing useful life. The restatement
resulted in a decrease to net position of $599,597 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014.

5|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Current Assets

Current assets are those assets that are expected to be used (sold or consumed) within a year, unlike
non-current assets. Current assets are reflected on the statement of net position and are listed in
order of decreasing liquidity. The current asset position of a company is important, both for assessing
its financial strength and for gauging its operational efficiency.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Changes in Current Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2016 2015 (Decrease) {Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,713 $ 1,257 456 36.3

Accounts Receivable - Net 589 1,899 (1,310) (69.0)

Other Current Assets 467 471 (4) (0.8)
Total Current Assets $ 2,769 $ 3,627 (858) (23.7)

PDA’s current assets decreased by $0.9 million or 23.7% primarily due to the decrease in accounts
receivable. The resulting increase in cash and cash equivalents was partially offset to reduce debt
outstanding and to support construction activities across all business units. Accounts receivable
included an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately 0.4% and 0.9% of total accounts
receivable at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Changes in Current Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase’

2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,257 $ 1,444 (187) (13.0)
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,899 2,028 (129) (6.4)
Other Current Assets 471 535 (64) (12.0)

Total Current Assets $ 3,627 $ 4,007 (380) 59.52

PDA’'s current assets decreased by $0.4 million or 9.5% primarily due to decreases in cash and cash
equivalents to support construction activities across all business units. Accounts receivable included
an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately 0.9% and 0.2% of total accounts receivable at

June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

6|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent amounts that are subject to externally imposed restrictions on their use
by creditors, grantors, laws, regulations, or through constitutional restrictions or enabling legislation.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Changes in Restricted Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2016 2015 (Decrease) _(Decrease)
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 597 § 875 (278) (31.8)
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,085 781 304 38.9
Accounts Receivable Other- Net . 8 206 (198) (96.1)
Total Restricted Assets $ 1690 _$ 1862 (172) (9.2)

Total restricted assets decreased by approximately 9.2% during the current fiscal year primarily due
to the decrease in accounts receivable balances due from the State of New Hampshire. In addition,
the $0.3 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents was related to increased loan activity within
the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund. Total assets associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had
a composite valuation of approximately $1.2 million at June 30, 2016 and 2015. There were 27
individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2016 versus 24 at June 30, 2015.

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Changes in Restricted Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase $ Increase

2015 2014 (Decrease) {Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 875 § 703 172 24.5

Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 781 935 (154) (16.5)

Accounts Receivable Other- Net 206 7 199 2,842.9
Total Restricted Assets $ 1862 ¢§ 1645 217 13,2

Total restricted assets increased by approximately 13.2% during the current fiscal year primarily due
to the increase in accounts receivable balance due from the State of New Hampshire. Total assets
associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of approximately $1.2

million at June 30, 2015 and 2014. There were 24 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2015
versus 25 at June 30, 2014.

7|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

PDA independently develops and maintains the Tradeport. Through the Division of Ports and Harbors
(PDA-DPH), PDA maintains and develops New Hampshire’s ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers.
Capital expenditures typically extend the useful life of an asset and can be financed through Internal
funds, grant related funding or access to the capital markets.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Changes in Capital Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase -

2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Land $ 7521 ¢ 7,521 - -
Facilities Improvements 139,271 128,142 11,129 8.7
Equipment 13,696 13,287 409 3.1

Construction in Process 534 10,606 (10,072) (95.0)
Gross Capital Assets 161,022 159,556 1,466 0.9
Accumulated Depreciation (92,434) (86,324) 6,110 7.1

Total Capital Assets $ 68588 _$ 73,232 (4,644) (6.3)

PDA's capital acquisitions totaled approximately $1.5 million in the current year primarily in support
of either federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects Included runway
reconstruction activities at both the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) and Skyhaven
Airport (DAW). Additional funds were expended in support of various infrastructure improvements at
the Pease Golf Clubhouse. Approximately $1.0 million of the total capital expenditures were
associated with either federal or state funded projects.

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Changes in Capital Assets
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Land $ 7,521 $ 7,499 22 0.3
Facilities Improvements 128,142 126,492 1,650 1.3
Equipment 13,287 13,158 129 1.0
Construction in Process 10,606 6,661 3,945 59.2
Gross Capital Assets 159,556 153,810 5,746 3.7
Accumulated Depreciation (86,324) (80,131) 6,193 7.7
Total Capital Assets § 73,232 _$ 73,679 (447) (0.6)

PDA's capital acquisitions totaled approximately $5.8 million during the year ended June 30, 2015,
primarily in support of either federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects
included runway reconstruction activities at both PSM and DAW. Approximately $5.1 million of the
total capital expenditures were associated with either federal or state funded projects.

8|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Liabilities

PDA borrowed money from the State of New Hampshire (the State) during its early years to finance
its operations. Currently, the PDA owes no money to the State. Other monies have been borrowed,
on a short-term basis, for capital improvements from local financial and municipal institutions.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2016 2015 (Decrease) _(Decrease)
Net Pension Liability $ 4,256 ¢ 3,687 569 15.4
Due to City of Portsmouth - Waste Water
Treatment Facility 349 465 (116) (24.9)
Compensated Absences 109 111 (2) (1.8)
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 4714 ¢ 4,263 451 10.6

The PDA increased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$0.5 million or 10.6%. The more significant increase was associated with the change in the net
pension liability, which reflected PDA’s increase of its proportionate share obligation. During the fiscal
year, a total of $0.1 million of total long-term debt was retired while the $5.0 million Revolving Line
of Credit Facility was repaid in full. During fiscal year 2017, PDA may need to access the capital
market to support scheduled capital improvements across all business units. At the end of the 2016
fiscal year, PDA’s overall cost of capital was approximately 4.5%.

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2015 2014 (Decrease) {Decrease)

Net Pension Liability "$ 3,687 $ - 3,687 100.0
Due to City of Portsmouth - Waste Water
Treatment Facility 465 582 (117) (20.1)
Compensated Absences 111 102 9 ~ 8.8
The Provident Bank LCN @ 3.11% - 928 (928) (100.0)
The Provident Bank LCN @ 3.46% = 142 . (142) (100.0)
Advance from Tenant = i3 (13) (100.0)
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 4263 _$ 1,767 2,496 141.3

PDA increased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately $2.5
million or 141.3%. PDA recorded a net pension liability as of June 30, 2015 amounting to $3.7 million
in connection with the adoption of the new accounting standards. During the fiscal year, a total of
$1.7 million of long-term debt was retired while $0.8 million in new net borrowings under PDA's
Revolving Line of Credit Facility, which went primarily to support working capital requirements, offset
the decrease. At the end of the 2015 fiscal year, PDA’s overall cost of capital was approximately

3.1%.

9|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
debt and adding back any unspent proceeds.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Statements of Net Position
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 2,769 $ 3,627 (858) (23.7)
Restricted Assets 1,690 1,862 (172) (9.2)
Capital Assets 68,588 73,232 (4,644) {6.3)
Total Assets 73,047 78,721 (5,674) (7.2)
Deferred Outflows of Resources 776 413 363 87.9
Current Liabilities 2,847 5,860 (3,013) (51.4)
Noncurrent Liabilities 4,714 4,263 451 10.6
Total Liabilities 7,561 10,123 (2,562) (25.3)
Deferred Inflows of Resources 207 472 (265) (56.1)
Net Investment in Capital Assets 67,845 72,041 (4,196) (5.8)
Restricted Net Position 1,421 1,590 (169) (10.6)
Unrestricted Net Position (3,211) (5,092) 1,881 (36.9)
Total Net Position § 66,055 4 68,539 (2,484) (3.6)

PDA’s total assets decreased $5.7 million or 7.2% primarily due to depreciation expense being
greater than capital asset expenditures. The decrease in current assets was primarily due to
reductions in grant related accounts receivable balances. Restricted assets are primarily represented
by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an approximate value of $1.2 million at June 30,
2016 and 2015.

The Increase in deferred outflows of resources related to the pension plan and decrease in deferred
inflows of resources are reflective of the overall change in PDA’s net pension liability.

PDA’s total liabilities decreased by $2.6 million or 25.3% primarily due to the $2.8 million repayment
of Revolving Line of Credit. This decrease was offset by the $0.6 million increase in PDA’s net pension
obligation.

PDA's net position decreased by $2.5 million or 3.6%. This decrease is primarily due to the $4.2
million reduction in Net Investment in Capital Assets.

10 Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position (continued)

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Statements of Net Position
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 3,627 $ 4,007 (380) (9.5)
Restricted Assets 1,862 1,645 217 13.2
Capital Assets 73,232 73,679 (447) (0.6)
Total Assets 78,721 79,331 (610) (0.8)
Deferred Outflows of Resources 413 = 413 100.0
Current Liabilities 5,860 - 6,714 (854) (12.7)
Noncurrent Liabilities . 4,263 1,767 2,496 141.3
Total Liabilities 10,123 8,481 1,642 19.4
Deferred Inflows of Resources 472 - 472 100.0
Net Investment in Capital Assets 72,041 69,986 2,055 2.9
Restricted Net Position 1,590 1,638 (48) (2.9)
Unrestricted Net Position {5,092) (345) (4,747) 1,375.9
Total Net Position $ 68,539 $71,279 (2,740) (3.8)

PDA’s total assets decreased $0.6 million or 0.8% primarily due to depreciation expense being
greater than capital asset expenditures. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was aligned with
funding construction expenditures across all business units. Restricted assets are primarily
represented by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an approximate value of $1.2 million at
June 30, 2015 and 2014.

The increase in deferred outflows of resources related to the pension plan and deferred inflows of
resources is due to the adoption of the new accounting standards during the year during the year
ended June 30, 2015.

PDA's total liabilities increased by $1.6 million or 19.4% primarily due to the adoption of the new
accounting standards during the year ended June 30, 2015, net of decreases in long-term debt and
lower construction related liabilities at the close of the fiscal year.

PDA’s net position decreased by $2.9 million or 4.1%. This decrease is primarily due to the adoption
of the new accounting standards offset by an increase in net position after contributed capital during
the year ended June 30, 2015.

11| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position

PDA charges various types of fees for the rental or usage of its land and facilities.

Comparison of 2016 to 2015

Statements of Changes in Net Position
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Operating Revenues
Rental of Facilities $ 9,488 $ 9,168 320 3.5
Fee Revenues 2,942 2,981 (39) (1.3)
Fuel Sales _ 766 904 (138) (15.3)
Concession and Other Miscellaneous 963 849 114 13.4
Total Operating Revenues 14,159 13,902 257 1.8
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits 6,631 6,556 75 1.1
Depreclation - 6,111 6,222 (111) (1.8)
Building and Facilities Maintenance 1,512 1,414 98 6.9
General and Administrative 750 777 (27) (3.5)
Other 2,273 2,593 (320) (12.3)
Total Operating Expenses 17,277 17,562 (285) (1.6)
Operating Loss (3,118) (3,660) 542 14.8
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Interest Expense (39) (128) 89 (69.5)
Interest Income 3 3 - -
Gain on Insurance Proceeds - 220 (220) (100.0)
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets - 1 (1) (100.0)
Total Nonoperating Income (Expense) (36) 96 (132) 137.5
Loss Before Contributed Capital (3,154) (3,564) 410 11,5
Contributed Capital 671 5,096 (4,425) (86.8)
Change in Net Position $ 52!483! $ 1,532 (4,015) 262.1

Total operating revenues increased by $0.3 million or 1.8% primarily due to increases in rental of
facilities of 3.5%. To a lesser extent, increases were realized in concession revenues primarily
assoclated with Grill 28 restaurant operations. Offsetting these increases were lower fuel sales at the
PDA-DPH due to a continued restrictive regulatory environment for the commercial fishing industry.

Total operating expenses decreased by $0.3 million or 1.6% primarily due to a reduction in certain
operating expenses including utilities, professional services and the cost of fuel for resale at PDA-
DPH. These decreases were offset by an increase in personnel services and benefits, which reflect
escalation in salaries and fringe benefit costs.

Net non-operating expense increased by $0.1 million due to a one-time gain on insurance proceeds
realized in the prior year.

The decrease in contributed capital of $4.4 million reflects reduced grant related construction projects
at both PSM and DAW. During the year ended June 30, 2016, a total of $1.5 million was spent on
the purchase of capital assets of which approximately $0.9 million were either grant funded or
supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

12| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)

Comparison of 2015 to 2014

Statements of Changes in Net Position
($ in Thousands)

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Operating Revenues '
Rental of Facilities $ 9,168 $ 8,825 343 3.9
Fee Revenues 2,981 2,506 475 19.0
Fuel Sales 904 981 (77) (7.8)
Concession and Other Miscellaneous 849 886 (37) (4.2
Total Operating Revenues 13,902 13,198 704' 5.3
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits 6,556 6,285 271 4,3
Depreciation 6,222 5,992 230 - 3.8
Building and Facilities Maintenance 1,414 1,990 (576) (28.9)
General and Administrative 777 1,221 (444) (36.4)
Other 2,593 - 2,707 (114) (4.2)
Total Operating Expenses 17,562 18,195 (633) (3.5)
Operating Loss {3,660) (4,997) 1,337 26.8
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Interest Expense (128) (136) 8 (5.9)
Interest Income 3 6 (3) (50.0)
Gain on Insurance Proceeds 220 - 220 100.0
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 1 2 (1) (50.0)
Total Nonoperating Income (Expense) 96 (128) 224 175.0
Loss Before Contributed Capital (3,564) (5,125) 1,561 30.5
Contributed Capital 5,096 4,278 818 19.1
Change in Net Position 2 1!532 $ 847 2,379 280.9

Total operating revenues increased by $0.7 million or 5.3% primarily due to fee revenues associated
with golf course operations. Both member and public play has increased from the prior year due to
restoration of the irrigation system and course conditions. To a lesser extent, rental of facilities
increased by 3.9% due to slight increases in the Consumer Price Index and new lease contracts.
Offsetting these increases was a decrease in fuel sales due to increased regulatory compliance
associated with commercial fishing activities.

Total operating expenses decreased by $1.1 million or 5.7% primarily due to lower facilities costs
and bad debt expenses from the prior year. Offsetting these decreases were increases in personnel
services and benefits along with elevated depreciation and other operating costs.

Net non-operating expense increased by $0.2 million due to a one-time gain on insurance proceeds.
The increase in contributed capital of $0.8 million refiects the continued use of grant funding to
support capital project initiatives at PSM and or DAW. During the year ended June 30, 2015, a total

of $5.8 million was spent on the purchase of capital assets of which approximately $5.1 million were
either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

13| Page



PEASE DEVELCPMENT AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)

Contacting the PDA’s Leadership Team

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of PDA’s finances and to demonstrate
PDA’s accountability for the grants that it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, please contact David R. Mullen, Executive Director, at 55
International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 via email at d.mullen@peasedev.org or by telephone
at 603.433.6088. (Visit the PDA website at: www.peasedev.org)

14| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Net
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Net
Total Restricted Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts Payable for Capital Assets
Unearned Revenues
Revolving Line of Credit Facility
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability

Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance
Foreign Trade Zone

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Restated
2016 2015
$ 1,713,347 $ 1,256,867
588,746 1,899,183
467,232 471,040
2,769,325 3,627,090
597,140 875,431
1,092,715 986,602
1,689,855 1,862,033
68,588,287 73,231,971
73,047,467 78,721,094
776,349 412,837
1,855,440 1,824,138
278,486 609,171
597,019 547,761
. 2,750,000
116,290 129,344
2,847,235 5,860,414
4,255,991 3,687,154
458,009 576,402
4,714,000 4,263,556

7,561,235

10,123,970

207,139 471,774
67,844,642 72,041,352
1,159,304 1,152,625
211,815 390,845
50,557 46,493
(3,210,876) (5,093,128)
$ 66055442 _$ 68,538,187

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

15| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

___2016 2015
Operating Revenues
Rental of Facilities $ 9,487,497 9,168,399
Fee Revenues:
Golf Course Operations 1,869,207 1,718,627
Mooring, Dockage, Pier Usage and Boat Registrations 955,138 1,128,829
All Other 117,402 133,940
2,941,747 2,981,396
Fuel Sales 765,841 904,031
Concession and Other Miscellaneous 963,439 847,934
Total Operating Revenues 14,158,524 13,901,760
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits 6,631,406 6,555,847
Depreciation 6,110,575 6,222,153
Building and Facilities Maintenance 1,511,832 1,414,386
Professional Services 444,272 504,496
Utilities 887,474 964,542
General and Administrative 750,054 776,825
All Other 940,721 1,123,254
Total Operating Expenses 17,276,334 17,561,503
Operating Loss (3,117,810) (3,659,743)
Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Interest Income 3,343 3,474
Interest Expense (39,406) (127,638)
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets - 1,000
‘Gain on Insurance Proceeds - 220,036
Total Nonoperating Income (Expense) (36,063) 96,872
Loss Before Contributed Capital (3,153,873) (3,562,871)
Contributed Capital 671,128 5,095,727
Change in Net Position (2,482,745) 1,532,856
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated 68,538,187 71,450,075
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle - (3,845,147)
Prior Period Adjustment - (599,597)
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as Restated 68,538,187 67,005,331

Net Position at End of Year

$ 66,055,442 $ 68,538,187

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

l6|Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Personnel for Services and Benefits
Cash Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Net (Repayments) Borrowings on the Provident Bank Revolving

Line of Credit Facility

Interest Paid on the Provident Bank Line of Credit Facility
Net Cash (Used) Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Contributed Capital by Federal and State Government
Cash Received from Sale of Capital Assets
Cash Received from Insurance Recoveries
Purchase of Capital Assets
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Repayment of Long-Term Liabilities
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Income Received

Increase {(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

2016 2015
15,555,389 $ 13,960,133
(6,444,784) (6,622,376)
(4,889,680) (4,590,038)

4,220,925 2,747,719
(2,750,000) 750,000
(15,780) (61,194)
(2,765,780) 688,806
671,128 5,095,727

- 1,000

- 220,036
(1,811,512) (7,019,517)
(23,626) (66,444)
(116,289) (1,686,213)
(1,280,299) (3,455,411)
3,343 3,474
178,189 (15,412)
2,132,298 2,147,710
2,310,487 _$ 2,132,298

See accompanying notes to financlal statements.

17 | Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

(CONCLUDED)

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Change in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
All Other

Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Accounts Receivable

Other Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Unearned Revenues

Net Pension Liability

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Noncash Activity:
Acquisition of Capital Assets

Less: Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
as of Year-end

Add: Payments on Short-Term Trade Accounts to Finance
Acquisitions of Capital Assets

Payments for the Acquisition of Capital Assets

2016 2015
$ (3,117,810) $  (3,659,743)
6,110,575 6,222,153
(20,000) 22,000
(1,222) (26,109)
1,224,324 62,482
3,808 62,885
(363,512) (94,156)
31,302 158,807
49,258 4,300
568,837 (476,674)
(264,635) 471,774

$ 4,220,925 $ 2,747,719

$ 1,480,827 § 5,774,817
(278,486) (609,171)
609,171 1,853,871

$ 1,811,512 § 7,019,517

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

18 | Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016 and 2015

1.

Reporting Entity

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") is the successor entity to the Pease Redevelopment
Commission ("PRC"). The PRC was created on March 21, 1989 by an act of the General Court of
the State of New Hampshire (the “State”). The mandate of the PRC was to prepare a
comprehensive plan for the conversion and redevelopment of Pease Air Force Base. The guiding
principles of the plan were job creation, fiscal viability, economic development, and
environmental quality.

Effective June 1, 1990, the PRC was dissolved and PDA was established as its successor with the
goals of converting and redeveloping the Pease International Tradeport ("Tradeport”). PDA is a
component unit of the State and Is discretely presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State.

PDA is a body corporate and politic with a governing body of seven members. The Governor and
State legislative Ieadership appoint four members and the City of Portsmouth ("COP”) and the
Town of Newington appoint three members.

Pursuant to Chapter 290, Laws of 2001, the New Hampshire State Port Authority ("Port”), a
former department of the primary State government, was transferred to PDA effective July 1,
2001. In doing so, the State authorized the transfer of functions, powers and duties of the Port
to PDA, acting through the Division of Ports and Harbors ("PDA-DPH"). PDA-DPH is charged with
the responsibility to: 1) plan for the maintenance and development of the ports, harbors and
navigable tidal rivers of the State; 2) foster and stimulate commerce and the shipment of freight;
3) aid in the development of salt water fisheries and associated industries; 4) cooperate with
any federal agencies or departments in planning the maintenance, development, and use of the
State ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers; and 5) plan, develop, maintain, use and operate
land transportation facilities within a 15 mile radius of the PDA-DPH headquarters in Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

As a result of the transfer of the Port to PDA, the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund
was transferred to PDA. This fund was set up for the purposes of initiating and implementing
harbor dredging projects and maintalning public piers. On July 1, 2001, also as a resuit of the
transfer of the Port to the PDA, the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was transferred to the PDA.
The Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was established in July 1994 by the Port through a Federal
Economic Development Administration grant in the amount of $810,000. The grant funds and
related interest earned thereon provide a revolving loan fund to offer direct assistance to the
fishing industry and to aid in the creation of economic opportunities within the industry.

Pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of 2008, House Bill 65 was enacted by the State Legisiature on
July 11, 2008. The bill: 1) provides that service of non-classified employees of PDA shall be
credited as continuous State service for all purposes; 2) makes PDA fund a nonlapsing fund for
the benefit of PDA-DPH; 3) requires a biennial report of DPA-DPH; and 4) repeals provisions
relative to coordination with the Department of Resources and Economic Development, reports
on economic development programs and the Harbor Management Fund.

19 | Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

1. Reporting Entity (concluded)

On May 12, 2008, the State, through House Bill 1168-FN-LOCAL, passed legislation that requires
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation ("NHDOT”) to negotiate a lease, which
became effective November 1, 2008, with PDA for the operation of Skyhaven Airport (“"DAW")
located in Rochester, New Hampshire. With the passage of Chapter 113, Laws of 2009, enacted
on June 22, 2009, the NHDOT was directed to convey ownership of DAW to PDA. The law required
that PDA accept ownership of, manage and operate DAW, and act as the official Airport owner,
operator, and sponsor. PDA accepted this transfer of ownership, from and after July 1, 2009
with no liability relative to any regulatory matters or causes of action arising prior to November
1, 2008.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of PDA were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP”) and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”), which is the primary standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. PDA uses enterprise fund reporting,
which uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash_and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, include cash which is
either held in demand deposit or short-term money market accounts, and highly liquid savings
deposits and investments with original maturities less than three months from the date acquired.

PDA maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. PDA has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Recejvable

Accounts receivable are carried at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Receivable
balances also include outstanding loans from the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, including principal
plus accrued interest. Management provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on an
analysis of accounts that are delinquent based on payment terms. Accounts are written off when
deemed uncollectible.

Capital Assets

Land, equipment, and buildings and facilities Improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed using a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is
principally five to thirty-five years. Capital asset acquisitions that equal or exceed $5,000 are
capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged against income as incurred, while
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset | Years
Buildings 35
Facilities Improvements 20
Equipment 5

20| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination, or death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave
(subject to certain limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The liability for vacation leave
is based on the amount earned but not used; for sick leave, it is an estimated amount based on
the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would be paid upon termination. The
liability for both amounts is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and Is calculated
based on the pay or salary rates In effect as of the date of the statements of net position,

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include advance greens fees for the golf course, which are based upon a
percentage allocation of the total days the course expects to operate. In addition, unearned
revenues are recorded for mooring permits for the harbors and tidal waters and are based on
the expiration date of the permit. Rental income received in advance is also classified as
unearned revenues,

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System ("NHRS”) and additions to/deductions
from the NHRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the NHRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Net Position

Net position is presented in the following categories:

» Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of long and
short-term debt that relates to the purchase of those assets.

* Restricted for specific purpose represents amounts that are expendable but
whose use is subject to an externally imposed restriction.

» Unrestricted represents the remaining balance of net position after the above
net position categories have been determined.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, management applies unrestricted net position first, unless a determination is made
to use restricted net position. PDA's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the
intended use and legal requirements. Management typicailly makes this decision on a
transactional basis at the incurrence of the expenditure.

Revenue Recognition

Income from rental of facilities is recognized over the term of the lease net of provisions for
uncollectible accounts. Various other revenues are recorded when earned which is generally
when the related services are performed.

21| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)

3.

Operating and Nonoperating Income ses

PDA distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items in the
preparation of its financial statements. PDA's principal operating revenues result from charges
to tenants for the lease or license of property, providing services, and delivering goods.

Operating expenses for PDA include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are
reported as nonoperating Income and expenses.

Contributed Capital and Grants

Federal grants, received on a reimbursement basis, are recorded as contributed capital when
the related expenditures are capital related. Non-capital related grants are recognized as grant
revenue on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as other
miscellaneous revenues.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financlal statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

During the year ended June 30, 2015, PDA adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to
the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 (the new accounting
standards). The changes made to the basic financial statements to comply with the new
accounting standards were reported as an adjustment as of the beginning of the year ended
June 30, 2015. Because it was not practical for PDA to determine the amounts of all deferred
inflows of resources and outflows of resources related to the pension plan as of June 30, 2014,
the beginning balances of deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources
related to pensions have not been reported. The impact of the adoption of the new accounting
standards as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

July 1, 2015
Net Pension Liability as of the measurement -
date of June 30, 2013 $ 4,163,828
Contributions made in 2014 after the measurement
date included in deferred outflows of resources (318,681)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle $ 3,845,147

22| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, PDA’s deposits may not be
returned to it. State Statute RSA 12-G: 8 (XIII) empowers PDA to invest and reinvest its funds
and take and hold property as security for the payment of funds so invested. PDA’s investment
policy is more restrictive than applicable New Hampshire law in that it restricts investments to
the following: New Hampshire public deposit investment pool, federal agency securities,
repurchase agreements, commercial paper, money market funds, and certificates of deposit.
PDA’s policy does not explicitly address custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, substantially all of PDA’s cash and equivalents were insured by

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Depositors Insurance Fund. At June 30, 2016

and 2015, cash and cash equivalents of $30,706 and $37,340, respectively, was collateralized

by a Stand-by Letter of Credit at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cleveland Pittsburgh Branch.
5. Current Accounts Receivable - Net

Current accounts receivable - net was represented by the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Tenants $ 529,608 ¢ 985,075
Intergovernmental 66,138 931,108
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (7,000) (17,000)

$ 588,746 $ 1,899,183

6. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents was represented by the following at June 30:

. 2016 2015
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance $ 473,958 - ¢ 448,856
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund : 77,625 372,900
Foreign Trade Zone 45,557 53,675

$ 597,140 4 875,431

7. Restricted Accounts Receivable - Net

Restricted accounts receivable was represented by the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Due Within One Year $ 130,940 $ 115,457
Due in More Than One Year 953,863 665,625
Tenants 7,912 12,818
Intergovernmentai - 202,702
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - (10,000)
$ 1,092,715 $ 986,602

23 |Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

8. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Restated
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2015 Additions Disposals Transfers 2016
Land $ 7,520,786 $ - $ - $ - $
7,520,786
Facilities
Improvements
128,141,885 - - 11,129,950 139,271,835
Equipment 13,286,576 - - 409,355 13,695,931
Construction in
.Process 10,606,490 1,480,827 - {11,553,241) 534,076
159,555,737 1,480,827 - (13,936) 161,022,628
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (86,323,766) (6,110,575) - - (92,434,341)
Total Capital
Assets $ 73,231,971  $ (4,629,748) $ - $ (13,936) $
68,588,287
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:
Restated Restated
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2014 Additions Disposals Transfers 2015
Land $ 7,499,464 $ - $ = 8 21,322 $ 7,520,786
Facilities
Improvements
126,491,862 = - 1,650,023 128,141,885
Equipment 13,158,195 - (29,761) 158,142 13,286,576
Construction in
Process 6,661,160 5,774,817 - (1,829,487) 10,606,490
153,810,681 5,774,817 (29,761) - 159,555,737
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (80,131,374) (6,222,153) 29,761 - (86,323,766)
Total Capital
Assets $ 73,679,307 $ (447,336) $ - $ - $73,231,971

24| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

9. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues (which are recognized when cash, receivables or other assets are recorded
prior to their being earned) consisted of the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Mooring Permits $ 238,520 $ 246,962
Golf Course Membership Fees 209,405 . 205,265
All Other 149,094 95,534
$ 597,019 $ 547,761

Mooring permits and golf course membership fees are collected primarily during the months of
January through March and amortized ratably over the corresponding seasons.

10. Revolving Line of Credit Facility

PDA currently has a $5,000,000 unsecured Revolving Line of Credit Facility ("RLOC") secured through
The Provident Bank, which matures December 31, 2016. The terms of the RLOC provide that a) the
loan shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the thirty (30) day Federal Home Loan Bank
(Boston) plus 250 basis points; and b) PDA shall maintain various covenants that are to be reported
on periodically. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the interest rate was 3.11% and 2.86%, respectively.
The proceeds of any draw on the RLOC are to be used for general working capital purposes of PDA.
The following table reflects a complete reconciliation of the RLOC for the years ended June 30:

2016 2015
Amount Outstanding at Beginning of Year $ 2,750,000 $ 2,000,000
Drawdowns 1,000,000 4,250,000
Repayments (3,750,000) (3,500,000)
Amount Outstanding at End of Year $ - $ 2,750,000

11. Due to City of Portsmouth ~ Waste Water Treatment Facility

In December 2000, the State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program’s debt outstanding
of $6,444,630 was assigned to COP. A supplemental loan agreement was entered into between
the State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program and COP in order to finance the
construction of the wastewater treatment plant upgrade. In conjunction with the assignment of
the debt to COP, a similar portion of the leasehold improvement for the wastewater treatment
facility was also transferred to COP. PDA agreed to pay an amount totaling $2,307,064 to COP.
Annual payments plus interest at 4.50% are payable through 2020. Amounts totaling
$465,159 and $581,448 were outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Debt service
requirements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 116,290 $ 20,764 $ 137,054

2018 116,290 15,573 131,863

2019 116,290 10,382 126,672

2020 116,289 5,192 121,481
$ 465,159 $ 51,911 $ 517,070

25| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

12. Changes in Long~-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
July 1, June 30, One
2015 Additions Reductions 2016 Year
Net Pension Liability $ 3,687,154 $ 568,837 $ - $ 4,255,991 $ -
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water )
Treatment Facility 581,448 - (116,289) 465,159 116,290
Compensated
Absences- Net 111,244 - (2,104) 109,140 -
Advance from Tenant 13,054 - (13,054) = -
$ 4,392,900 $ 568,837 $ (131,447) $ 4,830,290 $ 116,290

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
July 1, June 30, One
2014 Additions Reductions 2015 Year
Net Pension Liability - $ 4,163,828 $ - $(476,674) $ 3,687,154 $ -
Line of Credit Note
The Provident Bank
@ 3.11% 1,218,820 - (1,218,820) - -
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water
Treatment Facility 697,738 - (116,290) 581,448 116,290
Line of Credit Note
The Provident Bank
@ 3.46% 351,103 - (351,103) < -
Compensated
Absences- Net 102,032 9,212 - 111,244 -
Advance from Tenant 39,163 # (26,109) 13,054 13,054
$ 6,572,684 ~$ 9,212  $(2,188,996) $ 4,392,900 $ 129,344

26 |Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

13.

14.

15.

Rentzl of Facilities

PDA has leasing arrangements with various parties for the rental of land, buildings, office space,
and airplane hangars. Rentals are generally based upon set rental fees with additional payments
based upon gallons of fuel sold or dispensed, ramp parking fees per aircraft, and concession
fees based upon a stated percentage of car rentals. Lease arrangements are primarily for periods
ranging from one to fifty years. These leases meet the criteria for classification as operating
leases. PDA-DPH has leases, licenses, and other arrangements with various parties for the use
of land, warehouse, and storage facilities.

At June 30, 2016, the projected minimum future revenue from noncancelable rental agreements
is approximately:

Year Amount

2017 $ 9,542,000

2018 8,489,000

2019 7,765,000

2020 7,617,000

2021 7,193,000
Thereafter 81,580,000

$ 122,186,000

Municipal Service Fees

Effective July 1, 1998, PDA entered into an amended municipal services agreement with COP
and the Town of Newington to provide various municipal services, including police, fire, and
public works at the Tradeport. This agreement specifies that PDA shall pay COP a fee for the
cost of services equal to the amount that would have been paid annually as ad valorem taxes
excluding any school tax component in respect to such property within the Airport District. COP
is responsible for service costs owed to the Town of Newington. This agreement excludes, as
part of the allocated area, the space occupied by PDA and any space for public use in the PSM
Terminal. The agreement Includes completed facilities other than PDA’s golf course or airport
terminals within the Airport District operated by PDA for public or other use. Any tenant located
outside the Airport District, unless otherwise exempt from taxation, shall pay to COP a payment
in lieu of taxes in accordance with the provisions of the New Hampshire law. This agreement
shall continue to be in force until one of the parties terminates the agreement in writing.

Airport Joint Use Agreement

The Department of the Air Force and PDA are parties to an Airport Joint Use Agreement
("Agreement”) regarding the required use of the airport facilities at the Tradeport by the New
Hampshire Air National Guard as well as for other occasional government aircraft. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the federal government has the use of the airport
facilities in common with other users of the airport together with all necessary and conventional
rights of ingress and egress to and from the related facilities located at the airport.

The federal government is responsible for the functions detailed in the Agreement, including,
but not limited to, the following: air traffic control services, fire protection, and crash rescue.
PDA Is responsible for certain services and functions, including, but not limited to, the following:
maintenance of certain facilities, utilities, and other related services in connection with
maintaining an airport facility in accordance with Federal Aviation Administration requirements.
The current Agreement Is effective through September 30, 2018.

27 |Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

16. Risk Management

17.

PDA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; and natural disaster for which the PDA carries insurance.

PDA has a comprehensive airport liability insurance policy that will provide coverage generally
up to $25,000,000 for each occurrence and in the aggregate in any oneé annual period of
insurance. Other insurance coverage includes automotive, crime, employment practices, fire,
general liability, pollution, theft, and workers’ compensation. There have been no significant
changes in insurance coverage during the past fiscal year. Settlements did not exceed coverage
amounts during fiscal years 2016 and 2015.

In addition to purchasing insurance coverages, PDA maintains a risk transfer program. The PDA's
agreements and leases include requirements to provide insurance coverage and coverage
provisions, which include: 1) naming PDA as an additional insured; 2) naming PDA as loss payee
on property coverage; 3) a waiver of subrogation; and 4) providing that such coverages be
primary and non-contributing with respect to coverage PDA maintains.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

PDA participates in the NHRS, which, as governed by RSA 100-A, Is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer contributory public employee defined benefit pension plan qualified under section
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and funded through a trust, which is exempt from
tax under Code section 501(a). NHRS is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service,
disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their beneficiaries. NHRS retired
members receive a lifetime pension. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school
teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the
State are eligible and required to participate in NHRS. RSA 100-A specifies the benefit terms
provided to the members of NHRS.

Although benefits are funded by member contributions, employer contributions and trust fund
assets, NHRS computes benefits on the basis of members’ Average Final Compensation ("AFC")
and years of creditable service. Unlike a defined contribution plan, NHRS benefits provided to
members are not dependent upon the amount of contributions paid into NHRS or the investment

return on trust assets.

To qualify for a normal service retirement, members must have attained the age of 60 years old.

However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 2011 shall not recelve a service
retirement allowance until attaining the age of 65. The member may receive a reduced allowance
after age 60 if the member has at least 30 years of creditable service. The allowance shall be
reduced based on a formula, for each month by which the date on which benefits commence
precedes the month after which the member attains 65 years of age, by % of one percent.

For members retiring prior to the age of 65, the yearly pension amount is 1.67% of AFC,
multiplied by years of creditable service. For members retiring at 65 or older, the yearly pension
amount is 1.52% of AFC, multiplied by years of creditable service. For members vested prior to
January 1, 2012, AFC is based on the highest three years of creditable service. For members
not vested prior to January 1, 2012, or hired on or after July 1, 2011, AFC is based on a member’s
highest five years of creditable service. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated

28 | Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)
Plan Description (concluded)

with an appropriate graduated reduction based on years and months of creditable service that
the member has at the time of retirement.

Contributions Required and Made

The Retirement Plan is financed by contributions from the members, the PDA, and investment
earnings. Contributions required to cover that amount of cost not met by the members’
contributions are determined by a biennial actuarial valuation by the Retirement Plan’s actuary.
By statute, the Board of Trustees of NHRS is responsible for the certification of employer and
member contribution rates.

Commencing July 1, 2011, all Group I employees are responsible to accrue contributions at
7.00% while Group II (Police) employees accrue contributions at a rate of 11.55%.

In terms of the employer share of contributions made to the Retirement Plan, the pension
contribution rate for Group I employees was 10.51% for the two-year period ending June 30,
2015. Effective July 1, 2015, the employer share was increased to 10.86% and will remain fixed
through June 30, 2017.

For Group II employees, effective July 1, 2015, the contribution rate increased from 21.45% to
22.54% and will remain fixed through June 30, 2017.

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, contributions to NHRS were $417,908 and
$360,425, respectively.

Pension Liabiliti ion Expense, and Deferre fl f Resources and Defe I
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, PDA reported a liability of $4,255,991 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2014 and a measurement date of June 30, 2015. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015. PDA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, PDA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.1074%.

At June 30, 2015, PDA reported a liability of $3,687,154 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2013 and a measurement date of June 30, 2014. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014. PDA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, PDA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.0982%,

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, PDA recognized pension expense of $358,598 and
$261,369, respectively.

29| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

At June 30, 2016, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments $ - $ 113,746
Differences between expected and actual experience - 93,393
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions 358,441 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 417,908 =
Balances as of June 30, 2016 $ 776,349 $ 207,139

At June 30, 2015 PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments $ - $ 471,774
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions 52,412 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 360,425 N
Balances as of June 30, 2015 $ 412,837 $ 471,774

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended Amount
June 30

2017 $ 1,670
2018 1,670
2019 1,670
2020 126,200
2021 20,092

$ 151,302

30| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2014, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2015
measurements:

7.75% net of investment expenses, including inflation
3.75 - 3.80% average, including inflation
3.00%

Investment Rate of Return
Wage Inflation Rate
Price Inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 mortality table, projected to 2020 with Scale AA. The
table includes a margin of 15% for men and 17% for women for mortality improvements. The
actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2005 - June 30, 2010.

-Term Ra urn

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Following is a table present target allocations and the geometric long-term
rates of return for 2015 and 2014:

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Asset Class Allocation Allocation 2014 2015
2014 2015
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50% 3.25% 3.00%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 3.25 3.00
Total Domestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 13.00 4.25 4.00
Emerging International Equities 7.00 7.00 6.50 6.00
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 18.00 4.50 (0.47) (0.70)
Short Duration - 2.50 - (1.00)
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income - 11.00 - 0.28
Unconstrained Fixed Income - 7.00 - 0.16
High-Yield Bonds 1.50 - 1.50 -
Global Bonds (Unhedged) 5.00 - (1.75) -
Emerging Market Debt (External) 0.50 - 2.00 -
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 5.00 5.00 5.75 5.50
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.50
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 3.25 3.50
Opportunistic 2,00 5.00 2.50 2.75
Total Alternative Investments 25.00 25.00
Total 100.00% 100.00%

31| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

17. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (concluded)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. For
purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are
projected based on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are
determined based on the pension plan’s actuaria! funding policy and as required by RSA 100-
A:16. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future beneflt payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabllity calculated using the
discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-
point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
PDA'’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 5,602,458 $ 4,255,991 $ 3,108,119

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
Issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS’ webslte at https://www.nhrs.org.

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at current market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date accounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

18. Other Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, NHRS administers four cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined postemployment medical subsidiary healthcare plans designated in statute by
membership type. The four plans are Group II Police Officer and Firefighters, Group I Teachers,
Group I Political Subdivision Employees and Group I State Employees. Collectively, they are
referred to as the “OPEB Plans”.

32| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

18. Other Post-Employment Benefitls (concluded)

RSA 21-I: 30 specifies that the State provide certain heaith care insurance benefits for retired
employees. These benefits include group hospitalization, hospital medical care and surgical care.
Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or before June 30, 2003 and have
10 years of service, may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic basis rather than a lump
sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires State Group I employees
hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of State service in order to qualify for health
coverage benefits. These and similar benefits for active employees are authorized by RSA 21-1:
30 and provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk Management Fund (the “Fund”),
which Is the State’s self-insurance fund implemented in October 2003 for active State employees
and retirees.

The State Legislature has indicated it plans to only partially fund (on a pay-as-you-go basis) the
annual required contribution ("ARC”), an actuarially determined rate in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.

Plan members are not required to contribute to the OPEB Plans. PDA makes annual contributions
to the OPEB Plans equal to the amount required by RSA 100-a:52, which was 1.64% of covered
compensation during the year ended June 30, 2016 and 1.62% for the year ended June 30,
2015. PDA's contributions to NHRS for the OPEB Plans for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015 were $55,827 and $55,556, respectively, which were equal to its ARC.

Detailed information about the OPEB Plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS' website at https://www.nhrs.org.

19. Commitments and Contingencies

Subsurface Investigation

During site subsurface investigations conducted at the Market Street Terminal (performed, in
part, to support storm water system Improvements), the PDA-DPH’s environmental consultant
found several areas of subsurface soils contaminated with significant levels of the heavy metal
mercury. Initial investigations reveal that this contamination is most likely associated with a
commercial wood preservation process that was located on a portion of the site and probably
operated on the site sometime after 1875 and terminated operations before the State acquired
title to the property in the 1960's and prior to July 1, 2001 when PDA-DPH operations were
transferred from the State to the PDA. The completed study has been submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and management is awaiting its review and
comment. As of June 30, 2016, no liability has been recorded for future pollution remediation
obligations.

Grant Administration

PDA receives federal grants, which are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although these audits could result in expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants,
it is believed that any required reimbursements would not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

33| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

19. Commitments and Contingencies (concluded)
n ion

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $881,000 and $1,614,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Litigation

From time to time, PDA is involved in pending or threatened lawsuits encountered in the normal
course of business. Management of PDA believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, to
the extent not covered by insurance, will not have a material impact on PDA’s financial position
or operations.

20. Subsequent Events

GASB Statement No. 75

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, was issued in June 2015. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits
other than pension (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is
provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reported for all OPEB with regard
to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The provisions of this Statement will
be effective for PDA beginning with its year ending June 30, 2018. Management has not currently
determined what impact the implementation of this Statement will have on the financial
statements.

NHRS

On July 1, 2016, the Board of Trustees of NHRS announced a change to adopt revised actuarial
assumptions based on the results of a five-year experience study conducted by the retirement
systems consulting actuary. Included in these changes will be the lowering of the assumed rate
of return from 7.75% to 7.25%. This rate will be used in September to set employer contribution
rates for fiscal years 2018 and 2019. This information will also be used to determine the June
30, 2017 net pension liability.

Potential Liability

In September 2016, PDA received notice of the Conservation Law Foundation’s intent to sue
under the Citizen Suit provisions of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA), respectively. The CWA Notice alleges that PDA is illegally discharging
stormwater from the Pease International Tradeport into the waters of the United States without
a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit. The RCRA Notice includes allegations
relative to the storage and disposal of perfluorooctanoic acid and perfluorooctanesulfonic acid
and contamination to the surface water and ground water. At this time, a lawsuit has not been
filed against the PDA. Further, management believes there is presently insufficient information
to express any opinion as to the likely outcome of these matters or to otherwise determine their
financial impact, if any.

3| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2016 and 2015

20. Subsequent Events (concluded)

Revolving Line of Credit

On September 15, 2016, PDA’s Board of Directors approved a Loan Modification Agreement with
The Provident Bank to extend the $5,000,000 RLOC through December 31, 2017.

21, Prior Period Adjustment

The 2014 financial statements have been restated to expense amounts previously recorded to
construction in progress for which management determined that there was no ongoing useful
life. The restatement resulted in a decrease to net position of $599,597 as of June 30, 2015 and
2014.

35| Page



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

53



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Schedule of Collective Net Pension Liabiljty

JUNE 30,
2015 2014 2013

Employer Proportion of the Collective

Net Pension Liability 0.1074% 0.0982% 0.0967%
Employer's Proportionate Share of the

Collective Net Pension Liability $ 4,255,991 $ 3,687,154 $ 4,163,828
Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 3,430,000 $ 3,029,000 $ 2,843,000
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Collective

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of the

Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 124.08% 121.73% 146.46%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a %

of the Total Pension Liability 65.47% 66.32% 59.81%

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

ule of Employe ibutions
JUNE 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013

Required Employer
Contribution $ 417,908 $ 360,425 $ 318,681 $ 241,055

Actual Employer
Contributions $ 417,908 $ 360,425 $ 318,681 $ 241,055

Excess/(Deficiency)
of Employer
Contributions $ - $ - $ - $ -

Employer's Covered
Employee Payroll $ 3,848,140 $ 3,430,000 $ 3,029,000 $ 2,843,000

Employer Contribution as a %
of the Employer's
Covered-Employee
Payroll 10.86% 10.51% 10.52% 8.48%

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

36| Page



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014

iote equi S lementary Information

Valuation Date: June 30, 2009 for determining for Fiscal Year 2013 contributions
June 30, 2011 for determining the Fiscal Year 2014 contributions
June 30, 2013 for determining the Fiscal Year 2015 contributions
June 30, 2014 for determining the Net Pension Liability

Notes: The roll-forward of total pension liability from June 30, 2014 to June 30,
2015 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced by actual benefit
payments.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2012-2013 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation. Actuarial
determined contribution rates for the 2014-2015 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation. Actuarial
determined contribution rates for the 2015-2016 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.

37| Page



Pease Development Authority

Reports Required by Government Auditing
Standards and Uniform Guidance

Year Ended June 30, 2016

R e,

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOFPMENT AUTHORITY

FORTSHMOUTH. HH



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

AND UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Year Ended June 30, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs:

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Section II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are
Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Section III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Page(s)

9-10
10

11



B BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Pease Development
Authority (PDA), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise PDA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
REPORT DATE.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PDA’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of PDA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
PDA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of PDA’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did
identify a deficiency in internal control, described under finding 2016-001 in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, that we consider to be a material
weakness.

Bangar, ME o Poitzend ME ¢ Manchester NH e Chanlegton Wy
www.berrydunn.cont



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PDA's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

PDA’s Response to Finding

PDA’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. PDA’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of PDA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PDA’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any

other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE



B BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited Pease Development Authority’s (PDA) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Office of Management and Budget Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for
the year ended June 30, 2016. PDA’s major federal program is identified in the summary of

auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms

and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for PDA’s major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that couid have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about PDA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as

we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of PDA’s

compliance.

Bango, ME » Porttai), ME » Manuchester NH o Clhialeszon Wy
wwaw, herrydunn.cont



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, PDA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal program for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of PDA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered PDA's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
its major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of PDA's internal contro! over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies.in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform
Guidance

We have audited the basic financial statements of PDA as of and for the year ended June
30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
PDA’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE, which
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
REPORT DATE



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Grant/Pass-Through Federal
Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number

U.S. Department of Commerce:
Direct:
Economic Adjustment Assistance: -
01-19-63007 11.307

Total U.S. Department of Commerce

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Direct:
Investments for Public Works and Economic
Development Facilities 97.036
Port Security Grant Program 97.056

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security
U.S. Department of Transportation:

Direct:
Airport Improvement Program:
3-33-0016-49-2011 20.106

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire:
New Hampshire Department of Transportation:
Airport Improvement Program:

SPG-15-04-2012 20.106

SPG-15-05-2012 20.106

SPG-16-01-2013 20.106

SPG-16-02-2013 20.106

SPG-16-03-2013 20.106
Highway Planning and Construction:

SPG-15-06-2015 20.205

Total United States Department of Transportation

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

6

2016
Federal

Expenditures

$1,191,933

1,191,933

121,300

17,760

139,060

32,474

13,955
64,151
999
160,387
48,053

104,120
424,139
$ 1,755,132



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes
the federal grant activity of Pease Development Authority (PDA) during the year ended
June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the
operations of PDA, it is not intended to, and does not, present the net position, changes
in net position or cash flows of PDA. :

2. ignificant A i ici

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian
Tribal Governments, for federal agreements entered into before December 26, 2014,
and the Uniform Guidance for federal agreements entered into on or after December
26, 2014, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

PDA incurred the eligible expenditures for the Investments for Public Works and
Economic Development Facilities program during the year ended June 30, 2015. The
Federal Emergency Management Agency approved the related project worksheet
during the year ended June 30, 2016. As a result, PDA included the eligible
expenditures in the Schedule for the year ended June 30, 2016.

PDA has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.
3. Calculation of i | men i E ndi

Economic Adjustment Assistance grant expenditures reported in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards have been calculated as follows:

Balance of revolving loan fund loans outstanding $ 1,084,803
Cash and cash equivalent balances 77,625
Administrative expenses paid out during the fiscal year 29,505

$1,191.933



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Resuits
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? X _yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? yes X__ none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X_no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to
- be material weaknesses? yes X __ none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major Unmodified
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance? yes X _no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

11.307 U.S. Department of Commerce:
Economic Adjustment Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section II Findin lati he Financial ments Whi re R i
be R rdance with G nment Auditing Stand,

Finding Number 2016-001
Criteria

Management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. When capital asset projects are substantially complete,
accounting standards require organizations start depreciating the assets over the useful
lives. In addition, construction in process should only include expenditures that will provide
an initial useful life expending beyond a single reporting period.

Condition Found and Context

During our audit, while reviewing PDA’s 18 open construction projects, we noted several
for which the related capital assets were placed in service during the year, but were still
considered construction-in-process (CIP) for accounting purposes with no depreciation
taken. During management’s review of the accumulated costs associated with the projects
that should have been placed into service for accounting purposes, it was identified that
some legal expenses had been capitalized as part of CIP in years ended prior to June 30,
2014 that should have been recorded as legal expense in the years incurred since the
underlying services did not provide an initial useful life extending beyond a single reporting
period.

Cause and Effect

The schedule of CIP was not being adequately reviewed for completed projects and legal
expenses were allowed to be capitalized for one large project. Prior to adjustment, the net
position was overstated by approximately $666,000.

Recommendation

We recommend management perform a periodic review (at least quarterly) of the CIP
listing. If a project has been completed and been placed in service, the related costs should
be moved from CIP to the appropriate capital asset category and depreciation of the asset
over its useful life should be recorded. In addition, the costs included in CIP should be
reviewed to determine that the related costs will have an initial useful life extending beyond
the current year.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONCLUDED)

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Views of a Responsible Official and Corrective Action Plan

We concur with the proposed recommendation relative to ensuring that once a capital
project is placed “in-service’ that it is then transferred, on a timely basis, from construction
in process to the specific capital asset category. We have modified our internal control
policies to ensure that 1) routine discussions are held with the capital project manager to
best determine an “in-service” date even to the extent of phasing in a capital project when
it is substantially complete and 2) depreciation is recognized at the time the asset is placed
“in-service”.

In regard to the approximately $600,000 of legal expenses that had been capitalized, these
monies were spent over a four year period in support the PDA- Division of Ports and Harbors
(PDA-DPH) construction of a Storm Water Management System. The total cost of the
project was approximately $1,925,000 and included costs not only for legal fees but for
the shore side installation of new drainage lines and catch basins, the addition of primary
storm water treatment devices and the associated costs of permitting and additional
environmental investigations and subsurface soil studies and reviews. During this period,
we worked jointly with our external auditors and concluded that under Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 these legal costs were in fact “directly
attributable to placing the asset into its intended location and condition for use”. That said,
PDA’s management acknowledges that the GASB standard is certainly open to
interpretation recognizing that the net result of the prior period adjustment will decrease
capital assets and the related net investment in capital assets section of equity, and will
not impact the unrestricted net position of the PDA-DPH.

Section III. Findin i for the Major Federal Pr

None noted.

10



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

NONE

11



ALISOHLNY ANIWAOVIARD BSVRd

TYNOILYNYILNI

iSvid

ﬁﬁr

9T0¢ ‘0z ¥390.100
ONILIIW SVOLOIVIA 40 qAuvod

9T0T ‘IE 1SNDNV ONIANI
QOIY3d HINOW OML FHL YO
130dIN TVIONVYNIL LT0Z A4




[CIZ 3] N4 L {44 [ {2 {0ST) £9T IWOINI ONILVEICO 13N
'STANLIANIDE
TE09 on 80T T S00°T 8107 NOLLVIDIYd3a ow%mﬁ%ﬁ%%_ﬁwﬁzﬁw_w% .
(£ 39Vd)
ISNIdX3 ANV (IWOONT) SIASNIAINI ANV
68 049) 91 (€1) ST z ONLLYHIJdONON (IWOONI) ONILVHIdONON =
vLL'e 81 5921 £Tp o8 £82'T IWOINI DNLLYNIAO LON SILLITDVA GNY S
SV TT g I7ZT 018) I T d IS OLl NOLLYOOTIV 408V 1034IaNT =
w5 e 555 ‘ST1VS T3Nd Hdd ¥3AMOT OL 3ng
et el 0%¢ 9t tee e Gr2v IOV 433007 S1S0D INFWTINOOHD BNd =
8pE (£2) b (16) STT L SS3004d WNHIIY
_ b
£ ANVONLLDRIVA 03 MvaA 9107 AT SAISNIHEINGS =
(9 39Vd)
Y44 g 6 (82) LE 6 SADIAYIS TYNOISSI0Ud %E'ZZ AS YIMON
88 (1) 88 (sp) 0zt sz (9 29v4) SILITILLN -S1S0D ONILvVd3dOo *
FALLVYLSINIIWNGY STIVS 8T TID
T b 811 9 911 ra4s ANV V¥3aNaD WYIHOIH WOU SINNIATY
—— NOISSIONCD GSYIWDNI  *
TZe'e (e11) €67 (881) 69€ 181 SALLTIIDVA ANV SONIQTING moz:wmﬂwmmfzouﬁﬁm
Grawessovy siggngg NG -S33H 410D GISVIONT -
L08'S 981 956 T W7 1’1 ANV SOIAUIS TANNOSYE ;g 136440 “Hdd FHL NIHLIM STVS
R —— 73N Q3LVAIDLINY NVHL damot
_ (c# 39vd) %T'E AS HAMOT
05¢%T Y4 9€0°F {Z6) G5TE 790 SINNIATY DNLLVYIIO -SANNIATY ONILVYHIdO *
- SISATYNY
1I39anNg AINVIAYA IWNLDY SONVINVA 139and TYNLOY
- £ N UVIAA. 31vd ol UVIA Jlva ava NUZ<H¢<> ._-mmvn_:ﬂ £10T Ad
INZYHND  OLWVAA  WVIA ¥OT¥d  INTMUND  OLUV3A OL ¥VIA
(5,000 $)

ST0Z ANV 9T0Z ‘TE 1SNDNY
ONIGNZ AOTH3d HINOW OML IHL ¥O4
_ SISNZJX3 ANV SINNIAIY 40 INIWILVLS ILVAITOSNOD



[§133] F0E €21 [
(€€) 6L 9 (1)
(2b) 5L e C (g
(89) €eT sz (9g)
z L1 61 (6)
FONVIMVA SDOD $90D FONVIUVA
$90D aaa9mang TYALDY S3AvS
05T 92 9E0E (Z6) 8ST'E Z90'E
e (i %6 5 7z PET
961 9 £S5 01 £S5 £9
A3 b1 $9 (s) £8 8/
0/8 (z) |44 (s6) $ES 65T
016'C 81 Q97 LT 99/ £8/
565°6 (02 S8/°'T (18) 98’1 S9/'T
i13sqang FONVINVA TVNLOY FONVINVA i3baneg TYNLOY
JVIA dvY3A JLVG oL UdV3IA 41vd JLva
ANIAND OLdEv3IA UYIA S0TUd LNIHAND

(5,000 $)

Ol ¥vaA 0L ¥UvIA

STOZ ANV 9T0C ‘T€ 1SNONV
ONICGN3 dOId3d HLNOIW OML FHL 404

PEE (134
8 L9 HOFIYH NOLdINVH
(Y4 9t HOTAVH 2Ad
T <01 U31d HSId HINOWS1Y0d
O£ 14 JH0dYIY NFAYHARS
SIS s3IV _
al1anang ALY SISATYNY 1and
YINLOTIV ©  SHOLIVMISIOTY QHY ITYSA ¥alee
OLTINRIS. 110D $334 ON DMV
L3N -43HLO TV $334 HHTHOOW S SATHSHIRM AW 109 %
ASTANVHOUIW ITYAIOA GHY IDTRIVHM + 5334 N0
4709
INNIATH
NOISS3IDNOD
(4uvHD 33s)
S3A7VS 1EANn4
(LuvHD 338) e
SANNIATY 334
SIALLIIDVL
40 TYLNIY

v

T %l

A1vQ O1 HYIA SANNIAIY 335

SIANNIATY ONILVHIALO C3LVAITOSNOD



(=]
)i

M Mm w

¥

L1

anN3
HLNOIW

NNE

¥

ik
3
in
=

6¢ 8t

9 9

L4 14

€ £

99 89

[4 [4

14! 14"

L1 LT

£ €
QN3 and

HINOW  HINOW
nc ony

SNOILISGd QT4 -SISATYNY 44V1S

Nl

NOD

6%

35

NON
fiH

o]

AL™OHLNY 1480d

[ap]
1

JONVNIZ
woal

ONRIFINIONT

M o MmN

IASHUNOD 410D

NIAVHAMNS

LHOlY
HLNOWSL1HOd

ol - 1 JONVNILNIVIN

IAILLNDIX3

N3g LA

dH

NON
s

956 T

(V44 [©)]

6T) -

682 (9)

8t 8T)

LS (2]

v [4

$9T 2

589 z

[¢4)) =

87 Z

(0D (02)

8T 81

b1 6

409

WALV

31Va OL FONVIAVA
dvaa dvaA
HOTHd ANIHAND

13asang
J1va oL
HVIA

(02

9€1
£p9

NLOV
Alva ol

ST0Z ANV 9T0Z ‘IE 1SNONY

ONIGN3 OI¥3d HLINOW OML JHL ¥O4
S1I13N39 ANV SIDIAUIS TAINNOSUId A2 LVAITOSNOD

1N0 Y3ISNVIL

YIHIO TV
diNQD SEDRIOM
VOH
LNJWIHLITY
ANSNI H1Y3H

SLI43IN3g
ADNTYL

1N0 d3ASNVYL

218
ONY NOLLYOVA
Az3N¥0Y

INLLE3AC
Q3LI4ENIENON
Q31143N3g
SIADIAMIS
TINNOSYHAd

(5,000 $)



'S3IA0TJNE TYNOSVES GNY LIVEINOD ‘SIIA0TdWE GILISANIG-NON ‘SAANTE ‘T

HION
Isyepeds sdo
BRW L we)sissy
sudem kn ujwpy
dujepneg weg
Hepads sdo u.wu_ﬁnu,-
uogag = (e )
ess|ssy elhey spunoip | efieg ujqoy
— upwpy upybneKR p3 i
a)PyanIe] asyepads sdo . SIUBWDARY
Buey neaspnog sanjnieg Mmouny) wie
sueq Bu)pjng L
- ..”“”“...““m”_ Spng saeRq SeiReg
IsHjePds sdo SSRiEEa . UOJ40N 1Y
uBnouoqop
e faHM03g eipues poomupay e
JaBuliad veq aueq SjuawaAed
™ pusiesuy ppo.L,
RIoad; ueppelg .
Mnosg R num__hcﬂouum( ispeeds sda juRIS|SSY ey
] ¥ o pean Auoy Joyeiado
421135 wioL uewaio] sng N . " pown  Jusiudinby
{Asesodwiny) plowly 2aeq ueAy . xx0 qon
JuEUNEIIY Jobeue URPLAIIY
JueIsissy lodARg (N3d0) doygoid "N . ueweaos udjem 261089
. ujwpy efieqesus) e3sisay IU0YE 403NN Spunosn 1syeadg sdg ..Wum“_wnm
sjoqna Apng 23Uy - smeegoned’  awno e T
uppy 2 sonjaIRg seysneyuer pg
{msel Jogiey sy a03e v os ~ g woL Supjng e
#9142 Mndeq m uppy oo WRISAS LT esueydumo) 4d s u. b u: uiidog spuuor Jmerado
SIOIN JueiD |PEsSIEd uosiejIed ssof SUBWUOLAL OOV 1o OSINOD ISESY Juswdnba
: lefiajeig - ' AU o wesmng 24N uoJen) uedy [f ISHePLds sdo u.:h:wu: T aweesd
n :
m sabeuepy st Aoy aizeyy ''SUS2US PRAEC ] g sfma - >Uu_z_.”uM2 = eac '
40 .pwhwm_“ suopessdo aowes B o4d 3 1Ppuaiupiadng 21 SMUD
qQIRH JOID waur Zpog uoy 5 Jabeuspy 0D ¥Od . asinon :nEwuu._au
nonpeys Ases), JaBeueiy Pefosy oy p1o0)) W SOUBLRIULEK
e lu_oh..nwmi S SUOREIRN  sajew W osop Wy, ESUD U3 Apndes WBWANDT el SPRIPEY
. = apAcjdwg 3 { Biacaiod Py Asjuon usy Auesy
) |Basuno) B
Auomny 31od . SsuRL)y |eJousn @1addog edueg Jafieuey - Jobeuey JBbeiep Jebeuey Faued
Juo1RNQ  gouopesa  Mndsg == Supesuibug 200 08 =0 dodiy et
QU N
Juo2.IRY OUBE) Jauue) aly ASuUpJen yep 11eM0IS BR W ojARQg 13038 .su._lv.._d. — Hessm v
| — A £ E o N
umsissy _
== upupy
1esifnony EABDET 21
jesauen {N3do)
pue Ja1da.a|q A0p341q
Andag Uaday
aaYIUIH uuiq
403ag
BARNdAX3
' . uainn
SUOLDAUIA 40 quvod piaeg

9102 ‘IE 1SNONV -LYVHD NOILLVZINVONO |
ALT¥OHLNV INIWJOT3A3A 3SVad -



LELHT M 2p 10 jaw <5102 Adm RO Axtir

HAC NIAVHAMS
a8 68 !
TZTY 092 T6E ‘Y44 ‘ v6 ¥6 i OOE
asval 208 005 25t SFESEs Sy 8ty L]
Tz T2 ¥ 14 14V 4109 e i o5
ISIANVHOYIW e e oL ~ ”
£ST S€ ob 4> 109 Rk L
89 S Hdd ¢ .
0bT - €z - AITIONL 1SYOD w1 109 T SroTAd . oog1
1 L NIAVHAAS HADITVLOL ¢ W
£08 ¥0Z 113 £L1 1nd e ¥SE WSd - 008t F
L Y4 19 J{04dIaveL 896°1 2 m
VNLOV 910z  LT0Z HMI QLA Ad L1~
13vang alva anang vniov e
uvaa OLUVIA 3iva alva " 0KE
ANFUUND UOTHd OLUVIA  OLYUVIA ¥IHLIO TV
X £4 3 & 3 (¥4 z g [ UILYM
.mlN M |.V. ﬂ ._.mZ ..N_mI._.O |_|_< Nw .V O._“ M mZ(&O&&
£/ T 4} - Lany 710 ANV S¥Y9
901 z 91 r4 TVANLYN
ADOTONHDAL
L 9 €1 v NOLLVIWYO-NI WS0dsIa
8€1 £ £z b1 JLSYM
0s - 8 T VoI 6vb r £9 42 ALDIYIDI
vNLOV VLDV
1Isansg aiva iasang NIV i13oang alva 13sang NV
Uvaa OLuv3IA 3iva alva S3DIAN3S AVIA OLuvIA 3iva qiva -
ANTWAIND UOTUd OL¥VIA OLUVIA TYNOISSIZ0Ud INTWUND YONud OL¥VIA OLYUVIA S3ILLTILLA
(5,000 $)

STOZ ANV 9T0Z ‘T€ LSnONV
'ONIGNZT JOIM3d HLINOW OML THL ¥04
SASNIdX3 DNILVIIHO ¥IHLO A3 LVAIIOSNOD



“S3LVY 1SIHILINT LINFHRIND ANV FANLOMULS 1830 WHTL SNOT INIHIND ¥ad IHL ONIGUYDTY NOLLYWIOANI YIHLANI U0 ST#39vd JAS T

310N
8 14 id 4
S13SSY
40 21VS NO
76 o WioL
HLNOWSLY0d diHio
91 £ 40 ALD NV IWODNT
(€ m (1) m ASTYIINI
© MNvd
9/ - 1N3QIAOYd ISN3dX3
l199ang aiva 6 FA 97 £ LSIYILNE
IVOSIH QL Yv3A
ISNIdX3 LSTUIALNI r— o= 139ang Wniov
UvaA OL ¥vaA 3lvaol qiva
INIHUND

HOIHd - dv3aA OL uvaia

(5,000 $)

ST0Z ANV 9T0Z ‘TE 1SNONY |
DNIAN3 dOT¥3d HINOW OML FHL 04
ASNIdX3 (IWODNI) ONILYYIJONON A3 LVAII0OSNOD



§T9 766C
§19 ¥Z8

= TET
15 -

90T -

851 -

- 00%

- £62

5 85T°C
n 4}

- 951°C
GIDEISI  aImidalsIann

(5,000'%)

WIOL

H3IHIO MY
VYL NOITHOd

GNNH AYIHSIS
-NYOT ONIATOASY

DNIDARA
JOHUVH

ANIWIDVYNVIA
HOguvH

SANND TVYENID

SYORUVH
ANV S1¥0d
40 NOISIAIG

MOUISE AINYNAL
SANNG TVYINID

ALTHOHLNY
ANIWdOT3A3a
asvad

M
[~
[y

od
[Le)
in;

PILY

8sk
952’y

OEE99

(1210
5]

90¢
$oT'1

0£0'29

65€
LEE
980°C

NCILISOd 13N TViOL

QUDRAISTINN

ANOZ AL NOIFIOL
ONIDATAQ HOTAVH
QaNNd NVOT ONIAOTATY

QAUOJ GADTISAY -

S13SSY WIIdVO NILNIWLSIANI 13N ¢

NOILISOd 13N

NOISN3d

S32YNosAY
40 SMOTANI aniad3q

SALIIEVIT IVIOL

SAUTIIAVIT L1 ¥3H10
ALTIGVIT NOISNAd L3N

SAILINIAVIT ANTHUNONON
SALUIEVIT NN Tv10L

SALLIIGVIT 17 -NOLLYOd ANIHAND
ALTTIOV4 D01 DNIATOAIY

INNIATY QaINEYANN

NOLLONYLSNOD -T18VAYd SLNNODOY
1aYAVd SINNODDY

SIALLITISVIT LINTHUND !
SALTIIIAEVIT

S50°89

0697

£60T
£65

6977C
L9

685
72

N

[y
M)
[
[

€€879

989

LpT'49

§97T

0901
ST9

658E
0Ty

LSy

766°'C

NOILISOd L3N 40 SINIW3LV1LS d3LVAIiOSNOD

NOISN3d

SADYNOSIY 40
SMOT1LN0 a3Nadaa

SIISSVY V1oL

STTEVAIIOIY L7-¥3IHLO

(brs-0r# S39V4) SSID0Ud
NI NOLLONY1SNOD

JINIWAIND3
GNVY SONIQTING ‘GNY1

SLIASSV TV.LIdvD

SA3SSY 3 LOTLSIY WI0L

13N
-STTEVAIZOAY SINNODDY

SINTTVAIND3I ANV HSYD -
§13SSY g3 LDTNLISTY

S13SSV LNFHdND WI0L
51355V ¥W3aHLO

JAN
-A1aVAIZOII SLNNODDY

SINTTWAINDI ANV HSVD
S13SSY INFWUND
Si3ssv



T4

6

S¢

A3LLIWNENS vad ana

1NNOWY JONYIVE

Seb
01t
zot's

cot't
992’1
16
£06

Jlva ol
Q3AIIDIY

(s,000 $)

(£2)
(9)
(zzg)
(9e1)
(v9)
(s5)
(16)
(85)
(€6)
(8)
((X74)]

FUVHS
vad

0€s
911
6EV'E
9€1
¥9

SS

16
€911
898'T
66
[TAM

ilva oL
a3anzdxa

6£9

109°e

pbe'T
¥r0'C
L6
A

quvmy
ANVID

£98

06L'€

0Tt
0512
501

08

12300ud
viol

9T0Z ‘TE ISNONV 40SY |

£1-#0-60

¥1-8T1-90

€7-90-T1
€1-91-+0
€T-£0-£0
80-0¢-1T

3lva
IVAQUddY

(2102-40 9ES) NODFH ANV NOISAA NNMY NIAVHANS
(ST02-90 94S) NIVIQ ANY AVd ANVTIXV.L NIAVHANS
(Z10Z-50 9€S) ££-ST AVMNNY NIAVHANS
WZLSAS NOLLVOHILNAQI ALTYNDIS WSd
SNOLLYAONTY WOOYHLYE TYNIWYIL WSd
NSIS3A-34d bE-9T AYMNNY WSd
NOIS3A/LIWAAd / TWAOWIY NOLLONYLISHO WSd
(€097 D€S) IDYNIVIQ ANY LNIWIAVA WSd
(20971 98S) 1J3r0¥d NOLLDNYLSNOD USY WSd
(bS# Yv4) VHOLSTY NIVHA ANV INFWAAV WSd
HLVd 3SN-LLIINW LA40dIqVYL

AWVN 103r0Yd

SIATHEVAIZIOTY TVLNIWNYIAODUILNI 40 AUVWNNS



9€T 59 - 59 192 W3LSAS NOLLYDIHLLNAAI ALTYND3S WSd
Ly L - L oy ONIHO0YId ANV OWAQ TVLLYVd 11V WSd
- (sp) Sh - Sb 3av49dN TUVMLJ0S ANV SNLLHOTT WSd
5 z - [4 €S (@gl -¥vd) NDIS3A-3ud +€-9T AVMNNY WSd
16 68 - 68 z (Qg.1-vv4) NOISIA ANV ONILLIWYId NOLLONYLSEO WSd
¥9 - - - 9 (QgL -¥vd) SNOLLYAONTY WOOYHLYE TYNIWYIL WSd
LHOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd
9Y-T£-80 ADNVHO DIAYIS STUNLIANIAXA  gp_gg-gg
iv UVIA NI LNVd uvaa i 3 dd

FONVIVE ANFHAND L3N OLH3ASNVIL

ANTHAND FONYIVE

2T LT RETORR

(s,000 $)

9T0Z ‘T€ 1SNONV 40 SV
SSTUD0Ud NI NUOM NOLLOMULSNOD 30 AAYWIWNS



35

o1

9%-1E€-80
iv
FONVIVE

1

8

8

© o

(5,000 %)

AQOE YONHL dWna
- 9 59 - NYA NVIOTYID313
FONVNILNIVIV
9T = ST 9TT

(S10Z-90 945)
- - - 911 JOVNIVYA ANV INIWIAYL INVIIXVL
(z102-¥0 94S)
9 - 9 - NOLLDNYLSNODIY GNY NOISIA AVMNNY
(Z102-50 945)
01 - 01 - 3OVNSIS ANV ONDIHYIW-1DNYLSNODTY EE-ST AVMNNY
LYOdUIV NIAVHANS

JONYHO ADIAWIS STNLIANIIXI gy g¢.gp

AVIA NI LNV1d YA v JFHVN ID3roud
LINFHAND L3N OL ¥IASNVHL ANSHANDS AONYIVE

e SRR

{anino) QT 0T \.HM ASNONVY 40 m< o
SSZUDOUd NI NHOM NOILONYLSNOD 40 AUVINWNS T



k4 2

i

NOLLVYLISININGY

[74 T £ [£]
€l €1 €T INIWCINOT YOLYINWIS
9 - ¥9 (XINO NDIS3A) NOISNVAX3 ISNOHENTD
ISUNCO 47109

9T-1E-80 IDNVHD IDIANIS S3UNLIANIdX2  9T-0£-90
1y uvaA NI LNV UVIA 1v IWVN 133(0Hd
FONVIVE ANIYHUND 13N OL ¥3ISNVIL ANTAND JONYIVE _

(5,000 $)

@i gTOZ ‘TE ASNONV 4O SY |
SSIUD0Ud NI XUOM NOLLINULSNOD 40 AUVHWKWNS |



9¢ - - - 9C AAVHEDdN DVAH 13341S 331
1€ - - * 1€ SINIWIAOYdINT TANLINYLSYEINI ANY NOLLDISHALNI
Ldod3aaviL
9T-TE-80 IONVHD IDIANIS STUNLIANIAIXI 9T-0€-90
iv UVIA NI LNV1d YVIA iv IWVN ID3r0¥d
FONVIVE ANTNIND 13N OLuIASNVYEL ANZAUND FONVIVE

B

(s.000 $)

(e 9TOZ “TE LSNONY 40 SV
SSIUD0UC NI NUOM NOILOMNULSNOD 40 AAVIKWNS |

£l



142

989 €31 (144 £9¢ 3 WioL

~N ol
— N
] -

el

o~ 9

i
1 ml

=

A5d -S31d YIANIH IOV 1d3d
SAX0E TIVD ADNIDUIWT TIV.LSNI
- (6) - (6) 6 (9107) NOLLYOIIddY LNVYO ¥391L
- ANIWINOUAWI ALTIVNO YILYM
SUOHUYH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIC

N
™
i
[22]

o)

9T-TE-80 ADNVHD DIAUIS STUNLIANAIX3  9T-0£-90

v 2VaA NI LNV dvaa 1v IWVN LDIAC0¥Ud
ADINVIVE ANIZYUND 13N OLYIJISNVUL INZWUND JONVIVE

A R T

(s.000 $)

‘emue gL ‘TE LSNONV 40 SY s
SSTAUADO0Ud NI NAOM NOLLONULSNOD 40 AAVINKWNS T



|

9% V1oL
B LT0Z Ad . —
NI Q1vd
Sob o -
(113 6VvE o1T Wi0L
FANS ocoz
911 610¢ WOSY ©
J10N 10U LNQD
o SR NOLLNT10d
3LV
o £re -HLNOWS.LY0d
Qo 6bE 911 40 A1D
e . ana NOLLMOd NOILYOd 3LvH 1SANFLNI
:...mm;%g OsH ANNOWY Wy3IL INFWAND / ¥3a10H 1934

TVLOL N0

ANIWNAYdIY FDIAUAS L1930 40 ITINAIHOS

(s.000 $)

9T0C ‘IE 1SNONV 40 SY |
SILLTTIGVI1 WH3L ONO1



AINOINI

Ir8 {Zo9's) T61 {ZT6) (0Z2) DNILVY¥ILO 13N €02°0E 0622 60T°Lv 3LVa OL ¥VaA U
8%9 008'€ 49 ££9 919 NOLIVIDINdAq
ASN3AdX3a
ANV (IWODNI)
- - - - = DNILVYIJONON
(667) (zoe't) SLT (6£2) (»o1) AWOONI ONILVYNIdO
9EE 9T (06T 8F 85¢
- - - - 2 YIHLO TV .
NOLLOWOUd
£ 61 © £ - ANY DNLLIHAYIN
SADIAYIS
- - - - IYNOISSA30Ud
8¢ 243 (81) v 9z SILLITILN
AALLVILSININGY  LE ¥
9z Sl - 74
4 e SHVIIEERES £ 15 6 6 YIHLO TV
muzwmﬁp:_,__wﬁ - 9sT ¥z - SANNIATY 334
ovT Fe'T (osT) 102 15 GNV SONITIING SANNAATY
g l T z NOISSIINOD
S1I43N3g any
65T £00°1 (eT) /T £ST S3DIA¥3S TANNOSYHId SUYONVYH
97 191 Yird ot QaNY ODdVD
SASN3dX3
ONILYH3AdO - INTY
£01 585 80T ETT SIUTIOVH
SANNIAIY o
LET 096 9] 69T ¥eT ONILV¥3dO VLDV 13900 139ang WOV S
A1va oL UvaA ava 3iva SANNIAIY &
VIV 135ang  IONVRIVA  139ang VLV UVAAUOR WIS OLUVAA  OLWV3A ONLLYYad
a1va oL UvaIA 3iva lva 31va ol e i e e

UVAA ¥OTdd TWosH 0L AVaA OL ¥v3A

AVIA

(5,000 %)

LYOJYIV HLNOWSLYOd |
9T0Z ‘IS LSNDNY DNIANI GOTY3d |
. HLNOW OML FHL HO4 SNOLLYYIdO 40 LNIWILVLS



9¢

S

VLY
A1va oL
dv3A HOniud

(5,000 %)

i

SYE
062

(s5)
30E
r{1)8

[43

9€

152

13oand
AUVIA
VoS

[l

™~

™~

(€)

@
(1m)

@

)

AONVIIVA
diva
0L ¥vaA

%)
8

14}

139ana
a1va

0L dvaA

(4

134

VNV

dlva oL
UvaA

AWOONI
SNILVH3dO 13N

NOILVIDA¥d3a

ASN3dX3
anNVy (3WODNI)
SNILVHIdONON

JWOONI ONILVEIJO

TENd -¥3HL0 TV

NOILOWOYd
ANV ONLLYEVYIA

SAJIAUIS TYNOISSI0Yd
SALLTILLN

AALLVHELSINIWAY
ANV WHINTD

FONVNILNIVIA SILLTIIOVA
ANV SONIgTINg

S13INTd ANY
SADIAYIS TINNOSHI

SASNIdX3
ONILVY3dOo

SANNIAAIY
DNILVYIdO

UVYIA YOTd

{60T) (9897%)

IZvv'T) SI0w
(866) 692
(£99) PE8'T
S0z 154
£1 X4
WIOL SANN4
ANVYD
£0't TL1'S
0P 158'07
Ionid AVIA
3AY viol
ain
173 TS¢
- 1
o€ ozt
e 0€T
WLV 139ang
Alva oL UVY3A
IVOSH

[C1F3]

(s.000 $)

(s,000 %)

FT0T Ad
(oot) (s80'1T) (z89) -600Z Ad
- (z6ee) (601) STO0Z A4
- (€6T1) (€9) 9102 Ad
- (91) 8 2102 A4
AVdIY anNadxaa Vd3d0o MO
183q WLIdYD HSVD 13N
1418 © TLTE 102 M
9189 0zs’s 9102 Ad
a1va HINOW alos
OLYVIA  INIHHND 13N 40
SNOTIVD
(4 £F
- - YIHLO TIV
0€ 12 SITVS 13N
SYVONVH
ze (44 aNv 0DuvD)
139anNg NV
3lva JlvaoL SINNIAZY
OLYvaA UYIA ONILVYIdO

LHOJUIV NIAVHANS |
9TOT ‘T€ LSNONV HNIANI AOI¥ad

HLNOW OML FHL Y04 SNOILYVYIMO 20 INIWILVLS



68
16T
(c2)

{(89)

119

(zg)

[t49]

FONVIHVA
3aiva
01 dvaA

EIET €009

Z5T 918

S9¥'T 61’2

96 687

ob1

0z 89

o1 Sp1

8 iy

85 68€

95T 8028
WLV 139ang
31va ol YA

UVIA YODId TISI4

(s,000 $)
8L

8621
9ET

SEY'T
81

89

¥Z

65

LT97T

1393ang
dlva
0L ¥vaA

12481

14

L

Q98T

VNV
31va

OLdv3aA

IWOINI
ONILVEICdO 13N

NOLLVYIOZud3Aa

3SNIdX3
ANV (AWODINI)
SNILVYIdONON

FWODNI ONILVYIO

YIHIO TV

NOLLOWOYd
QNV SNLIDIYIN

SIDIANIS
TYNOISS340%d

SALLOLLN

IALLVAISININGY
ANY IV43INID

JONVNILNIVIA
S3LTOVL
ANV SONITTINg

S1I43N3G ANV
S3DIAYIS TANNOSYHId

SISNAdXI
ONLLYVYAdO

SANNIATY
ONILV¥3dO

[44

6151

WALV
alva oL

dVIA YO

T

790’8

135ang
AUVIAA
WIS

L19°T €957
8¢ ¥l YIHIO TIV
SALLNIDYS
6451 16¢'T 4O TVINIY
135ana TvNLV
a1va Alva Ol SINNIAZU
OL dv3A

¥3A  DNLLVY3IdO

(s,000 $)

9T0C ‘T€ LSNONY DNIANI AOI¥3d
HLNOIW OML 3H1 ¥0d4 SNOILLVY3AdO 40 LNIWILVLS

L¥043aVIL



3AWOONI

3IWODNI (74 SNILVYIMO 13N
ONLLYYIO
THe L)) (4 66T 4 13N 9 NOILYIDIHd3a
(NOLLYDIFAIIT
ONIanX3) i ASN3dx3
SISNIDT GNV (3WOONI)
ozy 6 12 82¢ ¥ ONLLY¥3d0 - ONILV¥IJONON
SANNIATY zhe AWOINI ONLLYVYIAO
44 - £ 229 $9 ONILYYIIO T
vioi WIS A3g Yy3ado dOHS SISATYNY
/ Q004 25U Oud LINN SS vz (z1) 59 €9 ¥IAHLO Tv
SSaANISNG NOLLOWOYd
= = s 8 13 ot L L1 ANV ONLLDINYIN
e T S— S e —
(174 1eET 189 294 T 6 49) 4 1 TYNOISSIH0Yd
YIHLO ANV 61 (4% £ 1z T SALLTILLN
S 961 4 59 3SIANVHDYAW
— e _ _ IALLVYLSINIWNGY
e 18T 1SS 9¢9 9¢ ST 9 o€ 9 QNY TvaNIo
g 5T g z SNOSS31 4109 JONNILNIVI
i i ) SALTIDVS
611 YOLVINWIS 5/ cze vz 65 £8 ANV SONIGTING
8 0zZ€E £8 98 SAIHSYIAIWIN | & TENaalEy
2es 581 29 €£S $334 4109 €81 P£6 14 [41]4 90¢ SAJIAU3S TINNOSHAd
SANNIAZY 334 S3aSN3dX3
ONILVYAdO
SINNIATY
S 743 8z 174 NOISSIONOD SINNIATY
@z TEEC 18 189 F4:74 SNILY3dO
31va 139ang 139ang ALY WALV 135dang JONVIIVA 139ana WLV (5,000 $)
oL M<.m> UVIA divd J1va oL mm_...z.m>m¢ a1va oL UYIA 3Lva 31va 31va
JORd | WOSH OLWVIA  WvAA  ONLVMEO  ypgiwopd sk OLYWIA  OLWEA  OLWYAA
(5,000 $)

ISUNOD 47108
9T0Z ‘T€ L1SNONV DNIANI AOTYad
. HLNOW OML 3HL 04 SNOLLYYIEO 10 LNIWILVIS



£61'€0T
EE9'TH
070's6
¥SL'1E
QLA

698551 §

651507
YbL'SST
8L5°90T
£0b°L6
785’78
789'v8
SL1'501
LL0°0L
1SSETT
£99'99T
S§TL'S8T
65Y'9LT §

9T0T Ad

0Z

9T0Z Ad

LEV'TL
£80°Ek
8€0°00T
Z10'1E

alA
L10Z Ad

66v'SES $

£8€°09T
ZLP'T6T
$/9'€81 $

5334 WOCY ANV a004
SaINOVA

AVd INIWVNENOL
OP-TT SdNOYD

SNOLLONNL
ISUNO3 /aN1D

Y

AV

MAdv
HOUVIA
Advinda3d
AUVONVL
W39iW303a
Y3GWEAON
¥380.100
UIGNILd3IS
1snonv
Anc

SAVS
SSOUD
TII¥D
GNV dvd

TaTSH 1oL
£8E°2E FITWINNON o
.vm N‘N ._“ N_Nm —)—NZ .vwc N s v @5 o i W Avwt K- Wit "
NOSV3S ~SUNNOY ST0C . it B
5808h W10L § oo0'e
LLTSE YIANIWNON ﬁ 4 000'
718'%1 YIS 1
- .\m 000%
s\ 000'z1
T0ZE0T 5 4 {4 3
(NOSVY3s)
201 B INAC SANNOY UITWAWNOM / Imme‘mz 910¢
£96 - AV . oF 09 SAVQ NIVY
009 - THdv 01128 181Gy 680'8F  G3AVId SGNNOY
059z - AdvVMigad e
T - AdVNNVE Pl rral 003 i ny:] Q% W'Y 306E ]
LTP'HT - WI9W3anaq
9/1°01 - YIGWIAON 9IDT =
9z.'T. - ¥380100
SHE = y38W31d3S s107®
- ¥9 1snonv
- 81 $ ANC
SINNIATY
910Z Ad £10Z Ad HOLVINWIS {NOsV3S) @3AV1d 2109 40 SANNOoY

4709

£ e

9T0C “0€ Y38WIALdIAS 20 SV |~

ViVa ONDRIVINHONIE 3SUNCO 470D A3



E9) (€23} I8 (74 5% 0% NI dO 13N

e e LS D TTENER

g [{32] [§£9] @) {sZ) ANOINI dO L3N
P W ) 909 1z 101 44 NOLLVIDZNdIA
SNIGITXT)
SASNIdXT 3ISNadX3
99 vL 95 68 S 8/ ONLLYY¥3dO GNV (JWODNT)
- - - - ONILY¥IJONON
SANN3ATY
L 09 £l 601 ot 801 ONLLVHIdO gy 1 i 6 £6 IWODNI DNILYYIAO
SISATVNY R l .
NIWaY SYNVIN 133415 ¥ald HSIH HoguvH HOGUVH LINN Lty ove'e 501 sda Ocy

e JORNHLDRW | HINOWSINO4 3 NOLWWH  SSINISNE g soz (eem) 982 5T TN - ¥3HLO TV
e e et NOLLOWOMd
s ISET k4] 1% WLOL - z . - - QNY DNLLINAYIA
£ 66 ¥T T YIHLO TV SIOIANIS
THe 05z 0E 81z STWS TNy = 9z () 4 ) WNOISS340Ud
BT 8 TaT W (74 ¥ST C) 74 6T SALLILLN
[ (744 85 T 20 / SAVHM AALLVYLSINIWGY
61 0s1 ras FA 67 ANV TVHINTD

6 0.1 - L SNOLLVY1SIOTY
2 o €1 191 (%) 6T ST DV aNY SONIATINg

5 Seg 95 €5 $334 ONTIOOW

S1I43NIE-ONY
ANNAZY 33 v61 9£0'T 0€ €L €0z SIOIAMAS TINNOSYId

3NNIATY
SASNIANI
S 9 b S NOISSIONOD oo

SIVANIY
L0T 759 60T 601 ALTTDVA _ . SINNIATY
0ts T86C <01 barie] 715 DNLLYY¥IAO0

NV 13nang 130ang VOV SINNIATY WNLOY 135and  FONVIMVA  139ang NV
3lva oL HvIA 31va 1ivq ONILVY3dO alvaol AY3A alva 3lva Itva
UYIA AOTHd WISH OL HvaA OL ¥v3A UVIA YORd WISI4 OL ¥v3A

Ol dvaA OLdv3IA

0P (@ILOr¥1SIUNM) TUIHSAWVH MIN 40 ALTHOHLNY LYOd

910C ‘T€ 1SNONY DNIANI GOTH3d
- HLNOW OML JH1 ¥O04 SNOLLVYIdC 40 ANIWILVIS



Ll

ol
=i

D
wnl
i

IWOONI
DNILVIAO 13N

NOILVIOINdad

ASNadX3
Aanv (IWO0DNI)
SNILVYIdONON

3WOONZ
ONILVHIdO

YIHIO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLIVI

SADIAYIS
TYNOISS340ud

SAUTIHN

IALLVYLISINIWNGY
ONV TvyaN3D

FONVNIINIVIA
S3LLTIOVA
QNY SONIGTING

S1I43NIa ANV
SIDIAYIS TANNOSHAd

SASNIdX3
ONILVH3IdO

SANNIAIY
DNILVY3IdO

dNOZ 2avilL
NOIFu0d

0l
+!
il

=il

HY3ANORd T

AWODNI
DNILVHIMO 1IN

NOILYIOTU43Ia

ASNIdXE
ANV (3WOINI)
ONLLYYIJONON

JHWOONI
ONILVY3dO

¥IHLO TIV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLIDAHVIN

SAIINUIS
TYNOISS310ud

SALLILLN

JALLVYLSININGY
ANY TVIINED

FONVNIINIVIA
SALLTTIOVA
ANV SDNIaTINg

SLI43AN3g ANV
S30TAYAS TINNOSYI

SASNAdX
DONILVHU3IdO

SINNIATY
DONILVHEIJO

ONISG3ua

T ———————

(@3L014153¥%) IUVIHSAWVH M3N 40 ALTUOHLNY LUOd

9T0C ‘T€ 1SNONY HNIANI AOIY3d
HINOK OML 3HL UO04d SNCILVIAdO 40 LNIWILVILS




ST0Z-0£-90
1v JONVIvE

74

910Z-0€-90

ALV FONVIvE

"SANN Q393 1SaN0HES S2an10xa (x)

o)
in
i

90T

910¢-1€-80
LV IONVIVE

(x)
% ~(ADNIIDII3Q)
S$S3I0X3 ANNd

(%) % -31vn
NOILYZITLLN
TWLldvD

W31 ONOT
ANTHEMD

SNTAGNVISINO
SNYOQT

SANNH A310TAiS3Y
SANNd TYHaNas
SIONVIVE HSVD

(s,000 $)

£

(a3L0141534) AYTIHSAWVH M3IN 50 ALTEOHLNY L¥0d
9T0Z ‘T€ LSNONV ONIANT AOIyad

JWOONI
ONILVEEAO 1IN

= = - NOILVIOFud3A

ASNIdXI
QNY (IWOIONT)
ONILVHIdONON

JWOONI DNILVYAJO

)
3
|

ol
2]
1A

[a I ]
&
4
<l
[ ]

- - " ¥3H10 Y

NOLLOWO¥d
- - - ANY ONILINAVIN

SAOTAYES TYNOISS3H0Ud
- = - SALTIILN

AALLVALSINIWGY
ANV TVd3INIo

-SONVNIINIVIY
SALLIIDVA
- - - ANV SONIQINg

S114aNgg aNv
- - - SADIAYIS TINNOSHId

SASNAIX3
DNILYHIdO

SANNIAIY
ONILVH3dO

AdNNZ NVOT
ONIATOATY

L
ey

[ap!

o~
Wi
0|

a1va
OL VALV

WNLOY
3lva

135ang
UVIA

JONVIYVA
dlva

139and
a1va

{(GanNILNOD)

HLNOW OML 3H1 304 SNOLLYYAdO 40 LNIWILVILS



0Zvvs
(££5'2)

81¢E
69¢
ZOE'T

9102

0€ NNCT

e

OTZvS
(zss'D

792’98

9T

8IS
108°¢

£ey
89€°E

£91
239
$OE'T

9102

TE NV

(s,000 $)

(FYIHSIWVH MIN JO ALTHOHLNY L¥Od ONIGNTIXT) NOILISOd 13N 40 LNIW3LYILS

NOILISOd L3N TViOL

Q3O LSTENN
INOZ IAVL NOIRIOA
ONIOUIUA HOFUVH

GNN4 NYOT ONIAOTAZY

04 Q10T 1S

S13SSV WLIdVD NI LNIWISIANI 13N
NOILISOd 1IN

NOISN3d

S20¥Nosay
40 SMOTANI a3¥8343a

SAUTHEYTT WLOL

SALLTIEVTT L7 ¥3HL0
ALIIEYIT NOISNId L3N

SIALLITIAVIT ANTUUNONON
S3LLTTIAVIT ANTHUMD IVAOL

S3LTTI8VIT L1 -NOLLNOd INTHHND
ALTIOV4 D07 HNIATOATY

ANNIATY AINYYINN

NOLLIMAULSNOD -F18VAVd SLNNODOY
J19VAVd SINNODDY

SILLINMEVIT LNINAND
sarlinavil

|

(!
N
1)
(]
[}
)

|

o0°4S
81S 999
bLT'LS 96£'95
8867 Z967¢
| e 6LE
128 0Ty
€201 8912
9702 9102

0E NNC

TEONV

PERPARER

G I

NOISN3d

S30YNOSAA 40
SMOTiLNO a3WYE43g

$134SSY 1v101

FTE9YAIIOIY 11 -U3HLO

GI#-0I# 539vd) SSAD0Ud

NI NOLLONYLSNOD

INTFWAINGA
ANV SONIGTING ‘AN

S13SSVY TVAIdYD

S13SSVY QALOTILISIY TWI0L

BE Y
~S3MEVAIZDIY SINNQDDY

SINTIWAINOI ANY HSYD
S$13SSV Q3LOTHISTY

SL13SSY INFHIND WVIOL
S13SSV ¥IHLO
13N

-I1AVAIZDIY SINNODDY

SINTIVAIND3 ANV HSYD
S13ASSY LNIWUND
si3ssy

NOILISOd Q3LOTYLSIUNN LIN

"SLIHINIG ANY

S3DIAY3S TINNOSY3d OL JALLY 13N
NOLLY1YDS3 1SOD A8 a3d330X3
N338 SYH IdO / NOLLY1¥DS3 INNIATY

"INIWAVdIY

1830 ANV S1D3r0dd TV.LIdvD
J3.Lv13d INVIONON 140ddNS OL
NOLLYOIIEO TYIONVNI4 INNILNOD

ALTYOHLNVY LNIWAGTIA2Q 3SVYad

(5,000 $)

et e e s s e e o e o e TR | 1 [ <
-~ GUO'E-
T O 111
YIOLAZ  ETORAd |
e e it o i ot st s+ et e 00T
—— - e 000°E
O€ INNC LY



. ZT56
1€74°)

961°0T

q

:

|

o]
[%8]
o)

9702

o€ NNC TE DNV

174

0056
(695)

690°01

a

|

o N
R
&

Q0
=]
@

™
©

970

(5,000 $)

NOILISOd 13N V101

Q3LOTHISTUNN

ANOZ 3aVHL NDIZH0A
DNIDAFAQ YOFUVH
ANND NVO'T ONIAQTASY
04 @3 LoniLs3y

S1355Y TVLIdVD NI INJIWLSIANI L3N
NOILLISOd 1IN

NOISNId

SININOSIY
40 SMOTINI d3¥A3I3q

S3LLITIEVIT V101

SALLTNAVIT L] ¥3HI0
ALTTIEYT] NOISNad 13N

SALLITIAVIT ANTHUNDONON
SALLTIEVIT LNFJUND W.L0L

SALLTTIAVIT LT -NOTLMOd INIHHND i

ALTTIOVA D071 HONIATOATY

ANNIATY QINAVANN

NOLIDMAYLSNOD -F18VAVd SINNODDV
A19YAvd SLNNODDY

SaLiIzavIl ._.z.m¢~_30
SIILINIAVI

16101

9t0z
oE NNC

690°01

LE
ve8

910
TEONY

R L LT L R B A e e R g

NOISN3d

$3DUNOS3IY 40
SMOT4INO a3¥Na43a

S13SSV V101

(pr#-01# SI3Vd) SSID0U

NI NOLLOMYLSNOD

INIWINDI
ANV SONIQTING ‘aNVT

S13SSY TVLIdVYD

S135SY QA1O1¥1S3Y WI0L

13N
-SF1AVAIEDFY SINNODDY

SINTFTIVAINDI ANV HSYD
$13SSV 43101u1S3y

S13SSY INTHAND TVLOL

S13SSV ¥3H10

13N
-F18VAIZDZY SINNODDV

SINTVAINDI ANV HSYD
SLIASSY INIHAND
$13ssvY

O£ ANNL LY

NOILISOd GALOTYISTUNN 13N

"S3DNVIVE ANNA 31014 1STUNN

A8 Q394058Y N334 SYH NOTTTIW 6°0$ I1IHM

SAINOW NI NOTTIIW 0'T$ G3dIAQUd

SYH GNNd NOISNVdX3 ¥3ld IHL

"SUVIA TVOSIH 3FUHL 1SYd NI SLSOD 1D3C0Ud
ANIWIAOUAWI ANV NOILYIIHIAOW WA LSA

ANFWIOVNVIN U3 LYM WHOLS NI NOITIIW 6'T

"ST1AATT IDIAYSS
ANIHUND ADNTTIVHD AVIN ANV THNLINYLS
TYIDNYNI Q31VH0Td313d SYH S1D3C0Ud
TLIdYD QISANGWIIUNN L30ddNS OL
NOILYOIT80 TVIDNYNIJ Q3INNILNQGD

JUIHSAIWVH M2N 40 ALDIOCHLNY Ld0d T

SANN4 GILOTULSTUNN -NOLLISOd L3N 40 INIWALVIS |

- 600'%-

(5,000 $)



NOILISOd 13N TV.LOL _ NOISNAd
- SFOUNOSIY 40
Q31IT4LSINN SMOT41N0 A3uYILAq
ANOZ 3aVY.L NOITHOA
ONIDOTYC YORWVH 3 S13SSV V101
aNnd NVOT ONIACTIAZY 9502 A 102 A4
MO4 QARSI ¢ - S P

SIFSSY WLIAYO NIINSWLSIANT L3N

(bI#-0T# S39vd) SSANOU

e

(5,000 $)

: NI NOLLOMALSNOD
NOILISOd JaN | INTWAIND3
NOISNId QONV SONIGTING ‘aNvi . =
$32UNOSTY i
40 SMOTINI a3uY3I3a 135SV VLIAVD
SALLTIEVE V101 51355V GILORISTY TVL0L
13N
SALLOIAVT 11 ¥3HI0 -STIAVATIEDTY SINNOJDY
ALTTIEVI] NOISN3d 13N _
! SINTIVAINDI NV HSYD
S3IATIIGVIT ANJHANDNON | - _ =2 o
$13SSV AILOTULSTY
SALLTIAVIT ANTHIND VI0L OF INNC 1Y
SALLITIAVIT L7 -NOLLYOd 1NIHIND S1355Y LNIHIND TYLOL NOLLISOd Q3LOTH.S3Y L3N
ALITIDOVA D07 ONIATOATY S1355V ¥IHLO . . N
Z14 NI NOLLYd UIIHL a3IaN
ANNIATY GENYVEND 13N DTILDT 13 ISNOHONLLSAM 9T0Z Ad-ONINNG
NOLLOMYLSNOD -T18VAVd SINNOJDY ~F1EYATZOR SINNOJDY _

"SIONITIVHD TVIINVYNI4

T1avAVd SLNAODDY SINTIVAIND3 ANV HSYD 40 NOILVDIOGNI ON H1IM 31V.S AQVALS
SATLITIAVIT INTHUND SLISSY ANTHAND
9102 910z S3LITIEVIT 9102 910z S13SSV

OENNC  TEONV OENNL  TEONV

(s.000 %) “

ANOZ 3QVYL NDIFUO4 -NOLLISOd L3N 40 LNIWILVLS |
FUTHSAWVH M3AN 40 ALTHOHLAY LUOd |

9z



=
N

S92

o10Z
0€ NNC

L2z

669

|

5]
in
[

9102
TESnv

{5,000 $)

NOILLISOd L3N TVLOL

Q31LOTI1STUNN
3NOZ 3aviL NOIZY04

ONIDGTHQ OFUYH

AaNMNd NVOT DNIAOTASY
03 a31014153y

S.13SSY TV.LIdYD NI LNIWLSIANI 13N
NOILISOd 13N

NOISNId

$32DuNOSIY
40 SMOTINI a3du342a

SALLIEVIT VLOL

SALLTIIQYI L1 ¥3H10
ALTTISVIT NOISNAd 13N

SALLITIAVIT INTWUNINON
SALITIEVIT INIHEND WLOL.

SALLTIIAVIT L1 -NOLLYOd INTHIND
ALTIIOV4 DOT ONIATOATY

ANNIADY GINEYIND

NOLLIMYLSNOD -T18YAVd SLNNODDY
FTAVAVd SINNODDV

SILLITIAVIT INTHAND
S3111719vI

INIDAIQ YOGUVH -NOILLISOd L3N 40 INIWILYIS 4
FUTHSAWVH MIN 40 ALTYOHLNY L¥Cd

<
r:,
L
i

o

|

N
<

o

744

910¢
0€ NNL

|

@
CY

85t

9102

NOISN3d

$30¥N0S3H 40
SMOT1LNO aF¥yadaqg

S13SSY 1V.I10L

(3T#-01% 539Vd) SSE00Ud |
NI NOLLOMYISNOD

JNIWDIND3
ANV SONIAIING ‘aNv)

S13SSY TVLIdYD

S13SSY Q31014 1S3y .LOL

13N
~SFEVAIIDIY SINNODDY

SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13ASSY @a1DIHLSTY

S13SSV INTWND WLOL -
S13SSV ¥IHLO

RE

-F18YAIZDIY SLNNODDY-
SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD

S13SSV INIWLND
$13Ssy

910 &4

SIOT A PIOT Ad EXT0F A4

b a1
L ose
R
O€ INNC LY
NOILISOd Q3LOT¥LSIY 1IN
81 43HLO TV ®
o FIVOS MoNYL -
9702 A4 o
St d3HLO TV "
84 IS MOMYL ANNoYO °
STOZ Ad e
¥8E  3DATYE S5300V HLNOS
r4) NISYE ONINAUNL -#T10Z A4 "
81 NISVE ONINYUNL -£102 A4 “
002 NOLdWVH / J00uEVIS -Z10Z A4 "
ovT $ HOFUVH NOLdWYH -T10Z Ad "
‘SNOLLVY3dO

440d HOd IONVNILNIVIA ANV SHIVATY HO
S10300¥Ud W.LIdYD QISUNGIWIIAUNN L¥0ddNs
OL NOLLYDIIE0 TVIDNYNIZ Q3NNILNOD

(s.000 $)




6STT ¥oT'T NOLLISOd 13N TW.LOL NOISN3d

S30UNOSIY 40
- - GALORISTNA - - z SMOT41N0 aTYYII3q
) ) NZON wﬂé Zwummom m TIDE AL IO AL ETOZ A4
- - QZHwome momme&.. % w,wj w.—.mwm.( l—<-P°.—.. ! e e e s e Totgsan 006
65T°T $9T'T aNNd NYOT ONIAOTATY : _ w
W04 qaORISI | - .
i . . G101+ 539v4) SSIIOUY : _
S13SSV-W.LIAYD NILNIWLSIANI L3N T ) NI NOLLYMISNGS -
el ANIWAIND3
. - NOISNId - - AaNY SENIQIING ‘anNvt-
$IDUNOSIY
40 SMO4NI a3¥343q S13SSV Wi1dvd s
e _
) w SALLTIAVIT Y101 2T 99T'% S13SSY Q3LONN1STY TW.LOL
13N
- - SILINEVIY LTY¥IHIO  380°F 90T -STTAVAIIDTY SINNOODY -
- - ALTTISVIT NOISNId 13N
8/ 901 SINTTIVAINDI GNV HSVYD 0€ INNC LY
) B SALLITIAVI] AINTHUNDNON S135SY Q31oTHLSTY ZOH-—.HWOQ asiony LS 13N
g T SALLTNAVIT ANTHAND TY.LOL
- - SALLNIAVI] L1 -NOLLIOd INTHIND = b S13SSY INFHIND TV.LOL "ONIANVLISLNO SNYOT
LNIHUND JO INTJWAVATY ‘ATIVIINGLOG
- - ALV 20T ONIATOATY - - S13SSV ¥IAHLO ANV SNYOT JdNLNd 404 ONYIWIA IHL
) . i JONITIVHO ATIVLINILOd YIAIMOH
- ANNIAIY Q3NAYaNN 13N 5300 3LYWITD AHOLYINDTY INTHRIND w
. 2 ) . - - -F1GVAIZOIY SLNNODDY
R . 1y saonaa YA ANB IHL o1
- - SINTIVAINDI ANV HSVD ;
S ¢ FIEVAVd SLNNOOOV 40 NOLLYDIGNI ON HIIM 31V1S AQVAlS =
SALLINAGVIT INTHEND SL3ISSY LNIHUND _
o107 910z SALLTTIGVI] 970z 910z s1assy
0ENNL  TEBNY ~ O0ENNC  TESNY
(s.000 %)

NVOT ONIATOAIY -NOLLISOd L3N 40 LNIWILVLS |
FUIHSdWVYH MIN 40 ALTYOHLAY LHOd |

8z



EEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
_____________

3Sv3id
9T0Z ‘0T ¥3EOL1D0 .,AA
SNILIIW ,SEOLIIVIA 40 quvog

LTOT '0€ ANNC

ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HINOW 3NIN
JHL Y04 SNOILDILOUd MOT4 HSYD




qT NVOT ONIATOATY =

14! INOZ 3AVYL NOIO4 -

eT JONVNIINIVIN ¥31d ANV ONIDITHQ dOgdvH -
SANNH 30T 1Sy

cI-1t SAaNNd Q3LOTHISTINN ~-MIIAYIAO AIVWINNS

SYOFUVH ANV S1H0d 40 NOISIAIG

0T SALLODVY LIa3D -
6 SQIYMV INVYD
8-S STANLIANIAXT VLIdVD
r-€ MITAYIAO AUVIWIWNS

ALTOHLNY INIWLOTIAIQ ISYId

SIN3LNOD 40 319Vl



PE0T 622'¢ VioL

Po°E FDNVIVE ANN4 ONISOTD
zn T QALYNSISAA Yad |
z20'T 112'2 Q31OTHISTUNN Yad ST MO HSVD 1IN
9T0Z-0¢-90 O9T0Z-02-60 TTC0T
010t (8#-9# 539Vd 335) INVYD NON -STUNLIANIDA WLIdYD
1930 17 e 307 e HSYD GRUIRLLSTINN moeme 0ET'T SISNIdX3 ONLLY¥3dO
N AW M ww @ w20 o Do L 0b6°€ (o# 3004 335) INVHO -STUNLIONIAXE LTdvD
° ST0% SLI4INZE ONV SIOIANIS TINNOSYId
6PE $40 1830 L0L bk SANNd J0 sasn
e 000'
N—— 9T9TT
000
s ) - L3N “IVLIdVD ONDINOM YNV TYNUZLXT
“»
) g (971) 13N -(d00)- 334 FDIAYIS TVAIDINNW
= 000’ &
vH9°E § HSYD RO
GaloniisTINN oo st SANNIAZY T3 ANV AVONVH LIOQHTY NIAVHANS
oz .
SIONVIVE 183Q ANV HSYD 3103r0Nd ¢ AHOUIY HLNOWS 1304
558 SINNIATY NOISSIONOD aNV 334 ISUNOD 2109
- SWYAULS INNIATY 1NOdIavL (€ zee’s (62 39vd 335) SAUYMY LNVHO
SRS RN WIS 10 R (¢ . o —
SNOLLO3[0¥d FUNLMH QUVMOL SILLIATIISNGS Nowane o ik SLNVNAL LU0d3avaiL
SANNA 40 SININOS
ANVAID GLLYIC0Yd TONVNEL A TV B, g STy sz
ION GNN4 ONINZdO
JHL HIIM LIa3¥D 40 ANIT WY3L LHOHS S.11 JZILN . vVive
¥3HLEN OL @33N FHL F1VIDIINY 10N S300 Vad SHI 5 INTOWY

{s,000 $)
NOISSNOSIa

(5,000 $)

LI0Z ‘0€ ANNC OL 9T0C ‘T ¥390.LD0
(5408¥YH aNY S130d 40 NoISTATG ONIaN1Ix3) AT IAY 3 >° >ﬁ<:£:m 30.._ = _._W<U

ALTYOHLNV INIWHOTIAIA ISYad



PPO9E PWOE GO00F SB0 6IZT OHPE ooz muz<._<n_.n_,__=n_ ONISOTD

LT TEET 7192
STH'T (59¢) (62) 69€ €42 o8 [4 7] (eg9) (z10) £8¢ MO HSVD 13N

LT BT WY Iz )72 o8 9957  WFT T
9T : : : : : 91T : : 8 ANIWTILLTY 1930 WL ONOT
0£T'T SoT STT 00T o171 011 50T 09 Ser 00T S3SNIdX3 ONILY¥IAO
1258°C 0se'T - - - B |14 0SZ'T - - 334 3DIAN3S TVdIDINNW
010°T - 0b1 bIT z01 - b 68 L9Z 152 (6#-5# 2904 735) | NVHONON -T¥.L1dv)
0b6’e (4 LS0'T  pog Sb 0bT. SzT LIS 49 228 (5 2004 335 QALYIRY INVEO -TYLIdYD
ST0'p S9p Obb SSh 09% 09 0SP 0P ST (1742 SLI43N3F NV SIDIAYIS TANNOSHId
SANN4 40 3sn

OoTYT  IT o 09T 066 ST %0CT T Ior 9797T
- - - - - - - - = - 13N D0 T.L1dvD ONDRIOM
ZstT 81 8T LT 91 91 91 97 LT 81 LYOdYIY NFAVHANS
(1142 Sk S 0s S St 0s S Sb 0S LHOdYIV HLNOWS.L4Od
S8 00Z S9T S9 oy ob o o 00T S9T 354N0D 4109
S0S‘z SET S€T S9g €T 14 Sog SE€T S€T S9€ 334 F01ANIS WAIDINNW
z6e's S99 019 og 6€ 129 09T ZI0'T 552 - (6# 2004 235) SAUYMY INVHD
€e8'o ST9 009 SL0'T  S19 S65 SL0'T  sgs S8 8£0'T SINVNZL LYOd3IavyL
SANN4 40 s3DUNOS
6T G00F ®BO0F GIZE SWWE V09T TWIT gz TI9T &TTT JONVIVE aNNd ONINIdO

VIOI NAT VA v VN :EE) NVT 33d AON oo

00 LT0T ‘0E INNCL OL 9TOZ ‘T dI90L00
(s¥oguvH anV sL¥0d 40 NorsIAza 314 ONIANTOX3) MO HSY) 40 AINIWILVIS
ALINOHLNY INIWHOTIAIQ 4Sv3id



TYACUddV GYVOH ONIANId
‘310N

0F6E ETt ZS0'T %95 ({2 (124 ST 71ISs 739 775 LNVHO TVLOL
S¢CT 002 0S¢ 05 ST = S %€ S o
54 = - - - = E = g oc - NDIS3IAQ AYMNNY
0z - - - - - . - 01 ) (N91S3Q) SINIWIAYY INVTIXVL
089 00z 0SZ 0s ST - - 001 0s ST (NOLLOMULSNOD) ANIWIAVA INVTIXVL o —
00§ - . - - - - T4 0S¢ 14 NOLLDMYLSNOD AVMNNY
YOIV NIAVHAIS
[ VAr AN 74 708 1243 [ (172 T4 S Y S S~
b = - - - 0c 0T ST T SNOLLVAONZY WOONHLYS
L - - - - - - - Lz 0S (€097 985S) 3DYNIVIA ANV LNIWIAVY
261 - - & - - - LT T4 0ST (097 94S) NOLLONYLSNOD uSY
8z - - - - S S S S 8 NOIS3A AUYNIWITIHd MY
bSE S z (4 01 ot 08 (174 08 0S W3LSAS INFWIDVNVIN NOLLYOIHLLNIAT
0ST € S 4} ST ST ST (174 114 Sy IT 3SVHd -NOLLYOLLIW NOLLOMY1SE0
0Sv'1 0zt 008 00S S 01 S o1 - - VHATV AVMIXVL Q4vND TYNOLLYN ¥IV
LIOdUIV HLNOWSLIOd
FWISENGWITY INVY
VIOL NAC pin) Udv I :EE] NV 3d AON fiils]

o LT0T ‘0€ ANNC 0L 9T0Z ‘T YIFOLDO
(SYOg¥UYH aNV SL40d 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIANTIXI) STUNLIAN ddX3 TVLIdYD
ALTIOHLNY LNINJOT1IAIA ISYId



WAOUAdY QYVOR ONIGNId xx
JLON

&

St [%4
.oﬁ 01 NV1d NOLLY.LHOdSNWIL S0VNS
(1] % 01 ) STHOLIA IOYNIVHQ
1 Sg +xONINVITD HOLVIV4IS ¥ALYM TI0
X X5 0907 ¥IMOL ¥31LVM
J¥0od3avil
INIWISUNAWTId INVIONON
VIOL NAL AT qdv VN a3d NVE 33d AON ie]e)
(CHNNLLNGDY ‘ e }
(5000 $ L T0T ‘0€ ANNC OL STO0Z ‘T d490.100

(SHOFHVH aNV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTOX3) SFENLIAGN ddX3 TVLIdYD

ALTHOHLNV LN3INdOT13IAIA 3SY3d



TVAOUddY QRIVOH DNIANId s

310N
a1 = - - 0T - 4 14 k4 [x4
8 - - - - - z z z z #xSIALLYNYILTY NOLLVORNI 354N00
£9 - - . Hn - . - - - +o¢ YAMOW HONOY
15 - - . . - . 9 sz - s INTWAINDT FSNOHENT mmemm—
€1 - - - . - - - - €1 . SAAVIDAN WALYINWIS 3
oz - 0z - ++SIOANUE I5UN0D 3Ma
ST - - . st - - - - +RUITION SNATUD
8 . 8 s+ YIMO'E SRIF3Q
asUNod 4109

. _ ) ~ ) ) ) _ ) ) 4o+ SNOLLVDINNIWIWOOT 1AL,
ot - = b = - = 9 - = / S¥3NIS / TAYMIS0S / SUAINDIA / SUILNIWAD

NOLLVJULSINIWGY
.WM = o .WM = = z = - -

*+ONIGTING TYNIWY3L 4004-3Y
LAOMUIV NIAVHINS

INTWISUNGWITY INVEDNON

IVIOL NAC I 4V WW 83 N 33 AN DO

Ol
[a

(5000 ) (GaNNLINGD) LT QN \am Y] N [ o-—- w T QN \.ﬂ m mm o-—-uo
(SHOAYVH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) STANLIANIdX3 TVLIAYD

ALTHOHLNV LN3IWd013A3AQ 3SVad



TVAOUddY QuVOd DNIANI #x
‘310N

otoT ° T TIT ot - % & 57 182 INVHONON V101
ﬂ oy .Oﬂﬁ. .mlw = = = = .OIH =
9 - S - - E - - - & Ao LINSWIOV IR L33 T1OIHIA
01 - - - - - : - ) - s WHVTV U ~421STHOON S/
00T - 0s 0S - - . - - = oL TYNIWYEL e
14 - S¢ - - = - - - < LNIWIOV 1S L4TIIOL
S€ - - SE - - - - - - *+ 13TALS 337 £ -3AVADdN WILSAS DVAH
FONVNILINIVIW
a =4 = - = = - H dﬂ ml._“.
ST = B = - - = = 4 - s INFWIOVIdTY 13duvD TYNIWNAL
e - - - - - - SE - - *+ YOLVYINIO NOLLVLS YIHIVIM HLION
08 - - - - - - - 0S - *x 8# ANV £ # 1NH 40 ONHOOYTY
(1] - - - - - - 0z ov1 0sT SNIATING TYNIWSAL LNFWADVIdTY 400
0S - - - - - - - ST 3 (Q7) ONIdWVIER AVMNNY QTaIHYIV
LYOJUIV HLNOWSLNOd
{@nN1LNGD) " INTWESUNAWITY INVEON
V1oL NAC VA Ydv TN EE] NVT o= [(] AON Do
(s,000 $)

(GANNLNOD) N.W@N hem INNC OL 9T0Z ?ﬂ mmmolnlug
(SHOSUVH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL DNIANTIXT) SANLIANIdXE TYLIdYD
ALTHOHLNY LNIWdCT3IAIG ISVId



|

T6EE S99 019 OF (13 T¢9 09T TT0T  §57 INVHO WLIOL
io14 - - - - - - ST 3ARIA NOLAVHD) _,_W,.‘_,_&,_ mmﬂowﬁmw_mm
Liodiavil
1372 - - - - 9 - - Sg NOIS3A -LNIWIAYE INVTIXV.L
0zz - 09 - E - 0971 - NOLLDNALSNOD -LNAWIAV INVIIXV.L
00S - - - - ST1Z - 14 . NOLLONYISNOD AVMNNY
LUOdUIV NaAVHMIS
09t - - ST - 0€z - - ST 2 SNOLLVAONTY WOOYHLYE
STT . - - - 0z - 6 - (€09T D4S) IOVNIVIQ GNV INIWIAVY
£9¢ - - - - - - £92 - (09T DES) NOLLOMYLSNOD SV
6€ - - - 6T - = - 0z NOIS3A AYYNIWIIZId MY
092 - o1 - - 00T - 081 - WALSAS INJWIOYNYIN NOLLYOIHLINIAL
S9T - ob - - 0S - - SLT 11 3SVHd -NOLLVOLLIW NOLLO(1¥1580
002t S99 00S ST 0T - - - VHAY AVMIXV.L GYVND IWNOLLYN NIV
LYOdUIV HLNOWSL¥Od

WIOL NNC IV [EE] NVT 33a AON

- £T0T '0€ INNC OL 9T0Z ‘T WILOLD0

(SHOGUVH ANV SL¥Od 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIANTOX3) m@m< ;< |—|z<m u ..—-m Hm U“”—
ALTYOHLNV LNIWdOT13A3A 3SYad



9107 cnmmpprae. STOL = e wn

230 AON 120 435 oW e N AWM v b L] a3 WL

FALNVEYND
s ] 21V1S aHL
e S -, B 0 8 AW¥VI 10N S30a Y3H10
NMOaMVua
WNWINIW ON 40 3ZIS WNWINIW
SINIOd
2 SISve 0SZ +
l (O1SSV1D) a1Hd
HLNOW 3NO 21VY ISTUILNI
WLIdVD
ONDRIOM
3AIAOYUd OL 3S0dund
5% (152 J9VHIAY
Q3LHOTEIM £10Z-1€-CT alva wWuaL
wF W% |
. T102-01-€0 11va IAILD3443
HLNOWS.LNOd
05y 020Z-1€-21 9% 9% 40 ALID
000's A19VIIVAVY LNNOWY
(oOT) MNve
TI8VIIVA o10¢c-1€-21 - - INIAIAOHd FHL
ALITIOVH L1G3HD
. 000°S TVYNIOINO 40 INNOWY
IV 3Iva 9707090 910Z-06-60 ST NV IESG
1SIHIINI ALTINLYW 1v v ONIANVLSLNG OOTySINVE
IDONVIVE DNVIVE INIAIACHE FHL

(s.000 $)

SISATVNV L8830 SNIAGNVY.LSINO ANV SILLITIDVL 1143y
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOT3A3Q 3SVad



T 256 W10l
87 (32

AN NYO'T DNIATOATY
1 743 FONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
9 (314 3ANOZ QYL NOIFI0S
L 65k ONIDQIUA HOGUVH m MOd HSVD 13N
089 sLg SANNA GALOTYISTUNA ST
- 9T0¢-0€-90 9T02-05-60 - YIHIO TIV
IVIDNVIVE 1V IDNVIVE SIONVIVE aNn4 V101 ob BB T
WC MW WY ww @ w30 s Do s 602 INIWZHNOOYd TaNd
T 0% (444 SISNAdXI ONILYVYIO
: _ﬁ ooe 77 SLT4IN3E GNV SIOIAYIS TINNOSYId
i/ N\ Al SaNNd 40 sasn
— h \ H oos 2
N i 8 .
v . FAZ 00
< 009
88 SNOISSIONOD ANV S334 ONDIVd
SIONVIVE HSYD QILOTUISTUNN Q3LOAC0Nd
) 2z STIVS Tnd
"GINIWYR13Q 39 OL 13A SYH “(NISve
ONINUNL YIATS YNOV.LYISId) V-N3-SZ GH HLIM om_.suommu cze FOVRIVHM / SNOLLVYLSIOTY
ALV ISRITINT ANV AOR¥d NOLLYZILNOWY NYQT 267 e
3 qcE SAdd ONRIOOW
"£T0Z ‘TE YAAWIDIAA STUIAXT NOLLY.LHOISNWL
40 INIWLHYAIQ ANIVIW 40 J1VIS HIIM INTWITUOY 3SvaT = = b8 STVANTY ALTIDV4
FWLLYIA0 33A0TAWE 40 INIWNIVLINGD CENNLLNOD (b SANN4 40 S3NIN0S
YD1 4O ONY SHIV 5 MLV ios kL3S
“1SVDT404 FUNLIGNIAA TYLIVD 40 AOVANODY (F JANTNI Szt FONVIVE ANN4 DNIN3dO
SNOLIDICO¥d TANLNY QUYMOL SALLIALLISNIS INDMIND  ©
INNO _ (5000 $)
NOISSNosIa
(5,000 $)

LT0T ‘0€ INNC OL 9TOZ ‘T YILOLD0
Ganns azopusz ontanox) AAITAYAAO AUVINIWNNS MOT4 HSYD

SYOAYH ANV SLUOd 40 NOISIAIA

T



(43

vZE 1 745 (444 6LY oLy S99 S9¢ 8eE cED T8E FONVIVd ANNd DNISOTD
IS 9 MOTH HSVD 13N

(1) (86) () 6 (s6) 002 Va4 (¥6) _
ST PEeC 61T ZET (374 (334 TET £ 1T 50T

oy - (8 - ST - - ST - N ¥IHLO ANV STUNLIANIDE TWLIdYD
60T 74 Vi 8¢ X4 61 61 61 £T €2 INIWTNNDOU THN
oy - - ot - - ST - ST - S3OTAY3S TYNOISSIHONd
6ST ST g 61 a4 T4 e 81 4 [4! SALLOLLN
z6 13 6 1 6 11 1)1 T 6 o1 JALLVALSINIWGY ANV TYHaNaD
TET o1 01 0z ST (1) 81 ) 81 ST SALLTIDYA ANV SONIGTING
y773 0LT 6t 8t S9Z s Ly 591 oy Sp SLI4IN3E NV SIOTAYIS TANNOSYId
SANN4 40 3sn

T 9ET T 9T BT £IE 8ST 6bT 89T T
144 o€ 0€ 0¢ 5¢ 0z 0z 0z T4 74 SAVS HENd
08 € ST o1 - - - - s ST 5334 SNDvd
14 St ot 0s ST oy 0z 5L 58 ST FOV-RIVHM / SNOLLYYISIOTY
szg - - - 09 00z  S9 - - - S334 INRIOOW
8 [4 € 4 - - - = - T SANNIATS NOISSFONGCD
vsY S bS b S €5 €5 S €5 55 STVANTY ALTIIDVS
SAaKNd 40 SININOS
Sit G99 SO 9EE TEH I8 §ZE FONVIVE ANNd DNINIdO

W & W 33 AN IO

(5,000 $)

£T0T ‘0€ INNL OL STOT ‘T YILAOLD0
SANNZ GILOTULSTUNN -MOTd HSYD 40 LNIWILVLS
SUYOHUVH ANV SL40d 40 NOISIAIQ



|

(77 SO ©F S5 7Z9v 0% FIF SO ©5F 6ot FONYIVE ANN4 DNISOTD
9 € (€1) 8 L (1) 8 9 (om) 1] MO HSYD 13N
[-74 g 0¢ 4 [4 F44 T F4 ta4 Z
09 oz 0z 74 YIHLIO TIV
9 4 4 4 SADIAYIAS TYNOISSIHOHd
= = - - S3UTILIN
9 4 < - 4 FALLVIISININGY ANV TVYINTD
9 T 4 - T 4 = S3LINIDOVY ANV SONIQTINg
SLI43IN3E ANV STDIAYIS TINNOSHI
SANNd 30 3sn
8 g 1A [}4 3 [ [ g t41 F49
(114 4 4 4 4 € 4 4 € 4 S334 I9YMOTH 1and
1T I T r4 T T 1 1 z i SNOLLVYLSIORY
€S s b 9 9 S 9 S L 6 S334 39VSN ¥3Id
SANNd 40 SIDUN0S
(357 97 (737 9% 05 (747 SoF (332 69% oS FINVIVE ANNd DNINIHO
“WIOL NAT VA EE] VL o= 1] AON Do

- =z
: -
=N . L

g

€T

(5,000 $)

LT0T ‘0€ INNC CL 9TOZ ‘T YILOLD0
aNNd SNIDAUAG YOTAVH -MOTd HSYD 40 LNIWILVLS

SHOGAYH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIQ



(3% (57 0S 0s T8 T8 TS €5 172 (37 HONVIVE ANNdZ DNISOT1D

(1) - m - - @ S (M - MO HSVYD 13N

|
i
1
i
]
]
o
1
—
1

UIHLO TIV
S3DIANIS TYNOISSIHOYUd
SALLTILLN

JALLVHISINIWAY ANV TVH3NID
SALLTIIOVH ANV SONIQTING

S1I43N38 ANV SIDTAYIS TANNOSYAd
SAanNnd 40 asn

Y3IHLIO TV
STVINTY ALTDVA
SANN .40 S32UNO0S

I8 18 s €S ;14 (33 (53 FONVIVE ANNd DNINIJO
N EEE] AON

05
VIOt N AW ydv VA E] NVL SE] ilels)

4135
& ™

{5,000 $)

£LT0Z ‘0€ ANNC OL 9TOZ ‘T ¥WIFOLDO
ANOZ IGVH.L NDITHOH -MO1d HSVYD 40 INIWILVILS

SHOEYVH ANV SLY0d 40 NOISIAIG



N
]
g
g
3
g
3
-
g

FONVIVE ANNd ONISOTD

8T 8T 61 (s6) LT 91
V3% 4 PiT 4 3

LT L1 91 MO HSYD 13N

™
¢
i
o~
ol
r\| o
i
ol
o
ol

YIHLO TV

SIOIAYTS TYNOISS3H0Ud
SALLTILEN

JALLVHISININGY ONY TVHIANTD

&
~
o~

~
TN
[32]

o~

~

o~

™m

SALLTIIV- ANV SONIGTING

SLI43N3A ANV SIOIAYIS TANNOSHId
L1 - - Ay

t
Ly
—

1

1

]

QaNSSI SNYOT MaN
SANNd 4o asn

1 EI
1 ﬂ

x|
" %
[N a’
1 9'
"8
" al
¥ ‘q_}l
[N} a‘

SANNd a3¥3153N03s

~N
i
)
)
L o]
]
1

JONVIVE GNNS -BWOONI LS LNI

]
-
=
<+
=
<+

«+

.
=
=

SNVOT-3WODNI LSTHIINI
LET 9T 91 ST ST ST QT o1 ST ST SINZWAVATY-NVO
SANNd 40 SAUNOS
(57 65 81T (4134 66 8 s9 (34 FONYIVE GNNd DNINIADO
WIO NAC TN 2] NvE 33a AON D0
(5,000 $)

£T0T ‘0€ INNC OL 9T0Z ‘T WIAOLDO
NVOT ONIATOARY -MOId HSYD 40 INIWILVIS
SUHOMIVH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIQ



55 Inlarnational Drive, Partemouth, HH 03351

MOTION

Note: Effective January 1, 2016, RSA 91-A, the Right to Know Law was modified to provide
that minutes and decisions reached in a nonpublic session shall be publicly disclosed within 72
hours of the meeting, unless by recorded vote of 2/3 of the members present taken in public
session, it is determined that circumstances to withhold the information exist.

Director Bohenko:

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, Paragraph I the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the
divulgence of information discussed and and ddecisions reached in the
non-public session of its September 15, 2016 meeting related to:

1. Leasing of property;
2. Employee Hiring; and
3. Potential threat of litigation;

would, if disclosed publically, a) render the proposed actions ineffective;
and b) affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a member
of the public body itself; and agrees that the minutes of said meeting be
held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of
Directors, the aforesaid circumstances no longer apply.

Note: This motion requires 5 Affirmative Votes

N:\RESOLVES\Confidentiality0916.docx

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, September 15, 2016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

Presiding: George M. Bald, Chairman

Present: Robert A, Allard, Treasurer; John P. Bohenko; Margaret F. Lamson; Peter J. Loughlin,
Vice Chairman; Robert F. Preston; and Franklin G. Torr

Attending: David R. Mullen, PDA Executive Director; Lynn Marie Hinchee, PDA Deputy
Director/General Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public;

I Call to Order

Chairman Bald called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m. in the Board conference room at 55
International Drive, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

IL Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: August 18, 2016

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby accept the Minutes of the August 18, 2016 Board meeting. Discussion:
Director Lamson requested a clarification of the 7% cost underrun of fringe benefits as of June 30th as
shown in Finance Reports section of the Minutes. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion
carried.

II.  Public Comment

There were no comments from the public.
Iv. Old Business

No old business was brought before the Board.
V. Golf Committee Report

Director Bohenko, Committee Chair, reported that the Golf Committee met on September 12,
2016 to review Golf Course operations. The Committee reviewed the bid proposal for the lease of golf
carts and recommended that the bid proposal be staggered so that 30 golf carts would be replaced every
year after the initial three year period. Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, will review the proposal
with vendors. The Committee reviewed the restaurant operations and voted to recommend that the Board
approve the simulator software license with aboutGolf. Mr. DeVito reported on the use of the simulators
by fifty 2 player teams that play weekly during the winter. The license will provide updated software for
the simulators and applications for players® smart phones. Mr. DeVito reported that the Golf Course staff
inventoried the bunkers. There are 34 bunkers and 1 rake was missing and was replaced. There are ball
washers at every third hole.

A, Approvals
1. aboutGolf Simulator License

Director Allard moved and Director Loughlin seconded that In accordance with the
recommendation of the Pease Development Authority Golf Committee, the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter
into the Commercial Software License Subscription Agreement, as amended, with aboutGeolf,

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15,2016 Page 1



Limited, (“aboutGolf®) of Maumee, OH, for the provision and maintenance of the Golf Course
Clubhouse simulator software and equipment in an amount projected to be $5,200 per year, subject
to change in accordance with the usage of the simulator system; all in accordance with the
memorandum of Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, dated September 7, 2016 attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waive the RFP
requirement based upon the following justification:

1. aboutGolf is the sole source supplier of the software and equipment covered in the
License Agreement.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous roll call vote; motion carried.

VI.  Finance Committee Report

Irving Canner, PDA Director of Finance, reported that the Committee met on Monday, September
15, 2016 to review PDA finances. The Committee was advised that the PDA external audit field work
was finished and a report will be presented to the Audit Committee in October.

A. Financial Reports
1. Operating Results for the One Month Period Ending July 31, 2016

Mr. Canner reported on the status of the PDA FY 2017 finances for the one month period ending
July 31, 2017 including operating revenues and expenses. FY 16 is closed out and no trends have
developed yet for FY 17. Operating revenues of approximately $1.6 million include rental fees, golf
course fees, and fuel sales. With the reduction of seasonal employees, staffing numbers to date decreased
to 136 employees during the past month. The organizational chart was updated to show the recent
restructuring and includes 59 full-time benefitted positions. Other expenses include utilities, professional
services, and fuel costs.

The Balance Sheet figures for the period ending June 30, 20l6are preliminary. Several
construction projects were closed in FY 16 leaving a current balance for construction work in progress of
approximately $550,000. In response to Director Lamson, Mr. Canner reviewed the components of the
capital assets’ figures. Net pension liabilities for the period is approximately $3.6 million. As of June 30,
the figure was revised by the State to $4.3 million. Mr. Canner reviewed the variances to the pension
liability. Pension liabilities, which are not the same as pension contributions, are reported in accordance
with GASB 67 and were added to the statements in FY 2015. Director Bohenko requested that a footnote
be added to the unrestricted net position regarding PDA’s pension liability.

Mr. Canner reviewed the differences in the net positions between PDA’s operations and the
Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH). PDA expects to work out its net deficit within approximately two
years. Discussion continued regarding DPH operations, and obligations interest rate assumptions, and
market variations. Director Bohenko felt that the Board and Finance Committee should review DPH
operations and review upcoming revenues. Chairman Bald agreed with addition of a footnote to the
Balance Sheet.

Enplanements at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM”) as of August 31, 2016 are
47,269, which exceeds the number for the same period last year Skyhaven Airport (‘DAW”) had a net
operating income of approximately $7,000 for the period. The net cash flow since DAW’s transfer to
PDA in 2009 is a deficit amount of approximately $1.4 million. PDA absorbs approximately $75,000

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15,2016 Page2



annually for DAW operations. Golf Course operating revenues are ahead of budget with a positive cash
flow for the period of approximately $218,000. Bar and grill sales and rounds of golf played are ahead of
the same period last year. The Golf Course opened early this year and the rain dates will be adjusted to
provide an accurate comparison of past years. Simulator revenues are expected to increase in the winter
months. Mr. Canner reviewed DPH’s financial position including unrestricted and restricted cash
balances.

2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to May 31, 2017

Mr. Canner reviewed PDA flow projections for the nine month period ending May 31, 2017
including sources of funds. PDA Cash balances are expected to increase to approximately $4 million at
the end of the period. Grant funded construction projects of approximately $3.9 million include the PSA
Terminal renovations and NH ANG taxiway. Non-grant funded projects of approximately $1.1 million
include the PSM Terminal roof replacement and purchase of Golf Course equipment. Mr. Canner
reviewed DPH’s cash flow variances including the ME DOT lease expiration in 2017 and the repayment
obligation to the State of $250,000 for the Piscataqua River turning basin project. Director Loughlin
requested that a footnote also be added to the DPH unrestricted funds regarding pension liability.

B. Approvals
1. Provident Bank — Line of Credit Extension

Director Bohenko moved and Director Lamson seconded that In accordance with the
recommendation of the Pease Development Authority Finance Committee, the PDA Board of
Directors approves and authorizes the Executive Director and any other required signatories to:

1. extend the term of the Revolving Line of Credit Facility with Provident Bank
through December 31, 2017; and

2, execute Certificate(s) of Resolution in such form as has been approved by PDA
General Counsel and the Director of Finance and to enter into such agreements as
may be required to effect this resolution;

all in accordance with the memorandum from Irving Canner, Director of Finance, dated
September 6, 2016 attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote;
motion carried.

VII. Leases
A, Reports

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements”, Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

1. Kanerd Development, LLC — 166 Corporate Drive
Kanerd Development LLC entered into a sublease with Lonza Biologics, Inc. for 102,400 square

feet at 166 Corporate Drive for a base term of 10 years with three 2 year options to extend. Director
Lamson approved the sublease.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15,2016 Page3



B. Approvals
1L Tower Hill Development LL.C — 185 International Drive Expansion

Director Lamson moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes Tower Hill Development, LLC to
amend the concept plans (previously approved by the Board on August 16, 2012) to change the
entrance way on the expansion portion of the premises located at 185 International Drive; all in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E.,
Manager - Engineering, dated September 8, 2016 attached hereto. Discussion: Director Lamson
commended Maria Stowell, P.E., Manager — Engineering for her review of the stormwater treatment in
connection with the project. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

VIII. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A. Reéports
1. Write Off Accounts Receivable

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent and Approval for Execution of
Documents, To Write off Accounts Receivables” Mr. Mullen reported that PDA wrote off Grimmel
Industries, Inc. in the total amount of $1,984.55. Director Allard, Treasurer, approved the transaction.

2, Golf Course Operations

Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, reported on the activities at the Pease Golf Course. Forty-
five thousand rounds of golf have been played year to date. The rounds played are expected to exceed
53,000 for the calendar year. Member renewal applications were sent out. The “Pay Now Play Now”
program will begin on September 20, 2016, Mr. DeVito reviewed the fees for adult memberships.
Membership is capped at 250 adults and 50 student/juniors. Promotions for the simulators will begin at
the end of the month. '

3. Airport Operations
Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, reported on aviation activities.
a) PSM
As of August 31¥, enplanements exceeded 47,000. Allegiant Airlines resumes service to Sanford/
Orlando Florida on September 29%. Service to Clearwater/St. Petersburg, Florida will begin on November
17% and to Punta Gorda, Florida on November 18t%. Service to Fort Lauderdale will begin on December
17%. In February, 2017, Allegiant will offer services 6 days per week. Work on the Terminal roof and
bathrooms is ongoing. Demolition of the old tower has begun.
b) Skyhaven Airport
To date, there were 5,694 aircraft operations including 732 in August.
c) Noise Line Report

Mr. Pomeroy reported that 117 inquiries were made to the Noise Line in August, 2016. There
were 78 inquiries related to helicopter operations; and 39 inquiries related to fixed-wing operations,
including military and non-military flights.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2016 Page 4



B. Approvals
1. Farley White Pease LLC — 100 Arboretum Drive Storage Shed

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves and authorizes Farley White Pease LL.C to construct a storage
shed on the premises located at 100 Arboretum Drive; all in accordance with the memorandum of
Maria Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering dated September 7, 2016 attached hereto. Discussion:
Director Lamson noted that the landscaping on the premises are very well done and maintained.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

C. Ratification and Approval
1. Document Signatures
a) Kanerd Development LL.C — Lease Amendment No. 2
b) Kanerd Development LLC — Notice of Consent
) Danielle’s Dash — Right of Entry

Director Preston moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors, hereby ratifies and approves of the following documents attached hereto
executed by LynnMarie Hinchee, PDA Deputy Director/General Counsel on behalf of David R.
Mullen, PDA Executive Director:

1. Kanerd Development LLC Lease Amendment No. 2;
2. Notice of Consent issued to Kanerd Development LL.C; and
3. Right of Entry — Danielle’s Dash Road Race

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

IX. Division of Ports and Harbors
A. Reports 4
1. Port Advisory Council

Tracy Shattuck, Chief Harbor Master, reported that the Port Advisory Council did not meet in
September. The security audit at the Market Street Terminal was recently completed and went very well.
Chief Shattuck thanked Grant Nichols, Deputy Chief Harbor Master and Dan Pollinger for their work on
the security audit.

B. Approvals
1, PDA 600 — Various — Final Adoption

Director Torr moved and Director Preston seconded that In accordance with RSA 12-G:42,
X(d), the PDA Board of Directors hereby adopts parts of Chapter Pda 600, State-Owned
Commercial Piers and Associated Facilities designated as Pda 603.02(d) and Pda 603.11 as
amended in accordance with the Conditional Approval issued on July 21, 2016 by the Joint
Legislative Committee on Administrative Rules attached hereto. Parts Pda 603.02(d) and Pda
603.11 shall be effective September 16, 2016.

In accordance with RSA 541-A:14, III, that the Division Director submit, Parts Pda

603.02(d) and Pda 603.11 as adopted, to the Director of Legislative Services for filing. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15, 2016 Page 5



2. Dept. of Homeland Security — Grant Acceptance

Director Loughlin moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to accept on behalf of the
PDA - Division of Ports and Harbors (“DPH"), a Department of Homeland Security Grant Offer in
the amount of $58,773.00 for the security and software upgrades at Division facilities; all in
accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 6, 2016
attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried

X. New Business

No new business was brought before the Board.
XI. Upcoming Meetings
Chairman Bald announced the following upcoming meetings:

Port Committee October 6, 2016 555 Market Street
Audit Committee October 17,2016
Board of Directors October 20, 2016

All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

XII. Directors’ Comments

Director Preston asked about the work going on at the North Jetty. Chief Shattuck reported that
the Army Corps of Engineers is repairing the North Jetty due to storm damage,

XIII. Non-Public Session

Director Bohenko moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors will enter non-public session pursuant to:

1. NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph II(d) for the purpose of discussing the acquisition, sale
or lease of property;

2. NHRSA 91-A:3, Paragraph II(e) for consideration or negotiation of pending claims
or litigation which has been threatened in writing or filed against the body or agency or any
subdivision thereof, or against any member thereof because of his or her membership in
such body or agency, until the claim or litigation has been fully adjudicated or otherwise
settled.

Note: Roll call vote required. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote;
motion carried. The Board entered into non-public session at 8:50 a.m. The Board returned to public

session at 10:26 a.m.

XIV. Vote of Confidentiality

Director Allard moved and Director Loughlin seconded that Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-
A:3, Paragraph ITI, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15,2016 Page 6



the divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of its
September 15, 2016 meeting related to:

1. Potential threat of litigation; and
2. Leasing of property;

would, if disclosed publically, a) render the proposed actions ineffective; and b) affect.adversely the
reputation of any person other than a2 member of the public body itself; and agrees that the minutes
of said meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the
aforesaid circumstances no longer apply., Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote; motion carried

XV. Adjournment

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board meeting.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried. Meeting adjourned at
10:28 a.m.

XVI. Press Questions

There were no members of the press at the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

vid R. Mullen
Executive Director/Secretary

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 15,2016 Page 7



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Tuesday, October 18, 2016

Time:
Place:

11

V.
VL

VIL

VIIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA

8:00 A.M.
55 International Drive
Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801
Call to Order (John Bohenko)
Acceptance of Committee Meeting Minutes: April 18, 2016*
Public Comment
FY 2016 External Audit (Irv Canner and Mark LaPrade)

A. Reports

1. Management Representation Letter *

2. Executive Summary of Audit Engagement *

3. Auditor Required Communication Letter *

B. Approvals (Peter Loughlin)¥* +
1. Certified Financial Statements *
2. Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal Awards *
Next Meeting- TBD
Director’s Comments
Adjournment

Press Questions

* Related Materials Attached
+ Proposed Motion



55 intarnaiional Drive, Porismouth, NH 33801

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Development
Authority Audit Committee, the PDA Board of Directors accepts receipt
of the certified Annual Financial Statement for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015 and the Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal Awards for the
year ended June 30, 2016; all as prepared and submitted by the PDA’s
independent auditor Berry, Dunn, McNeill and Parker, LLC; and further
authorizes the Executive Director to forward the certified Financial
Statement to the State of New Hampshire for inclusion in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

N:\RESOLVES\Audit1016.docx

OO0O00O TAKING YOU THERE



MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director pt~_
Date: October 20, 2016
Re:  Sublease between Pioneer Aviation LLC and Atlantic Plastics & Recycling, LLC

In accordance with the ‘Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of
Sub-sublease Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that
PDA has approved of a sublease between Pioneer Aviation LLC (“Pioneer") and Atlantic Plastics
& Recycling, LLC for 10,500 square feet located at 125 Aviation Avenue, The Pioneer/ Atlantic
Plastics & Recycling, LLC Sublease is for a base term of five years effective September 15,
2016. Atlantic Plastics & Recycling, LLC will be use the premises forplastics recycling and
general offices.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is
permitted under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4, The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on
Pioneer's continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the
PDA/Pioneer Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

P:\PIONEER\125 Aviation\Board\BoardmemAtlantic1016.docx

OO0OO TAKING YOU THERE

55 Inigrnational Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



z
-
m

\4

]
»m

c<
—|Ew
X r4
o°>>
:U'U—l
-=
=-m gm
<zl

= I"HIl

MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <t~
Date; October 20, 2016
Re:  Sublease between 100 International, LLC and Total Technical Services, Inc.

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has
approved of a sublease between 100 International, LLC (*100INTL”) and Total Technical
Services, Inc., a technology staffing and recruiting service, to lease 1,178 square feet (Suite 365)
wilth 3 lease term of three years. The subleased premises will be used for general office and
related uses.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that;

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is
permitted under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Sublease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.”

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on
100INTL's continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the
PDA/100INTL Lease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Lease Agreements also

requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTLA100 International\Board\Boardmem1016.docx

O00OO TAKING YOU THERE

55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801



55 Intarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 33801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to enter into Amendment No. 3 to the
Terminal Lease & Airfield Operating Agreement with Allegiant Air, LLC on
substantially the same terms and conditions of the draft Amendment No.
3 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\Allegiant1016.docx

OO0O0OOC TAKING YOU THERE



TERMINAL LEASE & AIRFIELD OPERATING AGREEMENT
AMENDMENT NO. 3°

Lessor: Pease Development Authority (“Lessor” or “PDA")
Lessee: Allegiant Air, LLC (Lessee)

Premises:  Airport Terminal Building, 36 Airline Avenue
Portsmouth International Airport at Péase, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Lease Date:  October 25, 2013

This Amendment No. 3 to the Terminal Lease and Airfield Operating Agreement (the
“Agreement”) effective November 8, 2016 by and between the above referenced Lessor and

Lessee:

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee entered into an Agreement on October 25, 2013 which
Agreement had a term commencement date of November 8, 2013 (the date on which Lessee
began air passenger service at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease).

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to extend its Agreement for one additional year through
November 7, 2017 and Lessor has agreed to the same;

NOW, THEREFORE, Lessor and Lessee agree for good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, that the Agreement be amended as set
forth below:

a.) Article 3, Section 3.1 is amended to extend the Agreement through November 7,
2017.

b.) Article 4.A.1., as modified by Amendment No. 2 and entitled “Lessee’s Service
Obligations” is deleted in its entirely and replaced with the following language:

Lessee shall exercise best efforts to re-commence commercial passenger air
transportation services on or about September 29, 2016. For a period of one (1) year
following the commencement of such operations, Lessee will schedule, and to the extent
not otherwise excused, a minimum of two (2) scheduled direct departure and return
flights per week between the following airports: Portsmouth International Airport at
Pease (PSM) and Sanford-Orlando (SFB), Fort Lauderdale International Airport (FLL),
Punta Gorda (PGD) and St. Petersburg-Clearwater International Airport (PIE).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee may seasonally adjust service on its routes and
temporarily suspend, reduce or increase service during times when demand for service

fluctuates.



c.) - All other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended, shall remain in full
force and effect and shall continue to be binding upon the Parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Amendment No. 3 on
, 2016

Lessee: ALLEGIANT AIR, LLC

By:

Print Name:

Its:

Lessor: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By:

David R. Mullen

Its: Executive Director



STATE OF NEVADA
1 88

COUNTY OF CLARK

On this day of , 2016, before me, ,
the undersigned officer in and for said County and State, personally appeared ;

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the
of Allegiant Air, LLC, and on oath stated that he was authorized to

execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes
set forth herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
: ss,

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

On this day of , 2016, before me, ,

the undersigned officer in and for said County and State, personally appeared David R. Mullen,
personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Executive
Director of the Pease Development Authority and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this
instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth

herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name: ,
My commission expires:




Spyglass Development, LLC

Motion to be presented at meeting



55 Inigrnational Orive, Porismouth, NH 33801

October 14, 2016

Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LL.C
The Kane Company

135 Commerce Way, Suite 100
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Dear Mr. Kane:

Pursuant to our recent negotiations, and the action taken by the PDA Board of Directors at its
meeting on August 16, 2016 authorizing me to complete negotiations and to enter into a revised
lease with Spyglass Development LLC (“Spyglass”), the following is a summary of the central
business terms under which I am prepared to conclude this transaction.

Premises: The location of the leased premises is an 8.26 acre lot together with an
original building consisting of 36,000 square feet and a 16,500 square foot
addition, which addition was constructed by and is owned by Spyglass.

Existing Lease: The Premises are subject to an existing lease, effective September 1996, and
assigned to Spyglass in February 2002 (the “Lease”). Amendments to the
Lease were executed in September 2006, December 2008 and November
2011. In August 2012, the parties negotiated an amendment to the Lease to
extend the term through July 2002 and to fix building area rent to that date.
Additional included amendments brought the Lease into conformity with
Deed references.

New Construction: To induce PDA to enter into a New Lease Agreement (the “New Lease”),
Spyglass has agreed to undertake and to continue with due diligence at its
sole cost and expense following execution of the New Lease the design and
construction of an addition to the Premises consisting of a minimum of
37,000 square feet (“Addition 2”) with related improvements. Spyglass’s
obligation shall include without limitation the obligation to make timely
application, diligently pursue and obtain necessary approvals and/or any
and all permits required for its construction and intended use of the
Premises.

In addition to the construction of Addition 2, Spyglass will make structural
repairs and other capital improvements to the original building, as mutually
agreed by the parties in the New Lease.

O000O TAKING YOU THERE



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LL.C
The Kane Company
October 14, 2016

Page 2

Future Expansion: It is the current expectation of Spyglass to construct, during the term of the
new Lease, at least one additional expansion which shall approximate
13,000 square feet (“Addition 3”) to accommodate its projected needs. It is
anticipated that at full build out the Premises will consist of 102,500 square
feet, of which 66,500 will be owned by Spyglass. Spyglass acknowledges
that Addition 3 is not as of right, and that any development beyond the
Addition 2 (as approved by the PDA Board) shall require Spyglass to seek
the reasonable approval of PDA, which reasonable approval shall take into
account the PDA’s right and obligation as Airport Operator to exercise its
governmental function to protect the interests of the public airport, and to
further comply with PDA Land Use Controls and all applicable federal,
state and other applicable laws.

Base Term:; The base term, including all available extension options of the New Lease
shall be a total of forty-five (45) years commencing not later than occupancy
of Addition 2 (the “Term Commencement Date”). At the request of
Spyglass, PDA would consent to a base term of twenty-five (25) years with
four (4) options of five (5) years each. In the event Addition 3 is not
constructed and occupied within the first five (5) years of the base term, the
New Lease will provide for an automatic extension to forty-five (45) years
commencing on occupancy of Addition 3 but subject to PDA’s reasonable
approval as described above. In the event the Federal Aviation
Administration (“FAA”) shall issue new compliance policy to permit a term
of years in excess of forty-five (45) years applicable to the Premises,
Spyglass may request from PDA an extension of the New Lease term,
provided, however, any such extension shall be at the sole discretion and
exclusive judgment of PDA, taking into consideration its right and
obligation as Airport Operator to exercise its governmental function to
protect the interests of the public airport known as Portsmouth International

Airport at Pease

Existing

Building

Area Rent: The present rent rate for the Premises is blended at $240,000 per year. This
rate was effective on August 1, 2016 and is subject under the terms of the
Lease to increase on August 1, 2017 to $253,950 and three more times on
each August 1 until August 1, 2021 at which time the scheduled annual
rate will be $280,950.

New Lease

Ground

Area Rent: PDA will convert the Existing Building Area Rent to a Ground Area Rent

without regard to additional square footage constructed on the Premises.



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LLC
The Kane Company
October 14, 2016

Page 3

PDA has agreed to this Ground Area Rent structure in recognition of the
substantial investment and ownership interest which Spyglass has in
building improvements and PDA’s finding that the per acre Ground Area
Rent is conmsistent with federal grant assurances and other federal
requirements.

The annual Ground Area Rent for the first five (5) years of the Base Term,
will be fixed at $240,000, subject thereafter to annual adjustments of the
lesser of CPI or 3%, not to exceed 12% in any five year period; provided,
however, that the first adjustment in year 6 shall be set at the actual change
in CPI for the prior five (5) year period.

CPI Adjustment:  Ground Area Rent shall be adjusted as provided in the Lease to reflect
changes in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers applicable
to the Boston area (all items 1982 - 1984 + 100) published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics or any replacement
index (the "CPI Index").

Municipal

Services Fee: In accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Services Agreement by
and between the PDA and the City of Portsmouth with an effective date of
July 1, 1998, Spyglass shall pay to PDA a municipal services fee to include
the cost of providing police, fire and public works services.

Net Lease: The New Lease shall be triple net to PDA and all costs associated with the
use, occupancy, maintenance and insurance of the Premises shall be borne
by Spyglass.

Use: Engineering, machining, welding, brazing, metal forming, assembly,

testing, office administration, computer support, management and sales
related to consulting services, research and development activities,
manufacturing, sales and service and for no other uses without PDA’s prior
written consent.

Spyglass’'s Work:  Spyglass shall not place or construct any improvements, changes,
structures, alterations or additions (cumulatively referred to in this Article
as “Alterations") in, to or upon the Premises without PDA's written consent.
If PDA grants its consent all such work shall be done at Spyglass's sole cost
and expense, subject, in all cases, to the following covenants:

(1) All work and Alterations shall be done in compliance with all
applicable governmental regulations, codes, standards or other
requirements, including fire, safety and building codes and Land Use



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LLC
The Kane Company
October 14,2016

Page 4

Regulations promulgated by PDA and with the provisions of Article 25 of
the New Lease. This obligation shall include compliance with all applicable
provisions of the FFA (as defined in Section 25.8), including obligations
imposed upon PDA in respect to construction and construction related
work.

2) All Alterations shall be of such a character as not to materially
reduce the value and usefulness of any of the buildings or other
improvements below their value and usefulness immediately before such
Alteration. All work performed hereunder shall be performed in a good and
workmanlike manner, shall conform to drawings and specifications
approved by PDA and shall not be disruptive of the overall operation the
Airport. All contractors engaged by Spyglass to perform such work shall
employ labor that can work in harmony with all elements of labor at the
Airport.

(3)  During the period of construction of any Alterations, Spyglass or
any contractor, subcontractor or sublessee of Spyglass shall maintain or
cause to be maintained the following insurance:

@) The comprehensive general liability and property damage
insurance provided for in paragraph (a) of Section 7.2 of
the Lease shall be maintained for the limits specified
thereunder and shall provide coverage for the mutual
benefit of PDA and Spyglass as named insured in connection
with any Alteration permitted pursuant hereto; -

(ii)  Fire and any other applicable insurance provided for in
Article 7 which if not then covered under the provisions of
existing policies shall be covered by special endorsement
thereto in respect to any Alteration, including all materials
and equipment therefore incorporated in, on or about the
Leased Premises (including excavations, foundations, and
footings) under a broad form all risks builder's risk
completed value form or equivalent thereof; and

(ili) Workers' compensation insurance covering all persons
employed in connection with the work and with respect to
whom death or bodily injury claims could be asserted against
PDA, Spyglass or the Subleased Premises, with statutory
limits as then required under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire.



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LLC
The Kane Company
October 14, 2016

Page 5

The provisions of all applicable Sections of Article 7 of this Sublease shall
apply to all insurance provided for in this Section.

4 Spyglass shall provide PDA with MYLAR as-built drawings when
any Alteration authorized hereunder is completed.

EDA Grant _

Provisions: To the extent PDA has received federal grants from the U.S. Department of
Commerce Economic Development Administration to improve the Leased
Premises, the Lease shall contain a covenant that the Lease is consistent
with the authorized general and specific purposes of the EDA grant, in this
instance the development of industrial/business facilities in the Industrial
and Business/Commercial Zones of the former Pease Air Force Base;
Spyglass’s agreement to provide service without discrimination to all
persons without regard to their age, race, color, religion, sex, handicap or
national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;
and a covenant that the Leased Premises shall not be transferred, mortgaged
or encumbered without the approval of the Assistant Secretary for
Economic Development.

Insurance: Spyglass’s agreement to provide insurance coverages in accordance with
Article 7 of the New Lease.

Sublease and
Assignment: Spyglass may, without the approval of PDA, assign its rights under the New
Lease to or enter into a sublease of the Premises with an affiliate (i.e., any
entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with
Spyglass). For purposes of the preceding sentence, the term "control" shall
mean ownership or other beneficial interest in at least fifty-one percent
(51%) of the voting stock or other voting interest of an entity. All other
assignments shall be subject to approval of PDA. PDA shall not
unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any sublease or assignment
if: (1) the use of the Premises associated with any sublease(s) or
assignment(s) is permitted under Article 9 of the Agreement, (2) the
sublease(s) are consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement;
provided, however, that Spyglass may rent the subleased area at rentals
deemed appropriate by Spyglass, (3) Spyglass remains primarily liable to
PDA to pay rent and to perform all other obligations to be performed by
Spyglass under the Agreement, and (4) the proposed sublessee is financially
and operationally respansible. In the event the rent of the leased premises
exceeds the rental charged to Spyglass under Article 4, Spyglass shall remit
fifty percent (50%) of such excess to PDA upon receipt by Spyglass;
provided, however, that any rental received by Spyglass during a period in



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LLC

The Kane Company

October 14, 2016
Page 6

Brokerage:

Right to Purchase:

which no rental is due to PDA shall be paid in its entirety to PDA.

No subletting, assignment or transfer, whether PDA's consent is required or
otherwise given hereunder, shall release Spyglass's obligations or alter the
primary liability of Spyglass to pay the rent and to perform all other
obligations to be performed by Spyglass under the Agreement. The
acceptance of rent by PDA from any other person shall not be deemed to be
a waiver by PDA of any provision hereof. Consent to one assignment or
subletting shall not be deemed consent to any subsequent assignment or
subletting. If any assignee of Spyglass or any successor of Spyglass
defaults in the performance of any of the terms hereof, PDA may proceed
directly against Spyglass without the necessity of exhausting remedies
against such assignee or successor. If Spyglass assigns the Agreement, or
sublets all or a portion of the Leased Premises, or requests the consent of
PDA to any assignment or subletting, or if Spyglass requests the consent of
PDA for any act that Spyglass proposes to do, then Spyglass shall pay
PDA's reasonable processing fee and reimburse PDA for all reasonable
attorneys' fees, excluding any fees to in-house counsel, incurred in
connection therewith. Any assignment or subletting of the Leased Premises
that is not in compliance with these provisions shall be void and shall, at the
option of PDA, but subject to any applicable cure provisions, terminate the
Agreement.

Each party warrants to the other that it has had no dealing with any real
estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this letter or the
New Lease.

During the term of the New Lease, in the event PDA determines at its, to
seek a release of the Premises from the FAA it shall notify Spyglass in
writing of its intent to pursue such release before notifying any third parties
for the purpose of listing or marketing the Premises for Sale. The terms and
conditions of such Right of First Refusal to Purchase the Premises shall be
subject to the terms and conditions mutually agreed to by the Parties and set
forth in the New Lease and shall be subject to all obligations of PDA under
its Public Benefit Conveyance for airport purposes, it federal grant
assurances and the compliance regulations established by the Federal
Aviation Administration for Release of Airport Property and Obligations.

This letter does not constitute a binding agreement of the Parties, does not alter, amend or waive
any rights and obligations of the Parties under the Existing Lease, and no new legal obligation
shall arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a New Lease is executed by the Parties.



Mr. Michael Kane, Manager
Spyglass Development LL.C
The Kane Company
October 14, 2016

Page 7

I believe this proposal addresses the terms as discussed to date. It is my hope that you will be in a
position to advise us of your commitment to Pease by executing this original and the enclosed
copy in the space provided and returning the original to my attention. If you have any questions,

please give me a call.

Sincerely,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

DRM:Imh

I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which Spyglass will proceed to
negotiate a mutually acceptable Lease Agreement for the Premises with PDA, subject to the
authority delegated by the PDA Board of Directors to the Executive Director and any other

governmental approvals that may be required.

Spyglass Development, LLC

Date By:
Its duly authorized:




Exhibit A
Leased Premises



Exhibit B

EDA Grant Provisions



Exhibit C

Article 7 - Insurance



55 Intarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 33801

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to enter
into an interim Lease substantially on the terms and conditions contained
in the draft Letter of Intent dated October 13, 2016 attached hereto; and
further approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to complete
negotiations for a long term Lease for the premises located at 14 Aviation
Avenue, Hangar 227 at the November 17, 2016 Board meeting.

N:\RESOLVES\Hanagar2271016.docx

O0O0OOC TAKING YOU THERE



o

—
ASE

:=g

TERNATIO 55 lnlarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801

T N
DEVELOPME
AUTHORITY

4

DRAFT FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT - LOI001
October 13, 2016

Mzr. Marcus D. Ebert
Executive Vice President
Royal Technical Group, Inc.
187 McGrew Drive
Burlington, NC 27215

Dear Mr. Ebert:

Pursuant to our recent discussions, I am pleased, on behalf of the Pease Development Authority
(“PDA™) to submit the following outline of terms and conditions of a proposed agreement with
Royal Technical Group, Inc. (“RTG”) for development of 14 Aviation Avenue, a 203,998 square
foot hangar for the purpose of providing an FAA certificated maintenance, repair, and overhaul
operation (“MRO”), including customary accessory uses at Pease International Tradeport
(“Pease”).

Landlord: Pease Development Authority
Tenant: Royal Technical Group, Inc.
Premises: The location of the leased premises is a 17.61 acre lot together with an

existing hangar building consisting of 203,998 square feet located at 14
Aviation Avenue as shown on a plan recorded at the Rockingham Country
Registry of Deeds on October 7, 1999 as Plan D-27540 (14 Aviation” or
“Hangar 2277).

Storage: Prior to execution of the anticipated long-term Lease of the Premises, PDA
and RTG intend to enter into an interim Lease (the “Interim Lease”) for a
portion of the premises to permit the cold storage of inventory, tooling,
equipment and a tail dock enclosure valued at approximately $6.5 Million
Dollars. As used herein, cold storage designates that the personal property
will be held under cover without action and that the Premises will not be
open to employees, agents or contractors of RTG without escort by PDA
personnel. The portion of the Premises to be used during the Interim Lease
Period is approximately 25,000 square feet at an annual rate of $1.75 per
square foot.

Interim Term: In no event shall the term of the Interim Lease exceed six (6) months,
subject to a six (6) month extension as approved by the PDA Board and

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

October 13, 2016
Page 2

Interim Term
Security Deposit:

Lease
Agreement:

Base Term:

Building
Area Rent:

CPI Adjustment:

subject to their determination of adequate progress toward FAA
certification.

Adequate to permit PDA to remove, and dispose of equipment and parts in
the event of RTG’s bankruptcy, Interim Lease termination or the Premises
are abandoned.

To induce PDA to enter into a Lease Agreement (the “Lease”); RTG has
agreed to undertake and to continue with due diligence at its sole cost and
expense the design, installation and construction of improvements to the
Premises necessary or appropriate to RTG’s obligation to become a
certificated 14 CFR Part 145 Repair Station. These improvements have
been estimated by PDA to be $4M to $6M. RTG’s obligation shall include
without limitation its obligation to timely file a Pre-application Statement
of Intent (“PASI”) FAA Form 8400-6 not later than [INSERT DATE], and
to diligently thereafter file a Formal Application and to pursue and obtain
necessary all approvals and/or any and all perrmts required for its intended
use of the Premises.

The Lease shall be effective upon execution. The base term of the Lease,
including all available options to extend the Lease shall not exceed a total
of thirty (30) years commencing not later than the first to occur of (i)
[INSERT EVENT] or (ii) [INSERT DATE CERTAIN].

The Building Area Rent for the Premises on the Term Commencement Date
will be $3.50 per square foot. RTG has represented to PDA its intent to
phase occupancy of the Premises in three (3) phase. It is a condition
precedent to execution the Lease that the parties agree to the amount of
square footage to be occupied in each of the three (3) phases identified by
RTG. Each phase shall be accompanied by a commitment range for
employment, which employment shall be a condition precedent to exercise
of any available option to extend the Lease. RTG shall be obligated to pay
to PDA rent on the entirety of the Premises not later than [INSERT DATE

CERTAIN].

The Building Area Rent for the first five (5) years of the Base Term, will be
fixed at $3.50 per square foot, subject thereafter to annual adjustments of
the lesser of CPI or 3%, not to exceed 12% in any five year period; provided,
however, that the first adjustment in year 6 shall be set at the actual change
in CPI for the prior five (5) year period.

Building Area Rent shall be adjusted as provided in the Lease to reflect



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

October 13, 2016
Page 3

Municipal
Services
Fee:

Net Lease:

Use:

RTG’s Work:

changes in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers applicable
to the Boston area (all items 1982 - 1984 + 100) published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics or any replacement
index (the "CPI Index").

During the term of the Interim Lease and the Lease, and accordance with
the provisions of the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the
PDA, the Town of Newington and the City of Portsmouth with an effective
date of July 1, 1998, pursuant to the provisions of NHRSA 12-G:14, RTG
shall pay to PDA a municipal services fee to include the cost of providing
police, fire and public works services.

Except as otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the Lease shall be triple
net to PDA and all costs associated with tenant fit-up, use, occupancy,
maintenance and insurance of the Premises shall be borne by RTG.

Operation of a Certificated 14 CFR Part 145 Repair Station.

RTG shall not make any repairs or modification, or place or construct any
improvements, changes, structures, alterations or additions (cumulatively
referred to in this Lease as “Alterations") in, to or upon the Premises without
PDA's prior written consent and such other approvals or concurrences as
PDA in its sole discretion shall deem necessary or advisable. If PDA
grants its consent all such work shall be done at RTG's sole cost and
expense, subject, in all cases, to the following covenants:

¢)) All work and Alterations shall be done in compliance with all
applicable governmental regulations, codes, standards or other
requirements, including fire, safety and building codes and Land Use
Regulations promulgated by PDA and with the provisions of Article 25 of
the Lease. This obligation shall include compliance with all applicable
provisions of the FFA (as defined in Section 25.8 of the Lease), including
obligations imposed upon PDA. in respect to construction and construction
related work.

(2)  All Alterations shall be of such a character as not to materially
reduce the value and usefulness of any of the buildings or other
improvements below their value and usefulness immediately before such
Alteration. All work performed hereunder shall be performed in a good and
workmanlike manner, shall conform to drawings and specifications
approved by PDA and shall not be disruptive of the overall operation the
Airport. All contractors engaged by RTG to perform such work shall



Mzr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

October 13, 2016
Page 4

employ labor that can work in harmony with all elements of labor at the

Airport.

(3)  During the period of construction of any Alterations, RTG or any
contractor, subcontractor or sublessee of RTG shall maintain or cause to be
maintained the following insurance:

@) The comprehensive general liability and property damage
insurance provided for in paragraph (a) of Section 7.2 of
the Lease shall be maintained for the limits specified
thereunder and shall provide coverage for the mutual
benefit of PDA and RTG as named insured in connection
with any Alteration permitted pursuant hereto;

(i)  Fire and any other applicable insurance provided for in
Article 7 which if not then covered under the provisions of
existing policies shall be covered by special endorsement
thereto in respect to any Alteration, including all materials
and equipment therefore incorporated in, on or about the
Leased Premises (including excavations, foundations, and
footings) under a broad form all risks builder's risk
completed value form or equivalent thereof; and

(iii) Workers' compensation insurance covering all persons
employed in connection with the work and with respect to
whom death or bodily injury claims could be asserted against
PDA, RTG or the Subleased Premises, with statutory limits
as then required under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire.

The provisions of all applicable Sections of Article 7 of the Lease shall

apply to all insurance provided for herein.

Insurance:

Permitting:

(4)  RTG shall provide PDA with MYLAR as-built drawings when
any Alteration authorized hereunder is completed.

RTG’s agreement to provide insurance coverages in accordance with Article
7 of the Lease. [INSERT ADDITIONAL PROVISION FOR POLLUTION
PREVENTION LIABILITY COVERAGE TO INCLUDE DEFENSE
COSTS.]

RTG warrants that prior to engaging in any use or occupancy of the
Premises, it will hold all certificates, permits, license or other entitlements



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

October 13, 2016
Page 5

Environmental
Conditions:

required by federal, state or local laws, and that the same are and will be
kept current valid and complete. RTG further warrants that it shall at all
times abide by and conform with all terms of the same and that it shall give
immediate notice to PDA of any additions, renewals, amendments,
suspension or revocations. In the use and occupation of the Premises and
the conduct of its business thereon, RTG, at its sole cost and expense, shall
promptly comply with all present and future laws, ordinances, order, rules,
regulations and requirements of all federal, state and municipal
governments, courts, departments, commissions and boards, any national,
state or local Board of Fire Underwriters, or any other body exercising
functions similar to those of any of the foregoing.

The following is a partial list of issues identified and required to be
addressed in connection with RTG’s proposed improvement of the Premises
to PDA'’s satisfaction prior to execution of the Lease Agreement.

A) Conformance with Airport Layout Plan

B) Noise Mitigation

C) Aircraft Washing

D) Renovation or Replacement of HVAC System

E) Renovation or Replacement of Fire Suppression System

RTG acknowledges that the Pease International Tradeport has been
identified as a National Priority List (NPL) site under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), as
amended. RTG acknowledges that PDA has provided it with a copy of the
Pease Federal Facility Agreement (“FFA”) entered into by EPA, and the Air
Force on April 24, 1991, as modified, and agrees that it will comply with
and be bound by the terms of the FFA to the extent the same may be
applicable to the Premises. Should any conflict arise between the terms of
the FFA and the provisions of the Lease, the terms of the FFA will take
precedence.

RTG acknowledges that the Premises are subject to a 1995 Record of
Decision (ROD) which identified shallow contamination sources under the
concrete slab of Hangar 227 due to discharges of solvents and petroleum to
the floor drain system. The vapor intrusion pathway for these contaminants
has not yet been fully evaluated. The Air Force has proposed a work plan
titled “Draft Pilot Study Work Plan for Soil Vapor Extraction, the schedule
for which anticipates final evaluation of the Pilot Study in March 2017.
RTG acknowledges the likelihood that additional investigation may be
required on a parallel track with the SVE Pilot, to include additional soil gas
investigation. RTG acknowledges and agrees that the Lease and



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

October 13, 2016
Page 6

Sublease and
Assignment:

commencement of Alterations and its MPO may be limited or prohibited
subject to completion of these investigations and an agreement for
remediation.

RTG may, without the approval of PDA, assign its rights under the Lease
to or enter into a sublease of the Premises with an affiliate (i.e., any entity
that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with RTG). For
purposes of the preceding sentence, the term "control” shall mean
ownership or other beneficial interest in at least fifty-one percent (51%) of
the voting stock or other voting interest of an entity. All other assignments
shall be subject to approval of PDA. PDA shall not unreasonably withhold
or delay its consent to any sublease or assignment if: (1) the use of the
Premises associated with any sublease(s) or assignment(s) is permitted
under Article 9 of the Agreement, (2) the sublease(s) are consistent with the
terms and conditions of the Agreement; provided, however, that RTG may
rent the subleased area at rentals deemed appropriate by RTG, (3) RTG
remains primarily liable to PDA to pay rent and to perform all other
obligations to be performed by RTG under the Agreement, and (4) the
proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible. In the
event the rent of the leased premises exceeds the rental charged to RTG
under Article 4, RTG shall remit fifty percent (50%) of such excess to PDA
upon receipt by RTG; provided, however, that any rental received by RTG
during a period in which no rental is due to PDA shall be paid in its entirety
to PDA.

No subletting, assignment or transfer, whether PDA's consent is required or
otherwise given hereunder, shall release RTG's obligations or alter the
primary liability of RTG to pay the rent and to perform all other obligations
to be performed by RTG under the Agreement. The acceptance of rent by
PDA from any other person shall not be deemed to be a waiver by PDA of
any provision hereof. Consent to one assignment or subletting shall not be
deemed consent to any subsequent assignment or subletting. If any
assignee of RTG or any successor of RTG defaults in the performance of
any of the terms hereof, PDA may proceed directly against RTG without
the necessity of exhausting remedies against such assignee or successor. If
RTG assigns the Agreement, or sublets all or a portion of the Leased
Premises, or requests the consent of PDA to any assignment or subletting,
or if RTG requests the consent of PDA for any act that RTG proposes to do,
then RTG shall pay PDA's reasonable processing fee and reimburse PDA
for all reasonable attorneys' fees, excluding any fees to in-house counsel,
incurred in connection therewith. Any assignment or subletting of the
Ieased Premises that is not in compliance with these provisions shall be
void and shall, at the option of PDA, but subject to any applicable cure



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.
October 13, 2016

Page 7

provisions, terminate the Agreement.

Airport Access: The Premises are located within the Airport Security Identification Display
Area (“SIDA”). RTG will ensure that its employees, contractors and
agents will not enter into the SIDA unless they are granted unescorted
access to the SIDA in accordance with the Portsmouth International Airport
at Pease Security Program. No employee, contractor or agent of RTG will
be allowed in the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements of the
Airport Security Program.

Restrictions on

Aircraft

Operations: RTG acknowledges that PDA is considering the promulgation of
proprietary regulations that will include certain restrictions on aircraft
operations. Notwithstanding the adoption of any such proprietary
regulations, RTG agrees to be bound by the restrictions relating to aircraft
operations (as distinct from administrative provisions) of Proprietary Land
Use Control Regulations for Aircraft Operations within the Airport Zone of
the Pease International Tradeport.

Brokerage: Each party warrants to the other that it has had no dealing with any real
estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this letter or the

Lease.

Guaranty: At the time of execution of the Lease, RTG shall provide a Guaranty from
LBH, LLC in the form set forth in Exhibit _  attached hereto and
incorporated herein. LBH, LLC is a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of Wyoming and is the 100% owner of RTG.
The Guaranty is intended to independently guaranty the obligations of RTG
under this Lease. Said Guaranty will be accompanied by an opinion of
RTG’s counsel in a form reasonably acceptable to PDA, confirming that the
person executing on behalf of the guarantor was duly authorized to take
such action and that said Guaranty is a valid and binding obligation of each
respective guarantor enforceable in accordance with its terms.

This letter does not constitute a binding agreement of the Parties, does not alter, amend or waive
any rights and obligations of the Parties, and no new legal obligation shall arise with respect to the
Premises or lease thereof until a Lease is executed by the Parties. [INSERT TERMINATION OF
LETTER OF INTENT IF LEASE IS NOT EXECUTED BY DATE CERTAIN.]



Mr. Marcus D. Ebert

Royal Technical Group, Inc.
October 13, 2016

Page 8

I believe this proposal addresses the terms as discussed to date. It is my hope that you willbeina
position to advise us of your commitment to Pease by executing this original and the enclosed
copy in the space provided and returning the original to my attention. If you have any questions,
please give me a call.

Sincerely,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

DRM:Imh

I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which RTG will proceed to
negotiate a mutually acceptable Lease Agreement for the Premises with PDA, subject to the
authority delegated by the PDA Board of Directors to the Executive Director and any other
governmental approvals that may be required.

Royal Technical Group, Inc.

Date By:
Its duly authorized:




Exhibit A
Leased Premises



Article 7 - Insurance



The State of New Hampshire

iy DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
NHDES

Thomas S. Burack, Commissioner

EMAIL ONLY
October 13, 2016

Peter Forbes
AFCEC/CIBE-Loring

154 Development Drive, Suite G
Limestone, ME 04750-6122

Subject: Former Pease AFB — Building 227, Site #39
Dear Mr. Forbes:

The New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) has reviewed the work plan
tittled “Draft Pilot Study Work Plan for Soil Vapor Extraction”, prepared by CBI (the Work Plan).
Building 227 is a three-acre cantilevered aircraft hangar and is identified as Site 39 under the
Pease CERCLA (Superfund) program. The Work Plan states that a goal of the SVE pilot test is to
gather design data for a full scale remedial system to address vapors and vapor sources under the
slab. In reviewing the proposed Work Plan we have referenced and use as a bench mark the Air
Force’s performance based contractor's 2011 White Paper for Building 227.

By way of background, it is useful to note that the 1995 Zone 3 Record of Decision (ROD)
identified that shallow contamination sources exist under the concrete slab of Building 227 due to
discharges of solvents and petroleum to.the floor drain system. However, the vapor intrusion
pathway for these contaminants was not evaluated, and the ROD contemplated use restrictions as
a means of managing the contamination. In 2005, in the wake of concerns raised by NHDES and
EPA regarding potential vapor intrusion (VI) issues, a preliminary VI screening effort was
conducted, consisting of four sub-slab soil gas sample points in the west end of the building and an
indoor air sample. This work confirmed a completed VI pathway.

The White Paper outlined the investigation approach for assessing sub-slab vapor contamination,
proposing to “Delineate potential source soils at Building 227 using a soil gas investigation (up to
50 points) and soil sampling in_areas where_records indicate a_release_may have occurred.”
NHDES and EPA generally agreed with this investigation approach. In 2014, CBI began the soil
sampling program and failed to locate any significant CVOC related contamination. The more
comprehensive soil gas investigation was not conducted.

NHDES approves the SVE pilot testing as proposed, but notes that the Work Plan proposes only
five additional soil gas sampling points in other areas of the building. This results in a total of nine
sampling locations to characterize conditions beneath a three-acre building, far fewer than the 50
points proposed in the White Paper. NHDES believes that this level of investigation is inadequate
to characterize a building of this size, and believes that completing the soil gas work as originally
scoped in the White Paper should be a priority. This data can be used in conjunction with the
results of the SVE pilot to determine the applicability of SVE as a final remedy and aid in the final
design as appropriate. NHDES believes that the additional investigations should be conducted as
soon as possible and on a parallel track with the SVE pilot. Please submit a soil gas investigation
work plan to address these concerns.

DES Web Site: www.des,nh.goy
P.O. Box 95, 29 Hazen Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0095

A A A T1 AN TS T0OKA



Peter Forbes

Former Pease AFB — Building 227
October 13, 2016

Page 2 of 2

We look forward to reviewing the requested work plan and to discussing these concerns with the
Air Force and other stakeholders in the near future.

S in Cer e Iy Digitally signed by Wasta Management
, Waste Division
TR, conate nagemant
ﬂ-— Management. o :
. e . _.:_,...~:mal1'=]dmh=r|y.durgh9demh.gov,
Robin Mongeon, P.E. Division o aota 1013 1527M1 080

Federal Sites Program Manager
Waste Management Division
Tel: (603)271-7378

Email: Robin.Mongeon@des.nh.gov

ec: Val Delafuente, USAF
Dave Scruggs, USAF
Mike Daly, EPA
Lynn Hinchee, PDA
Maria Stowell, PDA
Jared Sheehan, PDA
Michael Wimsatt, DES
Keith DuBois, DES
Scott Hilton, DES
Peter Sandin, DES



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION |
5 POST OFFICE SQUARE, SUITE 100
BOSTON, MA 02109-3912

October 13, 2016

Mr. Peter Forbes
AFCEC/CIBE-Loring

154 Development Drive, Suite G
Limestone, ME 04750-6122

Re: Draft Pilot Study Work Plan for Soil Vapor Extraction, Site 39 — Building 227,
Former Pease AFB, September 2016

Dear Mr. Forbes:

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced document. Page 1-1 of
the work plan states that the purpose of the draft work plan is to, “evaluate and support
the proposed soil vapor extraction (SVE) approach for addressing residual chlorinated
volatile organic compound (VOC)—impacted shallow soils under Building 227 at Site 39
(ID039)”. EPA also considered the Air Force’s 2011 technical “white paper” approach to
restoring Site 39 to unrestricted use/unlimited exposure standards.

Zone 3 Remedy, Site 39 and the Vapor Intrusion Pathway: The human health exposure
assessment, completed as part of the Zone 3/Site 39 RI baseline environmental risk
assessment (BERA) which served as the basis for remedy selection in the 1995 Zone 3
Record of Decision (ROD) and 2003 Zone 3 ROD Amendment, has been significantly
altered as a result of an identified indoor air vapor intrusion risk pathway.

The Air Force, upon requests by NHDES and EPA, conducted a base-wide systematic
screening of existing ground water VOC data proximal to existing buildings on the
Pease Tradeport. As a result of this screening evaluation, the Air Force identified the
potential for vapor intrusion into Building 227. The Air Force subsequently conducted a
limited environmental investigation of the vacant and unheated building’s sub-slab vapor
and indoor air quality. Based upon the results of this investigation, the Air Force
concluded that a completed indoor air pathway of contaminated vapors existed at
Building 227. Prior to the identification of this human health risk pathway, this sub-slab
contamination was addressed in the Zone 3 ROD by requiring the establishment of land
use controls (LUCs) to prevent human exposures to the contamination via the direct-
contact/incidental ingestion risk pathways.

Building 227 Vapor Intrusion Dataset Assessment: As previously stated, only a limited
assessment of sub-slab vapor and indoor air quality samples have been completed to
date within Building 227. This assessment served only to confirm a completed Vi
pathway did indeed exist, as was suggested by the results of the earlier VI screening
evaluation step. The Air Force further stated that it could not fully assess the Building
227 Vi pathway because the VI data was not collected under a range of seasonal

Toll Free » 1-888-372-7341
intemet Address (URL) « http//www.epa.gov/region1
Recycled/Recyclable « Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 30% Postconsumer)}



conditions and associated HVAC operational parameters that would be representative
of actual worker-occupied building environments.

The lateral extent of available sub-slab vapor data collected as part of the Air Force’s VI
investigation is represented by only four (4) samples for what was the largest Air Force
building at Pease and that served as the principle aircraft maintenance hangar when the
base was active. Secondly, there are no sub-slab vapor or indoor air samples east of
the second office tower, leaving the eastern half of the 3-acre building with no VI
assessment data. The eastern most sub-slab vapor sample (227-AS-04) reported a
PCE concentration of Csubsiav=3,000 pg/m3. This concentration exceeds both NHDES
and EPA commercial screening levels for sub-slab vapors. To date, the Air Force has
not presented any new data in this work plan or other assessments that would address
the significant limitations of the current VI dataset.

2014 DPT Sub-slab Soil Investigation: In early 2014, the Air Force conducted a widely-
spaced indoor direct-push technology (DPT) boring program to assess soil conditions
beneath limited areas of the Building 227 slab. Twenty-six (26) DPT borings were
advanced to depths ranging from 10 to 15’ bgs with the exception of one boring that
extended down to 25’ bgs. Based on soil core PID screening data, one or more
samples from each boring was submitted to an analytical laboratory for VOC and semi-
VOC analysis. Most of the samples were collected immediately above the water table
(5’ to 6’ bgs). VOC detections above NHDES Soil Remediation Standards (NHSRS)

were limited”:

o Naphthalene — 5 samples (Cmax=25ppm) above NHSRS of 5 ppm;
e Methylene Chloride — 1 sample (0.78 ppm) above NHSRS of 0.1 ppm;
o cis-1,2-DCE — 1 sample (7.4 ppm) above NHSRS of 2 ppm.

* While not presenting a threat via the indoor air Vi pathway, carcinogenic PAHs exceeding EPA's
construction worker soil Regional Screening Levels (RSLs) were detected in several borings.

The data from this soil investigation significantly contradicts the four sub-slab vapor
samples that identified PCE and TCE concentrations in the 1,000 to 5,000 pg/m? range
over all three sampling rounds. Nonetheless, the Air Force concluded in its 2014 Site
39 Status Report that no continuing soil source of chlorinated VOCs existed beneath
Building 227 and therefore no remediation was necessary. EPA does not concur with
this Air Force conclusion as the sub-slab vapor dataset strongly suggests the existence
of chlorinated VOC source(s) under Building 227.

Section 2.0 — Pilot Study Objectives: Section 2.1 of the draft pilot study work plan
acknowledges the significant gap in the spatial extent of sub-slab vapor data within
Building 227 and proposes the completion of five (5) additional vapor monitoring points
(VMPs). While it is encouraging that the Air Force acknowledges this data gap, the 5
proposed VMPs are not sufficient to confidently define the understanding of the sub-
slab contamination environment and thus hinders the Air Force's efforts to develop and
implement a remedial strategy that fully addresses site risks and meets site closure
objectives. EPA strongly recommends that the Air Force implement a more rigorous
sub-slab vapor monitoring program to assess conditions throughout the Building 227 -

2



footprint. A departure point for the design of such a program could be the sampling
effort initially proposed by the Air Force in its 2011 Site 39 supplemental remediation
white paper referenced above. Up to fifty (50) soil gas sampling locations were
originally proposed as part of sub-slab contamination delineation efforts to support
further site investigations, remedial design, and eventual implementation of remedial
actions. If these proposed 2011 samples were to be collected using a systematic
sampling approach, a roughly 50°’x50’ on center grid design could be employed to
assess sub-slab conditions throughout the Building 227 foundation. Vapor data from
this effort will greatly improve the understanding of sub-slab conditions and will aid in
directing any additional subsurface investigations to further refine the nature and extent
of contaminated areas underneath the building. Ultimately, this information would better
inform the Air Force in determining the best strategies to address site risks and
successfully remediate sub-slab contamination.

SVE Pilot Study Implementation: The Air Proposes to install one 3” PVC horizontal well
3 feet below the floor slab in the southwestern corner of Building 227. Seven (7)
vacuum monitoring wells will be installed within this corner of the building to evaluate
the influence of the horizontal SVE well in the subsurface. A vacuum will be placed on
the horizontal well using a blower capable of 200 cfm. Exhaust from the blower will
pass through two granular activated carbon vessels before being discharged to the
atmosphere. The anticipated duration of the pilot test is stated to be six weeks and the
SVE treatment area is estimated to be approximately 160’x180’.

EPA has no significant comments in regards to the Building 227 sub-slab SVE pilot
study as briefly described above and does not object to its implementation.

The previously discussed five vapor monitoring point samples that are proposed in the
draft work plan are to be collected prior to implementation of the SVE treatability study.
The sequencing of these tasks is designed to collect baseline sub-slab vapor data prior
to applying a vacuum beneath a portion of the foundation. EPA concurs with
completion of the soil gas investigation prior to implementation of the proposed SVE
pilot study. However, the Air Force should complete a much more comprehensive
evaluation of sub-slab vapors prior to SVE implementation as detailed by EPA in the
preceding paragraphs. Collecting these data before implementation of the SVE pilot
study and utilizing the more extensive VMP network for pilot study performance
monitoring is critical in determining the lateral extent of sub-slab vapor contamination,
its origins, and the best combination of remedial strategies to most efficiently and
successfully address the problems. This characterization can occur concurrent with
pilot test construction activities and therefore shouldn’t significantly impact schedules
outlined in Section 4.1 of the draft work plan.

EPA requests that a technical memorandum addendum to this work plan that details
this sampling approach be quickly prepared and submitted by the Air Force for review
by Pease stakeholders. Assuming the sampling plan is comprehensive in scope, EPA
should be able to quickly review and provide comments so that it can be finalized and
executed prior to SVE pilot study testing.



If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Michael J. Daly

Remedial Project Manager
Federal Facilities Superfund Section

cc: Valde la Fuente, AFCEC
David Scruggs, AFCEC
Scott Hilton, NHDES
Peter Sandin, NHDES
Robin Mongeon, NHDES
Lynn Hinchee, PDA
Jared Sheehan, PDA
Mike Quinlan, CB&l
Lee Major, AEGISS
Anni Loughlin, EPA



55 International Drive, Parismouth, NH D3801

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to execute such document necessary and desirable to
grant to Summit Land Development (“Summit”) for the premises located at
160 Corporate Drive one (1) option for a period of nine (9) months at the
rate of $14,355.00 due and payable in advance; and one (1) successive
option for a period of nine (9) months at a rate of $28,710 due and
payable in advance; exercisable at the mutual agreement of PDA and

Summit Land Development.

N:ARESOLVES\SummitOptionio16.docx

OO0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE



160 Corporate Drive ROE DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 10/17/16  SCALE: 1"=200"

% PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801



MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to execute such document necessary and desirable to
grant a six month option to Summit Land Development (“Summit”) for the
7.16 acre parcel located at 254 Corporate Drive adjacent to its property at
207 International Drive for 12.60+/- acres of which Pioneer International
Development, LLC pays an annual rent of $$142,708.80 without
development access to the rear acreage. In consideration of this option,
Summit shall perform and provide PDA with wetland mapping and any
other studies to determine whether the property is suitable for future
development subject to terms and conditions which are mutually agreed to
by PDA and Summit.

N:ARESOLVES\SummitOptionio16.docx

O0O0OO TAKING YOU THERE

35 international Drive, Porismouth, NH 03801



254 Corporate Drive ROE DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 10/1716  SCALE: 1"=300"

%@» PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801




55 International Drive, Porismouth, NH 3801

MEMORANDUM

To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director
Date: October 20, 2016

Re:  Revisions to Existing Signs — 73 Corporate Drive, LLC

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of
Minor Revisions to Existing Signs” adopted by the Board on June 20, 2005, I am advising the
Board that PDA has approved of the minor revisions to the previously approved sign as follows:

1. Revise the face of the existing sign at 73 Corporate Drive to replace the previous
tenant’s name with the name of the new tenant, Wentworth-Douglass.

The Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor Revisions to
Existing Signs provides that:

A sign replacement or minor revision request subject to this delegation of authority shall
not lf)ic dconsented to, approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

1. the request is limited to: in-kind replacement when required for
maintenance; revision to sign graphics to reflect a new name or logo
for an existing tenant; revision to sign graphics to reflect a change in
tenancy.

there is no substantive change in the size or style of the sign.

the request is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
approval; and,

4, all other conditions of the PDA Land Use Controls are satisfied.

=2 =

Conditions one through four have been met. The Delegation also requires the consent of one
member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Chairman Bald was consulted and
granted his consent.

PABOARDMTG\SignDelegation1016.docx

O0OOO TAKING YOU THERE



‘8)eq
8B
10Je(]

0L :L33HS 89891-90-91-6
(n)91-9-01 02 1 89894909} \Af2aH SE}BROQ | AOWEN oK

f] = e @

dNOYO OTHVE IHL 8102 IHOAJOD O
T
15080 HN “Uospniy “1g:

91/82/9 g

T wd
L1VIN :dews soieg ) S’
O Ad umerg g g el
HN "HLNOWS.1¥Qd 30 31YH04H0D &2 uoiiean’]

SWILSAS HLTYIH SY19N0Q0 HINOMININeWeN goy)

SNIHLO AG IdVISANYT

v38 A1HM d330 .1 X .84 X .01 SNOIS INVNIL NvdHSIa (¥)

(31010 .2/} £1) TANIA v£-089E IONVHO LVNOWN ? 046222 ALIHM ATddV 09071

NVJHSIA OL GZINNOW ANLS'SYILLTT JITAMOV FLHM (LHOISH .2) .8/ :004

004 /M STANVA LNIWIOV1d3Y eng 3 £9%2 SN WLd SNVA-HSIO 4330 .} X 84 X b2 %mw.

NOIS 3QISQYON NO SNvd ONLLSIXT 40 380dSIA ANY IAOWIY

—

108 gAY HOMH0: 34005

16656 #aor |

{hb=bie 3OS

STANVd INYNIL ANV SO0 /M NOIS ONIANYLS 3344 4/d "V IN3ALI

W

&

WOnb=diE S TIV0S
STANYd INYNZLL ONV S04 /M NOIS ONIONYLS 3344 4/0- W3



TERNATION 55 Iniarnalional Drive, Porismoutl, NH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
FROM: David R. Mullen, Executive Director =péa_
RE: Contract Reports
DATE: October 20, 2016

e ke o ke s ook ke ke e ke e ke ol ok o o ok o s ok e o ke ke sk o ke ke sl ke e ok ke skl ok st s s s s kol ok ke e sk sk sk e ok ok skt ok sl st sk skl sk ke s skl kol sk ok sksk ke kb ok

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following:

1. Project Name: Boyd Group International
PDA Obligation $2,995.00
Board Authority: Vice-Chairman Loughlin
Summary: For a subscription to “Aviation DataMiner” online data products to

2. Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

be used in conjunction with marketing Portsmouth International
Airport at Pease (PSM).

Dave’s Septic Service, Inc.

$9,000.00

Director Allard

For the installation and use of temporary restrooms at the PSM
Airport Terminal during the bathroom renovations at the Terminal.

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of Documents
and Expenditures for Emergency Repairs”, PDA entered into the following contract:

1. Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

PABOARDMTG\Contractrpt1016.docx

Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc.

$17,495

Vice-Chairman Loughlin

For emergency repairs to the HVAC system at the PSM Termmal
by Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc., PDA’s on-call HVAC maintenance

provider.

OO0

TAKING YOU THERE



INTERNATIONAL

Pricing: Airports:USA DataMiner Subscription

September 26 2016

Daniel Fortham

PSM Air Service Development
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Tel: 508-367-0979
Email: Daniel.fortnam@comcast.net

Quote for annual subscription to Aviation DataMiner™ online data products:

Aviation DataMiner™ Products
rt O&D Marketand T10 e

e “Prici;ng' :‘,4

I Basic Passenger O&D & T-100 Traffic U.S. Carriers - 4 Airports | $2,995
Wl On-Time Performance U.S. Carriers & Airports Free
Total:] 52,995

Up to 3 users included with each product

B All Pricing in US Dollars

Terms:

Subscription valid for 12 consecutive months from the date of purchase
Payment schedule: Start date and on each renewal/repurchase date thereafter
Oniine access to each database at http://www.airportsusadataminer.com
Disclaimer and Subscription Agreement available on login

Single User License (location)

Al pricing in U.S. dollars

Prices Valid- Until October 21, 2016

Boyd Group International, 78 Beaver Brook Canyon Road, Evergreen Colorado 80439

(303) 674-2000 facsimile: (303) 674-9995

info@aviatinnnlanning com www AviationPlanning com

Vail 20151130

Page 1 of 1



Proposal

Dave's Septic Service, Inc,
P.O, Box 5193
Manchester, NH 03108
Phone 603 668 3402

Fax 603 666 4334

Customer Name: Pease Dev.

Contact; Michael Mates

Billing Address:

Phone Number: 603 766 9292

Fax Number:

Email Address: m.mates@peasedev.org

Event Address: 42 Airline Ave, Newington, MA
Event Date: 10/4/2016 — 12/1/2016

Event Hours:

9/30/16

Rentals . Delivery P/U
5-Standard units 550.00 30 days 10/4/16 11/3/16
1-Handicap unit 220.00 30 days 10/4/16 12/1/16
1-24’ Trailer 150.00 per day 10/17/16 12/1/16
Pump outs 180.00 per pump

**customer is responsible for cleaning, maintaining and winterizing the trailer.

Please sign and return to ensure rental.

L4

Signature:__ 4« %(
|

Thank you,

Date:__ Z/ E// ‘e




Melissa Markey
Account Coordinator



Eckhardt & Johnson, Inc.

PROJECT ESTIMATE
DATE: 09/22/2016

MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS

L
QUOTE ID: 618 CONTACT: Joe McPherson
AR CUSTOMER: PEADEV Ph:(603) 4;33;60883
SERVICE Pease Development Authority Terminal Fax:(603) 427-043
LOCATION: DATE SUBMITTED: 09/22/2016
STREET: 42 Airline Ave, Pease Airline Terminal PREPARED BY:  Mike Sheehan
CITY: Portsmouth, NH
DESCRIPTION: Replace the circuit 2 condenser coil on RTU 2

SCOPE OF WORK: Reclaim refrigerant in the circuit 2 and dispose of per EPA guidelines. Remove defective Trane circuit 2 condenser coil
and discard. Install new Trane circuit 2 condenser coil. Pressure test and evacuate the circuit. Recharge circuit 2 with
new refrigerant. Check operation. Quote includes crane work , 7460-t permit and aeronautical study. Trane condenser
coll has a 3 week lead time and avallability is subject to change by the manufacturer. Quote does not include any further

troubleshooting or repairs to this unit.

ITEM

- TOTAL

Labor Flegulaf Time

Helper Labor Regular Time

Trane Condenser Coil Assembly

Trane service valve .

Crane

Refrigerant disposal

Freight

R-22

Miscellaneous

Total

$17,495.00

SIGNATURE

Dt Sl M/ Wis'd D/ﬁc’c%zt

PRINT NAME
/22 /7¢
DATE

EXCLUED UNLESS SPECIFIED IN THIS SCOPE OF WORK:



Overtime Labor ~ Structural work ~ Carpentry work ~ Roof wark ~ Power and control wiring ~ Asbestos abatement ~ Drop ceiling work ~ Any
scope of work not listed in this proposal ~ All existing building, plumbing, fire, energy, seismic, and etc..code violations on existing work.

PAYMENT TERMS:
- 25 % due upon acceptance of proposal and prior to E&J ordering materials or equipment.
- 50 % of remaining balance will be invoiced when project is 50% complete.
-Balance will be invoiced when project is 100% complete.
CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

THIS CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT {the “Agreement”) is:rf]ade by and between ECKHARDT & JOHNSON, INC., a New Hampshire corporation with a principal place of business locatec
at 896 Goffs Falls Road, Manchester, New Hampshire 03103-3288 (“Contractor”} and the Owner (as identified on the attached proposal), who agree as follows:

1. Services to be provided. The Contractor shall perform servites necessary or proper for or Incidental o the performance and completion of the Work as definedin  “The Scope of

Work” on the front of this proposal.
2, Contract Sum. The Owner shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work the amount as described in -~ “Price” on the front of this proposal.
Payment Terms.
a Payment for all invoices will be due 30 days from the involce date.
b.  All past due invoices will be charged a daily finance charge equal to 12% APR, accruing as of the invoice date.
¢.  The Owner has no rights of set-off against amounts due to the Contractor.

Al projects with a cost of five thousand dollars {$5,000.00) or more will require a deposit equal to 25% ofthe contract price prior to Ecichardt & Johnson, In

a

ordering any equipment.
e.  All projects will be invoiced on or near the 25 1 of each month for work completed thru the end of the month.

f  Allinvoicing will be done using the percentage of completion method.

g. The Owner shall be fiable to the Contractor for alf costs and expenses (Including legal fees) incurred by the Contractor In collecting amounts due to the

Contractor hereunder, regardless of whether such collection efforts involve the commencement of litigation.

3. Time of Commencement. The Contractor shall commenes the Work within five (5) days after written notice from the Owner to commence performance.
4. Insurance. Prior to commencing the Work, the Contractor shalf obtain insurance from a responsible insurer including, but not necessarily limited to, fire insurance and extended

coverage, public liability, property damage, employer's liability and workers' or workmen's compensation insurance for the Contractor and its employees.

5. Limjted Waranty. The Contractor warrants to the Owr_uer that all Work pursuant to this Agreement shall be of good quality, free from faults and defects for a period of one (1) year
after the Completion Date. This warranty shall be in limitation of any other warranty or remedy available at law or in equity. The Contractor shall repair or replace, as it determines appropriat
ints sole and absolute discretion, any deficiency in the Contractor's wark iderttified by the Owner within one (1) year after the Completion Date. THERE ARE NQ OTHER WARRANTIES OF
ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE WORK, OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 5. UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES WHATSOEVER SHALL THE CONTRACTOR AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS, DIREGTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE,
EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFIT OR REVENUE OR FOR ANY CLAIMS AGAINST THE OWNER BY ANY THIR
PARTY RESULTING FROM ANY DEFICIENCIES IN THE WORK. Without in any way limiting the foregoing, under o clrcumstances whatsoever shall the liability of the Contractor exceed tt

pro-rata portion of the Contract Sum allocable to the deficient portion of the Work.



AT De held in Manchester, New

e MiaElacliow I OONY any psi of this Agreement or to render any award which by its terms causgs any such
e~ C’_aN‘ﬂU—L Dv( PCQAA_Q&R-(OPW‘; /)Y‘A )

7. Termination. If either party hereto fails or neglects to perform its obligations hereunder or otherwise fails to perform in accordance with this Agreement, except as set forth in Sectior
hereof, and within three (3) working days after written notice of such failure fails to commence and cantinue coirection of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness or to pay any
amounts which are overdue, then tha other party may, at the expiration of said three (3) day period, terminate this Agreement. The remedies available pursuant to this Section 7 shall be in

addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights available at law or in equity.

8. Causes of Delay, The Contractor shall not be liable for delays in performance of the Work which are due to causes beyond the Contractor's reasonable control including, but not
{imited to, delays due fo acts of God, the Owner’s acts, acts of civil or military authortly, wars, acts of terrorism, riots, insurrection, fires, strikes, floods, epidemics, delays in fransportation or
energy curtailments or shortages. The Contractor shall not be fiable for delays in performance of the Work if the Owner is in default of its payment obligations hereunder or under any other

contract with the Contractor.
9. Entire Agresment. This Agreement, when read in connection with the preceding proposal, contains the entire agreement of the parties related to the subject hereof. No course of pi

dealings between the Contractor and the Owner and no usage of trade shall be relsvant ta supplement or explain the terms and conditions contained In this Agreement. The parties hereto
agree and acknowledge that there are not any other agreements, conditions or representations, oral or written, express or implied, which affect the interpretation hereof. This Agreement

replaces all prior agreements, promises, representations and understandings between the parties herato whatsoever, both oral and written, concerning the subject matter hereof.

10. Notices. All notices to be given hereunder or otherwise made to a party of this Agreement shall be set forthin a written document, delivered in parson, by overnight courier such as
Federal Express or by U.S. Mall, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepald, addressed to the intended recipient to the address set forth in the preamble hereof or to suc

other address as hereafter may be designated by the intended reciplent to the other party hereto in compliance with this Section 10.

11. Relationship of the Parties, The parties hereto acknowladge that they are independent contracting parties and are not engaged in a joint venture, parinership, agency/principal
relationship, nor shall any party hereto make any representation that any such relationship exists. Additionally, neitfier party hereto shall have any authority to enter into commitments or

obligations on behalf of the other party hereto.
12, Section Headings Not Part of Agreement . Headings are provided only for convenience and shall not affect the interpretation or meaning of this Agreement.

13. Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may not be amended, modifled or supplemented except by a written document of subsequent date hereto, executed by each of the
parties hereto, which explicitly references this Section 13. Nothing herein shall impair the Cordractor’s right to subcontract, delegate or assign responsibility for performance of any of the Wo



—
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL: 55 Intarnalional Drive, Portsmouch, NH 03801

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a change order to the
contract with Careno Construction Co. (PDA’s selected contractor for the
Airport Terminal renovations) to replace windows in the Terminal in an
estimated amount of $13,816.15; all in accordance with the
memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated
October 12, 2016 and the plan attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\CarenoChangeOrder1016.docx

COOO TAKING YOU THERE



\4

35 Intarnational Drive, Porismiouth, NH 03801

T
>
W
“Zl>m

INTERNATION
DEVELOPME
AUTHORIT
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <@
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manage\rﬂﬂ/tw"
Date: October 13, 2016
Subject: New Windows at PSM Airport Terminal

Recently, a number of windows in the terminal building have been identified to be replaced because their seals
have failed and condensation has built up between the panes. Specifically, 12 windows in the vestibule at the
entrance to the ticketing area and 12 windows in the ticketing area have been selected to be replaced.

Staff feels that the best way to complete this replacement would be to engage the contractor that is currently
working at the terminal on the new roof and restroom renovations, Careno Construction Company, LLC
(Careno). Careno was initially selected for the terminal projects through a competitive process; Careno is
familiar with PSM security requirements; familiar with PSM operations and personnel; and, the work could be
done as a change order to their contract. Moreover, the time saved may provide PDA with the opportunity to
complete this work before the start of cold weather. For these reasons we ask the Board approve waiving the
RFP process.

Attached is a proposal from Careno Construction for this work for the cost of $13,816.15.

At this month’s board meeting, please ask the Board to approve the expenditure of $13,816.15 for the
replacement of windows in the terminal building.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2016\Careno Windows.docx

OOOCOC TAKING YOU THERE



OWNER

CHANGE ARCHITECT
ORDER CONTRACTOR X

FIELD

OTHER
PROJECT: CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 01
Demolition of Former Air Traffic Control Tower and DATE: 09/29/2016
Air Terminal Re-Roofing Project ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: 4360
40 Airline Ave CONTRACT DATE: 06/01/2016
Portsmouth, NH 03801 CONTRACT FOR:  Dempolition of Former Air

' Traffic Control Tower and Air
Terminal Re-Roofing Project

TO CONTRACTOR:
CARENO CONSTRUCTION
270 WEST ROAD

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
The contract is changed as follows:

ltem #1- Owner Requested Window Replacements at 40 Airline Ave
e Replacement of existing fixed windows in vestibule and doubkle hung window glazing in air terminal
Proposal is based on the following:
Fixed vestibule units: 3-4 weeks from approval
Double hung units: 3-4 weeks from approval

Fixed windows
o -Remove, dispose and replace 11 fixed windows in the main entrance vestibule.

New fixed units to be installed in existing frame
New fixed units to be 1/4" clear tempered units with low E
4 @ 46" x 40"
4 @ 46" x 38"
4@ 28" x 40"
Double Hung
Replace 12 Double hung units (24 lies) with 1/8" 24" x 36" Gray Lou E & Argan IGU Glass per attached
Careno Construction Company
Project Mangement: 8 hrs. @ $65.00 = $520.00
Project Supervision: One week of Install @ $1,600.00
Disposal Costs: One 15 yard dumpster @ $150.00
Granite State Glass Window Replacement: $9,389.00
Careno/Subcontractors/Vendors @ $11,659.00 + $1,165.90 (10%) = $12,824.90
Careno GC Markup @ 5%: 641.25

Bond Cost @ $25.00/$1,000.00 = $350.00
Add:  $13,816.15

Total Add:  $13,816.15



Not valid until signed by the Owner and Contractor.

The originial (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) was . S 341,500.00
Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders S -
The (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) prior to this Change Order was S 341,500.00
The (Contract Sum) {(Guaranteed Maximum Price) will be (increased) (decreased)

(unchanged) by thls Change Order in the amount of S 13,816.15
The new (Contract Sum) (Guaranteed Maximum Price) including this Change Order will Be.....ecverrevrer.e S 355,316.15
The Contract Time will be (increased) (decreased) (ﬁnchanged) by (25 ) days
The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of the Change Order therefore is
Careno Construction Company, LLC H.L. Turner Group Pease Development Authority
CONTRACTOR ARCHITECT OWNER
270 West Rd 27 Locke Rd 55 International Dr
Address Address Address
Portsmouth, Np.p3gp1  /_— Concord, NH 03301 Portsmouth, NH 03801
BY: ) S/ fo—0"0 By: Abaell @[@mﬂ# BY:

DATE: i ? /2 } /uic DATE: 29 $8PR E0)(, DATE:

/



MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract
with Seacoast Security of Portsmouth, NH, in an initial amount of
$9,897.00 for the provision and installation of security and fire alarm
monitoring systems at PDA facilities. Further, the Board approves
monthly monitoring of the systems by Seacoast Security at a monthly fee
of $353 per month for five years; all in accordance with the memorandum
of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated October 14, 2016
attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIil, the Board
justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement based on the following

reasons.

1.  Seacoast Security currently monitors the PDA systems and can
provide the services in a timely and cost effective manner.

2.  The City of Portsmouth has also chosen Seacoast Security to
monitor its fire alarm systems via the same radio transmission

method.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.

N:\RESOLVES\Firesystem1112.wpd

OO0OCO TAKING YOU THERE

55 International Drive, Porismouih, NH 03801



PEASE
INTERNATIONAL 3% Intarnational Drive, Porismouth, NH 03301
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director W .
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager MD—
Date: October 14, 2016
Subject: Security and Fire Alarm Monitoring

PDA maintained buildings are equipped with security and fire alarm systems. The security alarms are
monitored by a contracted firm, Seacoast Security, and the fire alarms are monitored by the City of Portsmouth
Fire Department. If an alarm is triggered, a signal is sent via phone or hardwired line to the appropriate
monitor, who responds accordingly.

A few months ago, the Fire Department sent us a notification of recent changes that prevent it from providing
fire alarm monitoring services in the future, and informing us that we will need to transition to an approved
remotely located monitoring facility. While researching available options for alarm monitoring, we found that
signals can be sent more efficiently by changing from the existing phone and wire transmissions to a radio
signal. We asked our current provider, Seacoast Security, for quotes to install the equipment required to
monitor security and fire alarms via antenna and radio signals. The total installation price is $9,897.00, which
breaks down as follows:

55 International Drive (Main Office) $1,392.00

42 Airline Avenue (Terminal) $ 4,388.00
200 Grafton (Clubhouse) $1,392.00
36 Airline (Airport Management) S 400.00
14 Airline Avenue (ATCT) $1,310.00
555 Market Street (Port) $1,015.00

$9,897.00

There is also a cost for monthly monitoring. The six buildings will require monitoring for nine systems — four
security and five fire alarm systems. The total monthly fee will be $ 353.00 over a contract term of five years.
This is less than our current monthly phone line and monitoring costs of approximately $454.00.

Please ask the Board to approve the installation and monthly monitoring costs as described. In doing so the
Board would need to waive the RFP requirement. | believe the waiver is justified because Seacoast Security is
our current provider and we are confident they can perform the required services. Furthermore, the City of
Portsmouth has chosen Seacoast Security to monitor its fire alarm systems via the same radio transmission
method.

Please note that there may also be a permit fee payable to the City. This fee would be incurred at the time of
the installation.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2016\Seacoast Security.docx

O00C) TAKING YOU THERE



PO Box A )
290 West Strest TEL 207 236 4876 -

- ’ E O 800 554 8800 -
ggéﬁgﬁffi | v oo e FAX 207 oae 817

BRANCH OFFICES

32 Lexington Drive Suite #1, Hermon ME 04401

17 Parsons Street. Buite £1, Presque Isle ME 04784
4 Summer Strest, PO Box K, Fresport ME 04032
280 Heritage Drive Unit C, Portsmouth NH 03801

Dear Portsmouth Business Owner,

As youmay already know, the City of Portsmouth will be discontinuing its Master Box system that
connects your fire alarm system to the fire department. It will be up to the individual business to
monitor the fire alarm systems via Central Station monitoring.

The City of Portsmouth has chosen Seacoast Security to monitor their fire alarm systems via a SeaNet
(AES) radio. The SeaNet radio is the most dependable and cost efficient way of transmitting the alarm
signals,

Although there are other ways to monitor the fire alarm such as telephone dialers, cellular transmitters
or via the internet: each of these options have a drawback. Fire alarms require two phone lines for a
dialer and since almost all lines are VOIP now there is a chance of lost signals dué to the VOIP
technolagy that is really designed for voice communication. Cellular transmitters are dependent on the
cellular network and the technology changes every five or so years and the transmitters become
obsolete and need to be replaced.

The SeaNet radio is the best solution since we own the frequency so the equipment will never becore
obsolete; there are no additional charges by Telco companies or cellular companies resulting in the best
value. We are offering the SeaNet monitoring for $39.00 a month with special radio installation prices
starting at $695.00.

Please give us a call for a free site survey and estimate.

Thank You,

Brian Cormier

Seacoast Security

280 Heritage Ave Suite C
Portsmouth, NH 03801
603-433-8864 ext 4603



You are being contacted because your facility at currently has its fire alarm
system monitored through the City’s Master Fire Alarm system using Master Box

Recent changes to the manner in which fire alarm signals must be monitored has caused the Fire
Department to evaluate the City’s Master Fire Alarm system. You are receiving this letter because
property that you own in the City is protected by a Master Box that is connected to the City’s system.

Fire alarm systems transmit three distinct signals —alarm, supervisory, angd trouble. The City’s existing
Master Fire Alarm system is activated by alarm signals only. SupeNisory and trouble signals generated
by a fire alarm system are annunciated at the panel, but, could go unnoticed unless someone happens
to be in ear-shot of the panel. The Life Safety Code and the National Fire Alarm Code both require that
Supervisory and Trouble signals be constantly monitored by qualified personnel at an approved,
remotely located receiving facility. The City of Portsmouth requires off-site monitoring of all installed
sprinkler systems.

Simply put, sprinkled buildings that have master boxes as their sole means of remote monitoring are not
in compliance with the Code as they are not programmed to handle supervisory or trouble signals.

Given the limitations of the existing system, the Fire Department has chosen to retire the Master Fire
Alarm System. On 1 July 2017, the City’s Master Fire Alarm System will cease all monitoring activities.
As a current user of the system, we are providing this information now, so that you will have more than
ample time to make the necessary changes to transition your fire alarm monitoring to an approved,
remotely located receiving facility. The professionals who currently maintain your fire alarm system
should be able to provide solutions for this change. Please keep in mind that all changes made to your
fire alarm system must be permitted by the City. Once you have reconfigured your fire alarm system,
you may contact the Fire Alarm Division at 603.427.1515 to schedule the physical removal of the Master
Box and its associated components.

It is our hope that you will make the transition sooner rather than later. There are over 300 master fire
alarm boxes in the City and this transition will certainly keep local fire alarm professionals extremely
busy. By 1 July 2017 you must have transitioned your fire alarm system off of the City’s system and be
monitored by an approved, remotely located receiving facility.

If you have questions about this transition, please contact the Fire Department Prevention Bureau at
603.427.1515.



To:  Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Operations Specialist C&V‘
Date: 10/12/2016

Subj: Noise Report for September 2016

The Portsmouth International Airport received a total of 86 inquiries in September,
2016, 53 rotor and 33 fixed wing.

The 53 roter wing inquiries otiginated from 3 Portsmouth residences with one resident
inquiring 51 times. All but one of the 53 rotor wing inquiries pertained to Seacoast
Helicopters. The last inquiry was for an air ambulance arrived at 11:30 PM.

The 33 inquiries on fixed-wing aircraft originated from 6 residences, two from
Portsmouth, and one each from Newmarket, Newington, Dover and Kittery Point, ME.
One resident inquiring 28 times were mostly related to military aircraft based at
Portsmouth, Ofther aircraft both based and non-based, including KC135s, a F-35, a P-3
a KC767A and a G4.

One residence of Newmarket accounted for 28 fixed wing inquiries regarding military
and non-military aircraft. As stated in past reports, the couple residing at this residence
feel the aircraft are targeting their home and flying too low. They call every time a
plane flies in the vicinity of their home. Due to the frequency of their calls and the
compliant aviation activity they have called about, we informed them some time ago
that we would only respond should a particular operation warrant.

Attached is a copy of the Noise Report for September 2016.

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

38 Arrhne Ave. Partsmouth, NH 03801
603.433.65386



¥1.10 { ¥ded

*Kxessasduun SI3oeq [j8d € Juy).

Jswd 213 W1 payedypuEl SEY EnpIAIPUY

‘Bupsswm

sapuniney) Apjiquedwe]) astoN

3X30 81 JO WY AJJ0U PINOM. M
I8Y) /6 U0 3Tussaul ¥ 3)0) puk pajie)

*K1e550351U D S1 WIBY [JBO ¥ Jer

35ud of) Uy POYRIIPIY SBY [ERPIAIPUY

*£18S53000UN S NIBQG B B JEIN
3sed 243 uy paywRLPM Sy [ERpIAIPUY

*dn-M0}10)

Awe yism djay o) sagep pue samp

1o dyIIads J0® 9q 0) PIYSE SEM
S[ED “7/6 Uo 13][8d 31 YNM dyods

: *BAA|OAUL NG dABY
AZW SI0YIEY JOGL0 JN4] SHIIE SATUSHSS
B0V N0 JO BLBME 'S) JYI[KT
1endsoy gojsog € 03 pajaedap

pu pogan} ‘paALISE JUIEGA SO
WBHIAT ‘€76 uo. 1o]1ed PIM ads

_
dn sojrod

-I[08€0 HN ‘qinowsyroy

‘vQd suey], *adesysy . MUWAY JINEN
PN - LNIV'IJINOD ASION -pafiemyg Jaydoanay wosurqoy peseg 89
HLIO NWghS uugng
J99pImwmor)
9SION 3 Jo Butgoau ﬁ&.ﬂﬁﬁ.uu.ﬁ “108€0 HN “Upnows1Iog
-agnon Lmt 100 paatp 4oydedroy anuaAy SN
By - LNIVTIdIWNOD TSION pajrsuy A0doayay ubsurqoy poseq 29
GYset) 2y
o3 Apdasp 03 Aag) op o *pupgjduwmod
‘289U PEAA UWIAD N0 O jIApnumoe)
2SION] Y)-J0 SUIJIIM JXIU- UGY) 5T HIYA
- nok wo4j asuodsor € 303 Jaaou agn
-T08€0 HN ‘yynowssytoq
‘Vd Mue], MNWIAY 9t
~asnoy £ 1340 £ppasnp ydooyey V BN
P~ LNIVEJINOD TSION :pajrewrg 10)dodyay uosuyqoy paseq 89
~108€0 HN ‘pnowsiiog
"vad suey] sadooyay SRV 2SI
Pay - ENIVIdINGD ASION Pajiemy sapdeasay vosurqey paseg 89
SO6£0 AW Yuiod Asanny
JNEY SHEQ BIG
PLIDAY PATBWH umouyun umouqun 1~ 4
. *PuIYIIM
Ppood v 2aey "3 eardde pjnoam | 100
ping piied nok Jj €1 1] 3 4940 Suiky
?q u_.:.ﬂs oym msom:._u snfsem g ~dn -[08€0 HN ‘§In0ws}i04
a1 KUE PUE J]3SAW %OM 3] ISNOY
NG 1940 Juam J3ydoasjay Joyjoue anudAY £inqpoos
By ISB| OC:T 1 IN0qY “Apuvs 1H F601V paseguoN €
SIAYBIIEN ysnYy uoyBI0y ay 4qe)D
91/05/60 01 9I/I0/60  SPOMI Y} 40,

9107 “z1 1990100 “Aepsoupap

916 9T0Z/El6 9

5°81 910T/€/6 &

00:01  9TOTESS 4

61:81 210Z/Tl6 €

0019  9K0Z/I6 T

0e:€T 9107/1/6 I

suy, sed IreD

07 1043100 3510N VAd



+] 40 7 98eg

*£18559330UN S1OoEq [|ED ¢ J8g)
ysed 3y uy payeaspus seyf {Enpratpu]

*SUISIU0D J3Y JNOqE
3swd a1y uy payoEINed UIRq SBY BYS

*K1gsseoaunn s) Yoey |19 v Jeq;
1sed oy ur payestpur suy |enplarpay,

~A1ESSIDIBUR I HIEQ [FED B YY)
3sed gy uy pagedipm svY Jenpraipuy

*AJessagounn s Yoeq [[BY ¥ I8y}
ysed or).uy. payedipuy sey [Enpialpuy

*ALussadounn S§ Ydeq {J80 B JeL
35ud 31y ul pajELpuL sey fEnPIAIPE]

"£AESSIDAULN 5] NI |18I B Jeg
1s6d aip @ pajedipul sey fEapAIpUT

‘INSS] [BHULYIDW B

Aty pitoys 1adodnjay 3y )1 puncad
a3 o doad 2y Jo A3ayms ay) Inoge
POLLITIUOD SE |BRPIAIPI 3L 1, * 0001
#0jaq oF 03 woyy sa1ambaa jey) qol ¢
103 PAYRLIIUCD 31 AdY) SSA|UN 000
3¢ Ay Loy swneiuiem S19)dodnpy
15803 Mg ,0001 I A1 01 2ary

30u op s19)dodYoY JBY) AN PaLIOLLI
PUB §/6 uo [ENPIAIPUL 3Y3 PiM odg

e R R

dn) mofioq

V'ad sweyl
3500y Auws a3a0 Apdaa1p sapdodnjoy

POy - INI¥TAINOD ASION ‘pojiemy

*ROIR QY} U] SJUIPISIL
03 4aSusp v 24% asLaJ woy Suzwes
sous(d 2143 noqe Supied 19)160 JEaday

$a3Numnoy) as10)] Y3 50 Supadw

AU DI ST WIYAL V' A'd SHUBY ),
*ashoy Aw 3340 Apdearp ssdosriay
P - LNIVIJINOD ASTION :pafewy

SPapnumon)

ISIBN Y3 30 Surzaany 3xau 34} St UBY AL
VA SRy | wisde soydooigoy

Py - LNIVIEWOD BSHON -pajiewy

&SANRUEW)) Astof] a1 o Sundom

U 2y} 81 WA, Y A@'d “SHuRy],
*asnoy Awi ..o>e..m=u2_u Joydodjay
P3Y - LNIVIdINGOD ASION spapieny

L9331E0) 3S10U Y} Jo Suzsaw

FXU Y S USUM V0" HURY ],

-asnoy Awr J3A0.A1203.01p 433do3yey
P2y - LNIV1AINQD ASION :pajiery

Jaydoaigay
PR - INTYVIJIAOD ASION ‘pasury

*Kaadosd pur

suostsd 03 pawzey (p) 3a2d 61116 UV
yum axaeydwos-uop vy doys 3xan
“SOUIOPING 35834 JO UOHUIABIIUOD

u1 ,p00°1 qus saydosifoy pay :papEwy

SOATIRAIRN

91/0£/60

193doatey nosuigoyy

910T T1 1990300 “Aepsaupam

~108€0 HN ‘IN0wsiiog
ANUSAY Ja[Ty

pasug 89  SETE  910TOUE K
~LSBE0 HN I9u1umoN
MInleg

SELON paseg 8L1 8Pl 91066 €I
~LOSED HIN ‘yinomsiaoy
aNUIAY S04

10dodzeq uosmqoyy paseg 89 -8E:01 910T/616  T1
-108€0 HN ‘Yinowsyio
INUIAY S}

andodyay uosurqoy paseqg 89 €0:01 oraEs/6 Il
~108€0 HIN ‘minowspiogq
aNBIAY. AN

1aydodiay nosuyqoy paseg 89 (4841 910T8/6 0T
~108£0 HN “yinousiaog
InuAY RN

A2ydodray uosuiqoy paseq 89 gTs 9107/5/6 6
-108€0 HN ‘y3powisiiog
INUAAY SO

Jaydodiay uesuIqoy pasug 89 iyl 910¢/5/6 8
-108€0 HN *yinowsiiogd

BAY BJISED MON .
aaydosyjey uosuiqoy paseq 4 011 o10Z/5/6 L
L "
peRAY uoe0] ax Jofied WL, Asq  1ed
iporag oy 40.] 307 [o410)) 3SION VAd

o1 9I/10/60




¥lJo € a8ed

“AIgssaoonun 51 yoRy [162 € youy
ysud oy uy pajEdipm SBY jENPIAIPU]

“AJBSEIIUUN ST Yauq [[UA B 1813
ysed ayy uy poyeatpuy seY JENpLALpU]

*£AB$SIIPVLN §1 IV [JED B ey}
1sud 243 1y PoyEd; pL sEYy [BRPIAIPY]

*£ABSEIIGUMN: §F HIEG 118 € By
¥sed. 243 1N PATERIPUL SBY [ERPIAIDIE

‘Laussapsunn §1 Ieq JiEde Jey
1sed ays w1 pojEaIpwn sEY {ENpLAtpU]

*A4uSSIUAN £} YOUG {ED B JEI))
sud 313 Ut PIILIIPU SBY JEAPIAIpUY

*AABSSIIOUUN SI I [{80 € IR
3sed 413 Ul PojeaLPul SEY JERPIAIPL]

-AAussadouun Srioeq [jUas B 1y
156d 3yy 0y pajeaipul sey JEnpAIpUY

V'a'd syueyy, ~aydodyay
P3Y - INIV'IJIOD TSION :pojrewy

V'd syuey,
25008 A 1940 A132241p 433dodnjay
P ~ INIVIdINOD ASEON spajteury

YV @d Sjueyy, aandodijoy

PRY - INIVIIWOD HSION -pojiewy

V'd'd squey
*2sn0Y Awr 1940 Ljpoaaip s9ydonjey
PAY - INITVTIINOGD ASTON :psflewry

saydediey

..ﬁny_ = LNIVIZINGD FSION pajisiug

Ve@d suey L
-asmoy A 4aao £P02.4p 13dodjjay
Py - INTVIJINOD ASION ‘pajlewy

Va'd Susyy
~asnoy Aux 2340 Apoanip tegdaafjoy
PY ~ LNIVIdIWOD ASION papiewry

"v@'d syueyy, cutede axndooyay
Py - INIVTdINOD FSION :pojiewg

Jydedijey uosuiqoy

A33dooey uosmgoy

Ja3desijay wosuiqoy

J3)dodnjay uosuiqoy

13ydediysq uosigoy

Japdodijay uosuIgqoy

Jadoasjay uosuiqoy

19ydodtjey nosuiqoy

paseg

paseg

paseg

paseqg

paseqg

paseq

paseg

poseg

-108£0 KN ‘yInowspiog
AMUBAY YA

89

~108€0 HN "yinowsyio

dn meflod

SIAPBLIBN

91/0£/60

yeRaAy

or  9I/10/60

uopREI0Y

PO Y} 40,

IMHIRAY SN

89 LUS1  910ZRU6  1Z
-108€0 HIN ‘simowsjiog
SNUIAY NIRHA

89 1Sk 9l0UIMe 0T
~108E0 HN ‘yimowsyog
HNUDAY SO

89 SO0 910TNI/6 6L
-108€0 HN ‘yynowsiiog
ANTIAY IHIAL

. 89  6sTL  910T/IL6 81
-108€0 HN “pnowsyiog
AMUIAY J3|JHA

89 g0y 910WIVE LI
~108£0 HN "waowspog
MUIAY A

89 1Z:€1  910Z/0U6 91
-108€0 HN ‘yinowsisad
aNUIAY B[N

89 8v:Zi  910T0I/6  SI

—m

@y euny aea (D

807 1040u0°) 310N V(A d

910Z ‘T1 199000 ‘Aepsaupom

TeCT 910UV TT




1 40 ¥ 988d

«301U3A3 pooy)

*pAUAANID UI3G.IARY PINOYS JEYM
1a0ad 0) panyiey ayy Jo pouy og3 pus
Aprquassosey sut Anpqeli.oy) ot 3o 03
SE 1§80 5197 Jo asodand ay3 mou £g mouy

No& $v "898 L) UF DY YSLIAD S0P

WEIDHET O] BIYM POKILY 29 [{IM Oy
SWINDBTA IS0 2 (e pUY anoy s

1B 918 SJUAPN)S dFOYM 2491 Kaeaquy oy

axgy noA 11q-532UdP1Saa sauf L0 Jou

nok weyIng uf pay 'aJe sjdoad auaym

-s202)d 0u1 YSBID SIALLIED JJe5N8

uB WIEA JEY) A020¢ 38} Apedeny

© oy JO {{¢ sn'Bupuusy uoisiAale} uo

SeA J8Y) | 1/6.9U3 U0 SSAUpUIlG oY) pue

2.} ayp yua 21Beay Jo swos mes nok

sdeyuaag 995 3,02 £a13 Jey) IUp 05 S|

H 9sne3aq B 83n.0)S 2q [{IM S40A1AINS

94} 309 231 J0 550] WoJy BULLNS oq

sunoLA 1ood o jiim Ljuo Jou sousead

suuyd 21 uaym ‘ssausiaep og7 4Snoiy

3ou) o) waALR o5y “AEg Jea4D)

uo P3YBI0] JjauLMaN m £3sadoad

Aw Supadie) aae asvog woyy Sunwod

*SUIIDUOD J9Y JnoLE PEIATLE JIYJO OA\) SOFNUU INOJ ISB]

3sed ouy ul poYIEINOI USSY sBY 9GS oI} Ut Jey} Sapsodayy,, -4ojre) jeaday

' BUIHAAD POOD *SUONNIIF0sd

JeuIUIad 35 0 pavALIo} Funioo]

wme § usdy-pagnassosd Kjjeunutan aq

i1m aseaq wody ajdoad apy jo [je swg

JBY3 B JEY) JSNI) OD | PUB 2jqEIIsAI0f

sEM quugf *Ayeadoad “a3ip Jo ssoy a1

‘Buysesd seuwyd anok o 300 Jo ss0m

auo Fupusmnaop pus no Sunmod

w,| uiede pus eaaqap L[PInjosqy

S§ UOILPUOD SNOJOTUEP 31} Juiuyop

snf astou ayy ‘asnoy Aw ojup Buaned

sel s3y31p oy 1, -osnog Aw Bunedaw

Apo2J1p uMop SBY Yeaddie Jayjoue

*SUIIDUOD 1] JHOQE - W4 0£:6 A1psurrxosdde 38 g3z
3sed 3y wy PHYORINOI UG SEL IYS Jaquuaydag st sigy,, “497|82 yeaday

L A —

SCEOA

SEIDN

910T “Z1 1290)90 “Aepsoupom

LS80 HN “1{Ieuman ’
Mawunieg

paseq 8Ll LTI siomTvie  ¥2

-LS8E0 HN ‘9eiewman
momkeg

postg 8L W yue €T

dry mopjoq SAABLIBN

91/6¢/60

a7

yeNY

91/10/60

uoRBICY dar s[ed amiy a/wA 1B

:POLIB YL 40T 807 jouo) 3510 Vdd



130 ¢ 98y

“asea g oy Surmon

yse.2 auryd € wioag AIp o3 Sunpodxe
Jou 2.au Aot Burdaays aaw gjdoay
suonurasosd [EUINILLD 9 [1M 2y
IBHQ T dydoassie Y3 Yum [Bap 03
weyd L>u38uniucd o 2avy nox Aqiean
3)doad Jo spuusnoyy Jo s,01 34¢

aly L -wopen)s snoseBusp Lioa L1
5194901, “ypim apifod A|qissed s
suppd-ayy 18YJ SPIIq JO SPuBsSNOY) 948
SJaY), U] MO} WBYINANIBWMIN
Y} uo Fayrvman ul Leg juaan)

910T T 129000 “Repssupapm

-LS8E0 HN “PRIswmaN

SUIRN0D 13y Jnoge ue ﬁo«ag_.on: Aw pajagie) sey majakeg
3sed 2y uy pagdwINeDd BAIq SBY G 56 W04} ZUTWOD PELOHY I3YI0uY SSEIDN T paseg 8LY TCOL 9T0TYIIE BT
‘usmop odae sip Iy “jeaay) L1ojus
9l e SmBBe; w,] mudy ‘saueid asow
ON “BAMOP oIl 34 JUYS O} puBwSp
1uredy -Kjaanus sy vy godae oy
UMOP IS NOA PREBWIP | “dUl] HALQ)
WY/ IBUAMDN dY) uo Leq 1219 ‘ aNIEALD
uo. pojeao] 81 Aaadoad Ay ‘uo1yERYS LSBT0 HN i N
*SUIADUOI fay Jnoqe sSnosIBuep £194 ‘LA -paraiiiey manted
jsed og) w1 PajOEIUD UG Sey AYg A12a18590%a 19aq s8Y Ap1adoad Ky SE1DM paseg sL1 T OTOTPII6 LT
) ull®d -LS8E0 HN “1ORIBMIN
S14) FuluammnIop W,J 0S ‘pEIYIdA0 oIALS
“SUIIU0D H0Y Jnoqe Bupysend Jsome ‘Kysedosd Lw pajedie; it
ssed au3 u pagaeyuca Ndaq Sy AYS st susyd soouy, “1ayed Jpaday SEIOM pasug 8Ll £€:07  9T0T/TN/6 9T
LAUE 38340 U0 pajEnJIs
U] TWMOF WEYIN(]/INIBWMIN
AY) U JIEWMDIN] °I PajLI0| e
asea g w4y Sunuod sydosseaed siys Lg
Hs1t 18 paawpd ajdead ay pue {jredoad
Y| UOIFBINS SN0a35uBp Ajowaayxa -158€0 HN “JOUIBUMIN
oy asuad mesy Suywoy fasdoad mmiakug
SHAIIUOY 1DV JNOQE Auws pa3adam) sey auejd .ayjouy Jey B d
sed 21y u) pajoejuod UG sEY S ag 3oy 03 Bupfjeo w1, 1910 Jpaday $€10M paseg 8L1 1z 9loyLIe ST
e — R
dpy sopog SIALIBLIBN] yenanv LLT AT o ap A auny ama 1)
91/05/60 91 9I/I0/60  ‘porad oY} 404 807 j04110)) 310N yQd



t1 J0-9 984

LI550m a3 s ySnoay) Bmoed sy yeyy
_ ajdood asaiyy J0 suo we J pajediwy 01
Kyaadoead L asngdaq pus 9]qeavsalg)
aAv 53Uy BIQLLIOY J[GLLIOY 253}

1O [1¢ puR. quIf & §o ssof ¢ Jajyns Lewr
JUOIWHS *PI]IN -2 [[irs 2UCDTUOS *OSIM
KAyaedoad ‘palBenrep 3¢ jum ouvswos
348 SPPO off) KSNOIAGQ,, dWOY 1Y)

~LS8E0 FIN “93NIBmMIN

G107 “T1 320100 ‘fepsaupopy

‘SULIdu0D L2y ynoqe  BupaBuey yeaoae seqjout jo vaadugd sslaleg
ysed 243 w1 poyoe3Iu0D S seY AYS - KJo)Es i ¥ Yaum Buyrea Joqped seadey SEIDN paseg 8L 00:L1  9LQUSYE  ¥E
WTRRARHIAIN R 2oy Aur SunoSiey LS8E0 HN JS..&E;M...Z
*sii100U02 194 JnoqgY Beanns Jogouyusigead &Hajes “ladvg
15ed a3 uy parowIues uvag ser ayg  apy saqour w BuBBory,, -aoyeo yeadey O amouyuy SL1 85:0¢ 910T/SI/6 €E
anod quei),
saued gy aydoayseres epnjosqiz
ue st] “Bulseuyye asey spaiq yo s - ARUTAIN -
puw 8107y *Apaodoad pue-quug ‘agn yo RN uuxtu_.isz
. ‘SILIDINOI J3Y JoQE  UuIdu0d Jo Ino ‘Aredoad L Suyefin fastg
3964 94} Ul PAJIEINED U SEY YS §1 JEIDAE Joigouy |, “Isfied yeadoy SEION paseq 8L1 TELY  SI0TSI6  TE
S— -108€0 N ‘qinowsieg
*AAES5323UUNG: S| OB [[82 B Jei) -asnoy Au JaAo Lp5asarp J9pdoanjay MUY SN
Jsed oy up paredipui sBY JENPIAIPUL  PIY ~ LNIVTIWOD ASION :papsury andooyey nosuiqoy p